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The Following pages contain a timeline of all eleven murders. 
It begins with the death of Robert Colvert on Dec.1, 1957 and ends 
with the capture of Charles Starkweather on Jan.29, 1958. 

DEC.1,1957.(Sunday) 
-3:30am 
Charlie pulls into Crest Gas Station and buys pack of Winston 
cigarettes from the night attendant, Robert Colvert, and then leaves. 

\ 

-3:40am 
Charlie returns and buys some gum, then leaves. 

-3:50am 
Charlie parks in front of Crest Station, he places a red bandanna 
on his face, puts a hunting cap on his head to hide his red hair, 
and slips on some leather gloves. He is already wearing blue jeans, 
a black shirt, a black leather jacket and cowboy boots. When Charlie 
walks into the garage he is carrying a 12 gauge shotgun in one hand 
and a canvas bag in the other (he found the bag while working on 
the garbage truck the week before). Once inside, he orders attendant 
Robert Colvert to shut off the outside lights and fill the bag with 
money (the take was around $150.00 in dollars, $10.00 in coins). 
Charlie also knows of a safe under a counter, but Colvert does not 
know the combination. Charlie then orders Colvert outside into his 
car and has Colvert drive as he holds a gun on him. They then drive 
northeast on Cornhusker and left on 27th street - where they stop 
on a frozen dirt road called Superior Street. When Charlie orders 
him to get out, Colvert turns and a scuffle follows with the gun 
going off shooting Colvert out the door. When Colvert begins to move 
again, Charlie puts the gun to the back of his head and fires. Within 
moments, he gets back in his car and returns home to sleep. 

-5:01am 
Robert Calvert's body is found on Superior Street .. Personnel from 
both the sheriffs office (Karnopp) and the County Attorney's office 
(Scheele) arrive at scene a short time later. After investigating 
the scene, police come to the conclusion that they are looking for 
a transient suspect. 

-6:00pm 
Charlie gets rid robbery weapon. He throws the shotgun off South 
Street Bridge into Salt Creek. 



Dec.2,1957~(Monday) 
-Charlie buys used clothing at a local thrift shop and pays with 
$10.00 worth of coins. 

DEC.7,1957.(Saturday) 
Starkweather repaints his blue Ford to the color black. In addition 
he has also changes the tires on his car in order to avoid a tire­ 
print match by police. During the next few days he also stops by 
the Crest Gas Station a few times in order to divert any suspicion 
which might be attached to his absence. · 
Strangely enough, he has learned all of these simple - yet effective 
techniques through comic books and detective magazines. 

DEC.16,1957.(Monday) 
The County attorney's office interview a former Crest employee who 
describes a 20 to 21 year old red head who drove a 49' Ford and used 
to hang around the station. 

JAN.10 - 19th, 1958. 
During this time Charlie loses his steady job with the Garbage 
Company, and after he spends all the money on both himself and Caril 
he is locked out of his apartment for failing to pay the rent. He 
sleeps in his car at night. Guy and Helen Starkweather (Charlie's 
parents) tell him he is spending too much time with Caril. Marion 
and Velda Bartlett (Caril's parents) are worried about Caril's weight 
gain and possible pregnancy. They warn Caril not to see Charlie 
anymore, and they become hostile towards Charlie whenever he appears. 
Charlie and Caril are arguing with each other almost every day. At 
one point Charlie drags Caril off a school-bus in front of her 
friends. It was also reported that she would hide in the school 
restrooms after school so she could avoid Charlie outside. 

JAN.21,1958.(Tuesday) 
Charlie borrows brother Rodney's .22 rifle. He explains to him that 
he has planned to go hunting with Marion Bartlett. 

-1:00pm 
Charlie arrives at Bartlett home. An argument starts almost 
immediately between Charlie and Velda Bartlett. She hits Charlie 
several times in the face, and tells him never to come back. 
He leaves. 

-1:15pm 
Charlie returns for his gun, and this time Marion Bartlett gives 
him a kick in the ass out the door. Charlie drives to the nearby 
Hutson's Grocery Store and calls the Watson Brothers Transportation 
Company and lets them know that Marion Bartlett is sick and will 
not be in for a few days. 
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-3:00pm 
NOTE: IT IS NOT KNOW IF CARIL WAS HOME FROM SCHOOL DURING THE MURDER 
OF HER FAMILY, THIS VERSION FOLLOWS CARIL'S STORY. 
Charlie returns to the Bartlett home and another argument starts 
and Velda slaps Charlie again. Charlie then slaps her back. Marion 
Bartlett runs into the room and they begin fighting. Charlie then 
runs into Caril's room and loads his rifle. When Marion enters with 
a hammer in his hand, Charlie fires one bullet into his head. He 
then reloades and shoots Velda in the face as she lifts a knife 
towards him. At that point he strikes Betty Jean with the rifle, 
and then stabs her. 

-3:30pm 
Caril arrives home f~om school. Charlie greets her with a gun in 
her face and explains that her family is being held hostage. Without 
her full cooperation, he will kill them. 

JAN.22,1958.(Wednesday) 
-6:30am 
Caril's friend Bonnie comes by to walk with Caril to school. Caril 
explains that she is sick with the flu (Bonnie returns the next 
morning as is again turned away, she later stated to police that 
she felt Caril was in danger). 

JAN.25,1958.(Saturday) 
-12:02pm 
Bob and Barbara Von Busch bring by new baby to see Bartletts. 
Caril yells at them to stay away as they approach the house. As 
Barbara approaches, Caril tells her that if they come any closer 
mother may get hurt. Caril then runs out to the taxi they were leaving 
in and pleads with them not to come back till after Monday so that 
Mother would not be hurt. She appears exhausted and is crying at 
the time. 

-8:00pm 
Bob Von Busch and Rodney Starkweather visit Bartlett home. They are 
turned away again by Caril. 

-9:25pm 
Bob Von Busch (married to Caril's sister Barbara) and Rodney 
Starkweather (Charlie's brother) contact police asking them to 
investigate the Bartlett residence at 924 Belmont Street. 

-10:00pm 
Two Lincoln police officers visit the home, speak with Caril at the 
door and report that everything seems normal. 



JAN.26.1958.(Sunday) 
-7:00pm 
Laveta Starkweather (Charlie's sister) visits Bartlett home and is 
refused entry by Caril. Caril then whispers to her that Charlie is in 
another room with some other guy and they are planning to rob a bank. 

JAN.27,1958.(Monday) 
-9:30am 
Lincoln Police receive report from Pansy Street (Caril's grandmother) 
that she has been denied the right to see her daughter by Caril, she 
feels there is something wrong. 

-9:45am 
Charlie and Caril quickly leave Bartlett home on foot and head for his 
father's home where he picks up his Ford. 

-10:00am 
A short time later Pansy Street and two police officers enter the home 
to find it empty, and then leave. 

-10:03am 
Charlie and Caril get gas at the Crest Service Station. 

-12:30pm 
Charlie and Caril stop at Dale's Champion Service where an ex-schoolmate 
of Charlie's, Lee Lamson, puts the car up on a grease rack and adjusts 
the transmission. Caril remains in the car while Charlie goes to the 
restroom. It was at this time that she writes a note which reads "HELP 
POLICE, DON'T IGNORE", and places it in her pocket to give to someone 
later, but she never gets the chance. 

-1:30pm 
Charlie and Caril stop at Tate's Service Station where they fix a tire. 
Caril runs into cafe adjoining the station and Caril buys four 
hamburgers. Counter girl Juanita Bell later notes that Caril stares 
at her the entire time she is waiting for the food, and even as she 
is walking outside with Charlie. 

-:-1:45pm 
· Charlie and Caril arrive at August Meyer farm. As they head up his road 
there car becomes stuck in the mud. Still about 150 feet from the Meyer 
house, Charlie and Caril go into an old stormcellar and try to keep 
warm. 

-2:00pm 
Charlie and Caril leave stormcellar and head for Meyer house. 

-2:10pm 
NOTE: HERE AGAIN, CARIL"S STORY DIFFERS FROM CHARLIE'S, ALTHOUGH IT 
WAS LATER BELIEVED THAT CARIL'S WAS CLOSER TO THE TRUTH SINCE CHARLIE 
TENDED TO MAKE EACH MURDER SOUND AS IF IT WAS SELF-DEFENSE. 
As Charlie and Caril walk up, August Meyer's dog begins to bark loudly 



f and then Meyer appears. Charlie explains that he needs horses to help 
pull the car out of the mud. Meyer then heads into his barn with Charlie 
and Caril following behind him. As he reaches the entrance to the barn 
Charlie shoots him in the head with a sawed-off .410 shotgun. Charlie 
then drags the body into a washhouse. After shutting the door of the 
washhouse, Charlie shoots Meyer's dog which has been barkirig non-stop. 
Charlie then enters the house with Caril. She sits in the kitchen as 
he ransacks the upstairs bedrooms. 

-4:30pm 
Bob Von Busch and Rodney Starkweather return to Bartlett home and 
discover the body of Marion Bartlett (Caril's stepfather) frozen in 
an unused chicken coop out back. The bodies of Velda Bartlett (Caril's 
mother) and Betty Jean (Caril's baby sister) are found nearby in an 
old outhouse. 

-5:40pm 
Charlie and Caril return to the Ford to try and push it out of mud. 
Farmer -Howard Genuchi pulls by and uses his car to pull Charlie's car 
out of mud. Charlie and Caril then drive back to house. Charlie walks 
ahead of Caril and feels that someone has been by the house while they 
were gone, so they leave. 

-6:00pm 
Charlie drives about ten minutes from the Meyer farm when he decides 
that he has over-reacted, so they head back to the farm to spend the 
night. 

-6:35pm 
Charlie and Caril become stuck in the mud for a second time on a road 
leading to the farm. They decide to leave the car and walk. 

-5:43pm 
A pick-up alert is put out on Charlie's Ford by the Lincoln Police. 

-7:40pm 
Robert Jensen and Carol King pick up Charlie and Caril. Charlie asks 
Jensen to drive him to the nearest phone. As they pull up to the Bennet 
Service Station, Jensen tells Charlie that he must go find the attendant 
to open the phone booth. Charlie puts his rifle at the base of Jensen's 
head and tells hi~ to drive to Lincoln. 

-9:00pm 
The Jensen car stops about fifty feet from the old stormcellar. Charlie 
walks the couple over to the cellar and shoots them both in the back 
of the head as they walk down steps. Caril is in the car during the 
murders. 

-9:30pm 
Neighboring farmer, Everett Broening, hears what he thinks may be a 
gunshot. 

-10:30pm 
Charlie and Caril get on Highway 2 and head towards Lincoln in Jensen's 



car. On the way Caril throws several of Robert Jensen's school-books 
out the window (Caril later claimed this to be one of her tips to 
police). As they drive into Lincoln, Charlie drives past the Lincoln 
police station knowing that they would be safe in Jensen's car. They 
then pass directly in front of the Bartlett home and leave after seeing 
the police. 

-10:45pm 
Charlie and Caril decide to try to make it to the state of Washington 
and stay with Charlie's brother Leonard for a while. 

JAN.28,1958.(Tuesday) 
-1:00am 
Charlie and Caril reach the town of Hastings, Nebraska, and Charlie 
is too tired to go on. They turn the car around and head back to Lincoln. 
Charlie later said that he knew the police would never expect him to 
return. 

-3:19am 
Missing Person's bulletin is broadcast for Robert Jensen and Carol King 
- missing since 7:30pm. 

-3:30am 
Charlie and Caril return to Lincoln and park in the wealthy Country 
Club section of town, where they sleep in the car till the next day. 

-8:00am 
Charlie and Caril awaken and begin driving around trying to find a house 
to enter. Charlie has picked up garbage from this area and is very 
familiar with the occupants of these homes. 

-8:30am 
Charlie decides on the Ward residence on South 24th Street. They pull 
in and Charlie makes Caril wait in car as he walks up to the kitchen 
window and bangs with his rifle. Lillian Fencl, the deaf maid, opens 
the door and Charlie realizes she cannot understand him so he writes 
instructions to her, first telling her to put a barking dog in the 
bathroom. A few moments later Clara Ward appeared in a robe, and she 
was ordered to sit at the table. Charlie then waved Caril in from 
outside. She entered the kitchen, was given a cup of tea, and then went 
into the library to sleep. Mrs. Ward and the maid went about cleaning 
the house to pass the time. 

-11:00am 
Mrs. Ward serves Charlie breakfast in the Library. 

-12:15pm 
Charlie's Ford found in mud at Meyer farm. 

-1:00pm 
Mrs. Ward asks to go upstairs to change her shoes. 
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-1:45pm 
Charlie goes upstairs to check on Mrs.Ward. She fires at him with a 
.22 pistol. He throws a knife striking her in the back. Charlie then 
carries her into her bedroom. He then walks downstairs and wakes Caril, 
and gives her a gun orders her to guard the maid. He then returns to 
the bedroom and finds Mrs.Ward trying to use the phone, but he can not 
get near her because her other dog is in the way - so he uses the butt 
of his rifle to break the dog's neck. Charlie then ties Mrs.Ward up 
and leaves her on the bed. 

-2:00pm 
About thirty-five Lincoln police, deputy sheriffs and state tr9opers 
begin surrounding the Meyer farm after neighboring farmers spot Charlie's 
black 49' Ford in the mud. Within minutes an additional thirty armed 
farmers also take up positions around the farm. 

-2:30pm 
Lincoln Assistant Police Chief says the following on a loudspeaker; 
"WE KNOW YOUR IN THERE, WE'LL GIVE YOU FIVE MINUTES TO COME OUT WITH 
YOUR HANDS UP". After five minutes, nine officers in various positions 
fire off tear gas bombs in just about every window in the house. 
Within ten minutes the entire force converges on the house (most with 
bandannas or rags on their faces due to all the gas). A trooper out 
back yells out that he has found the frozen body of August Meyer with 
one shotgun blast to his head, the body is in a washhouse. 

-3:00pm 
Farmer Everett Broening, who has been watching the entire siege, suddenly 
remembers hearing the gunshot last night along with Jensen's car speeding 
off • On a hunch.he heads towards the old stormcellar and discovers 
the bodies of the young couple. He quickly runs back and alerts the 
police. The bulk of almost everyone at the Meyer farm move to the 
stormcellar. Mass confusion among the police begins. 

-3:30pm 
The Bennet hardware store sells out of it's entire supply of ammunition, 
guns, and knives in the store. More than 100 troopers arrive from Omaha, 
Columbus, Grand Island and Freemont in order to cover the Bennet area. 

-4:30pm 
Radio reports indicate that County Attorney Elmer Scheele has filed 
first degree murder charges against both Charlie Starkweather and Caril 
Fugate. At this time nobody is even sure if Caril is alive. 

-5:00pm 
Charlie ransacks the upstairs bedrooms. A short time later the afternoon 
paper arrives and Charlie looks through it first - cutting certain 
articles out before letting Caril have it. Caril then cuts out photos 
of both Charlie and herself - along with photos of her family (This 
later testimony was damaging to her case, since it was highly unlikely 
that could not realize that her parents were dead at that point). 



f.'- -5:30pm 
C.Lauer Ward has a conference with Nebraska Governor and close friend 
Victor Anderson in the governors office. Ward and .Anderson discuss the 
Starkweather Murders, and Ward is very upset about something like this 
happening in Lincoln. 

-6:00pm 
C.Lauer Ward arrives home and is confronted by Charlie in the kitchen. 
A struggle follows and Ward is thrown down the basement stairs. Charlie 
runs down, and after another struggle for the gun Ward runs upstairs 
only to be shot by Charlie from behind. 

-6:15pm 
Charlie tries to dye his hair black with shoe polish and has Caril do 
the back of his head before they left. After, Charlie and Caril bring 
Fencl upstairs and tie her up in the bedroom. 
NOTE: ONCE AGAIN, STORIES CONFLICT ON THIS MURDER WITH CHARLIE STATING 
THAT HE WAS UNAWARE THE MAID WAS EVEN DEAD WHEN HE WAS CAPTURED. CARIL 
TESTIFIED THAT SHE WAS UPSTAIRS WHEN CHARLIE STABBED HER TO DEATH. 

-7:00pm 
Charlie and Caril leave Ward home in C.Lauer Ward's 1956 Packard. They 
get on Highway 34 and head for Washington state. 

JAN.29,1958.(Wednesday) 
-2:00am 
Charlie and Caril stop in town of Broken Bow, Nebraska. Charlie pulls 
into Bow Oil Company and buys gas and several different state maps. 
When the attendant asks about his destination, Charlie replies; "I guess 
it don't matter". 

-5:00am 
Charlie falls asleep at the wheel and drives into a ditch, they decide 
to rest for a while. 

-9:00am 
Charlie and Caril cross state line into Wyoming on Highway 20. 

-12:01pm 
C.Lauer Ward's cousin and business associate, Fred Ward, stops by Ward 
Home and discovers bodies. 
NOTE: THE FOLLOWING EVENTS HAVE NO PRECISE TIMES. ALTHOUGH EACH INCIDENT 
TOOK PLACE SOMEWHERE BETWEEN 12:30pm and 4:00pm. 

-Within two hours, every hardware store in Lincoln sells just about 
every weapon (guns, knifei, bows, ammunition) in stock. 

-Governor Anderson, horrified at what has happened, calls up over 200 
national guard which immediately start patrolling Lincoln in jeeps with 
mounted M-60 machine guns. Twenty of these soldiers surround the Lincoln 
bank under the report that Charlie may try and rob it. 
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-Sheriff Karnopp appears on television and the radio asking for his 
posse to meet him at the courthouse. Citizens take this as an open call 
and he is met by over 100 men of all ages when he arrives. With the 
crowd growing extremely restless, he stands on a desk and performs a 
mass deputization of everyone in the room. This action is quickly 
followed by a heated phone conversation with Chief Joe Carroll who 
explains that they will probably end up shooting each other. 

-FBI arrive on the scene and begin assisting in the investigation. 

-Road-blocks are set everywhere, citizen snipers stand on roof-tops 
throughout the city, the Lincoln Air Force Base sends up helicopters 
to help search for the Packard Automobile Charlie is driving. 

-Two Lincoln police cars report they have spotted the Ward's 1956 black 
Packard racing through town. A high-speed chase follows for about 15 
minutes. Police find that the driver is actually a Lincoln attorney 
who was kidding around. In another false alarm, a University of Nebraska 
student who resembles Charlie is held up in his apartment after being 
chased by a small crowd. 

-Hundreds of calls pile into both the Sheriffs office and the police 
department alerting the police of possible sightings. At one point, 
the Lincoln Telephone Company has an overload of circuits and shuts 
down for almost an hour. 

-Thousands of families leave their garage doors open and the keys in 
the car so if Charlie came by, he could just take the car and leave. 
In addition, after the news of the Ward murders was broadcast, just 
about every business and school came to halt when citizens rushed home 
to guard there children and be with their families. It was the only 
time in the history of Lincoln, that the people lost any faith that 
the police could protect them. 

-Local Radio Station KFOR offers a $100.00 reward for any information 
leading to capture of Charlie and Caril. The United Garbage Association 
also offers $100.00. Lincoln Mayor Bennet Martin offers $500.00, and 
finally Governor Anderson offers $1,000.00. 

-1:00pm 
Charlie-and Caril drive into Douglas, Wyoming. Radio reports are warning 
people to be on the lookout for them. As they drive through town, Charlie 
begins to get nervous with everyone staring at them. They quickly take 
off on to Highway 87 towards Casper. 

-2:30pm 
About 15 miles outside of Douglas, Charlie stops the car as he drives 
past a Buick on the other side of the road. Charlie gets out and walks 
over to Buick where he then knocks on the window awakening Merle · 
Collison. Charlie;"Unlock the door", COLLISON;"Why?", CHARLIE;"We're 
gonna trade cars". Collison refuses and Charlie walks back to his car 
- retrieves a .22 pump rifle - and returns to the Buick where he begins 
firing through the window. (IT WAS LATER LEARNED THAT THE FIRST TWO 
SHOTS WERE THROUGH THE GLASS AND ANOTHER SEVEN WERE SHOT INTO HIM AFTER 
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CHARLIE HAD THE DOOR OPENED). Charlie then orders Caril into the back 
seat of the Buick and tries unsuccessfully to release the handbrake • 

.:.2:45pm 
Joe Sprinkle is traveling east towards Douglas when he passes the two 
vehicles on the road. He can see knowone in either car when he passes 
but he decides to turn around when he sees someone exit the car in his 
rearview mirror. Sprinkle gets out of his car and starts over towards 
Charlie who has his back towards him. Charlie then turns with a rifle 
in his hand and orders Sprinkle to help him release the brake. As 
Sprinkle gets closer, he notices Caril sobbing in the back seat, and 
then he sees Collison's body in the front seat. Within seconds he grabs 
for Charlie's gun and a wild fight follows spilling out onto the middle 
of the highway. 

-2:55pm 
Wyoming Deputy Sheriff William Romer just happens to be driving to 
Douglas on the highway and appears out of nowhere since there is a hill 
in the road which prevents him from seeing the fight until he is within 
seventy feet of the cars. As he pulls over, Caril bolts from the Buick 
and runs straight towards him. She quickly gets in Romers patrol car 
and explains what is going on. 

-3:00pm 
Charlie spots Romer's car and runs for his Packard. Sprinkle jumps into 
a ditch on the side of the road. Romer watches Charlie head towards 
Douglas, and waits a while to make sure he doesn't try to double back. 
Romer then radios Douglas for a roadblock and takes off after him with 
Caril sitting next to him. 

-3:04pm 
Douglas Chief of police Robert Ainslie and Sheriff of Converse County 
Earl Heflin pick up Romer's call and pick up Charlie about six miles 
outside Douglas as Charlie speeds by at around 80 mph. Charlie has a 
good lead on them as he enters the town going about 100mph, with Ainslie 
and Heflin closing in. Suddenly Charlie is slowed down by some traffic, 
and Ainslie (who is driving) gets close enough for Heflin to start firing 
away at Charlie's tires with a .38 revolver. When the shots ring out 
everyone on the streets scatter or lay down, and other cars swerve onto 
sidewalks. As Charlie .maneuvers his way past cars, Ainslie manages to 
hook Charlie's bumper - only to have the Packards rip loose. 

-3:15pm 
Charlie makes it onto the open highway headed back towards Nebraska. 
At this point both he and Ainslie are driving at close to 120mph. 
Meanwhile Heflin changes weapons for a .30/.30 carbine which he starts 
to fire at the back of Charlie's window. After about ten shots, he 
manages to hit the window shattering the safety glass. At that point 
Charlie is lost for a moment over a dip in the road. 

-3:25pm 
When Charlie reappears, his Packard has stopped in the middle of the 
road. Heflin and Ainslie stop about 100 feet behind and wait for him 
to exit the car. Charlie's ear is bleeding all over his shirt when 



he exits with his back to them. Ainslie yells for him to put his hands 
up and Charlie refuses so Ainslie fires a shot which lands next to 
Charlie's feet. Charlie starts to go for _something in his waist so 
Ainslie fires another shot even closer to him. This time Heflin yells 
for him to get his hands up, but Charlie goes about tucking in his shirt 
until he's satisfied. With one more shot fired by Ainslie, Charlie turns 
around and lays face down on the highway. He is then handcuffed and 
put in the car and on the way to the Douglas Jail, he tells Heflin to 
loosen the handcuffs, or he will not tell them anything. Charlie then 
tells them not to be rough on the girl since she had nothing to do with 
it. 

-3:3:6pm 
Romer brings Caril to the jail. During the trip Romer states that she 
explains that she has been his hostage and that she had seen all nine 
murders (THIS STATEMENT WOULD ALMOST DESTROY HER ENTIRE CASE IN COURT 
SINCE SHE LATER TESTIFIED THAT SHE WAS UNAWARE OF HER OWN FAMILIES 
DEATH).- 

-3:40pm 
Radio reports broadcast the capture of Charlie and Caril in Douglas, 
Wyoming. 

-3:45pm 
Both Charlie and Caril are brought to the Converse County Jail. Charlie 
is locked in a cell on the ground floor. Heflin's wife, Hazel, takes 
charge of Caril and places her in a cell for women upstairs. Caril goes 
into shock and refuses to speak or let anyone touch her, including a 
doctor who tries to examine her. She is then sedated and falls asleep. 
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for him to get his hands up, but Charlie goes about tucking in his shirt 
until he's satisfied. With one more shot fired by Ainslie, Charlie turns 
around and lays face down on the highway. He is then handcuffed and 
put in the car and on the way to the Douglas Jail, he tells Heflin to 
loosen the handcuffs, or he will not tell them anything. Charlie then 
tells them not to be rough on the girl since she had nothing to do with 
it. 

-3:36pm 
Romer brings Caril to the jail. During the trip Romer states that she 
explains that she has been his hostage and that she had seen all nine 
murders (THIS STATEMENT WOULD ALMOST DESTROY HER ENTIRE CASE IN COURT 
SINCE SHE LATER TESTIFIED THAT SHE WAS UNAWARE OF HER OWN FAMILIES 
DEATH).- 

-3:40pm 
Radio reports broadcast the capture of Charlie and Caril in Douglas, 
Wyoming. 

-3:45pm 
Both Charlie and Caril are brought to the Converse County Jail. Charlie 
is locked in a cell on the ground floor. Heflin's wife, Hazel, takes 
charge of Caril and places her in a cell for women upstairs. Caril goes 
into shock and refuses to speak or let anyone touch her, including a 
doctor who tries to examine her. She is then sedated and falls asleep. 

-6:00pm . 
Charlie explains to Heflin and Ainslie; "You wouldn't have caught me 
if I hadn't stopped" •.••• "If I'd had a gun I would have shot you". 
Charlie then asks for a pen and paper so he can write a letter to his 
parents (Pg.120. ALLEN BOOK). 

JAN.30,1958.(Thursday) 
-Elmer Scheele and Sheriff Merle Karnopp arrive in Douglas, Wyoming 
on Thursday afternoon after being transported with four other deputies 
and deputy prosecutors by the Air National Guard in a C-47. Problems 
arise when Wyoming Sheriff Heflin refuses to give up Charlie, explaining 
that he also committed murder in Wyoming. The matter is settled a short 
time later when Wyoming Governor Milward Simpson states that h~ could 
never grant the death penalty, but would be willing to turn over 
jurisdiction to Nebraska - which is not opposed to the death penalty. 

-As soon as Charlie sees Sheriff Karnopp, he asks how his son Dennis 
is (Charlie had gone to school with Karnopp's son, and the Starkweather 
family had lived a block away from the Karnopp's at one point.). 

-Scheele has no problem getting Charlie and Caril to sign Extradition 
waivers which would enable them to be immediately returned to Nebraska. 
Caril later admits that she is unaware of what she signed, and Charlie 
signs simply because he dislikes the smell of gas ( which is Wyoming's 
form of capital punishment). 
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-Charlie and Caril both refuse to fly back in the C-47, so Karnopp drove 
them back in a four-car caravan. Charlie and Caril are taken in separate 
cars and Hazel Heflin (Sheriff Heflin's wife) escorts Caril as far as 
Gering, Nebraska, where they spend the night at the Gering Jail. The 
trip is uneventful except for the incredible mobs of print and electronic 
news reporters that follow them everywhere. Although during the first 
leg of the trip Charlie confesses to Karnopp that he killed Colvert 
at the gas station in December. When this news is released to the press, 
an incredible amount of public criticism is aimed at the Lincoln Police 
Department. 

JAN.31,1958.(Friday) 
-Early in the morning Charlie prints his second confession with a pencil 
on the prison wall in Gering. it reads; 
"Caril is the one who said to go to Washington State. 

by the time anybody will read this i will be dead for all the 
killings , then they cannot give Caril the Chair to. 
from Lincoln Nebraska they got us Jan.29,1958. 
1958 Kill 11 persons 
Charles kill 9, all men 

Caril kill l, all girls 
11 

They have so many cops and people watching us leave i cant add 
all of them up." 

AT THE BOTTOM OF THE NOTE WAS DRAWN A HEART WITH AN ARROW THROUGH IT. 
INSIDE THE HEART WAS CHARLES STARKWEATHER AND CARIL FUGATE. 

-Mrs. Gertrude Karnopp takes over as Caril's escort in Gering. And at 
that point Mrs. Heflin returns to Douglas. As Caril begins the second 
leg of the trip, she begins talking to Mrs.Karnopp about some of the 
murders. As the caravan continues to make it's way back to Lincoln, 
large crowds of people gather along the road in scattered towns along 
the way. All of them trying to catch a glimpse of the infamous couple. 
During some of rest stops along the way, Caril throws angry glances 
towards Charlie whenever she comes in eye-contact with him. 

~when the caravan finally arrives in Lincoln, Charlie is taken directly 
to the Nebraska State Penitentiary and placed in a cell in the prison 
hospital. Caril is then taken to the State Hospital. 

FEB.15,1958. 
-John McArthur is appointed by Judge Harry Spencer to defend Caril Ann 
Fugate. 

MAR.7,1958. 
-McArthur appears in court to file writ of prohibition against Court 
Judge Herbert Ronin. If the writ is granted, Caril's case would be 
transferred to juvenile court. 
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MAR.10,1958 
-Clement Gaughan is chosen to defend Charlie Starkweather. 

MAR. 11 , 1958. 
-Harold J.Robinson arrives from the California Bureau of Criminal 
Investigation in order to begin his impartial inquiry into Lincoln police 
activities during the Starkweather Case. 

MAR.23,1958. 
-Robinson completes 
Lincoln Police. 

investigation. For the most part, it supports the 

'~~~~ 

MAR.28,1958. 
-Charlie writes letter to Elmer Scheele in which he accuses Caril of 
killing Carol King. (pg.132. ALLEN BOOK). 

APR.3,1958.(Thursday) 
-The District Court denies McArthur's writ of prohibition. Nebraska 
Attorney General's office gives McArthur permission to proceed with 
an appeal to the State Supreme Court. (pg.83. CARIL BOOK). 

APR.9,1958. 
-Charlie sends a second letter to Scheele with more or less the same 
information. But this time he adds the following statement; 
"I'll be convicted for what I did and that's okay. But I'll be damned 
it I'll be sentenced for what I didn't do". 

MAY.5,1958.(MONDAY). 
-Charlie Starkweather trial begins. As Charlie is led to the courtroom, 
he is under the protection of the largest security force ever assembled 
for any single prisoner in the history of Nebraska. This force includes 
police sharpshooters on every roof in sight, and plainsclothes deputies 
on every corner. Charlie arrives in tan suit and tie. 

-Jury selection from a panel of 147 begins and continues for the next 
three days. 
-McArthur refuses to allow Caril to testify, and says she will invoke 
the fifth ammendment if she is called. 

MAY.9,1958.(Friday). 
-Prosecuor Elmer Scheele and his staff begin three day presentation 
of it's case against Charlie Starkweather. He is being tried for just 
one of the eleven murders - that of Robert Jensen Jr. in Bennet. 
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The following people testify; 
-Robert Jensen Sr. (father of victim Robert Jensen Jr) 
-Warren King (brother of victim Carol King) 
-Homer Tate (owner of Tate's Service Station) 
-Howard Genuchi (farmer who helped Charlie out of ditch) 
-Everett Broening (farmer who found bodies in stormcellar) 
-Dr. Erwin Zeman (pathologist who examined Jensen body) 

MAY.12, 1958 (Monday) 
-Scheele continues to establish links between Charlie and the murders, 
and goes about interviewing numerous police and deputies. 
-The most interesting point of the day comes when two statements written 
by Charlie are read aloud. One note was found in Charlie's pocket 
(pg.100. CARIL BOOK), the other was a letter sent to his parents (pg.102. 
CARIL BOOK). Gaughan attempts to use these conflicting statements to 
prove Charlie's insane. 

MAY,13.1958.(Tuesday) 
-The state rests it's case against Charlie after Scheele reads two 
lengthy formal statements given by Charlie to both himself (pg.105. 
CARIL BOOK) and Dale Fahrnbruch (pg.119. CARIL BOOK). 

MAY.14,1958.(Wednesday) 
-Clem Gaughan begins his first day for the defense by having several 
witnesses testify about a blow Charlie received to his head some time 
ago at work. 
-Charlie's third confession is read aloud in the courtroom (pg.103. 
CARIL BOOK). 

MAY.15,1958.(Thursday) 
-Guy and Helen Starkweather are scheduled to testify for the defense. 
Guy fails to show up and is then served with a subpoena. 

-The following people testify; . 
-Robert Von Busch (Charlie's brother-in-law and close friend). 
-Helen Starkweather (Charlie's mother). 
-Charlie Starkweather. 

MAY.16,1958 (Friday) 
-Charlie strikes photographer outside courtroom (SEE NEWSPAPER ARTICLE). 

The following people testify; 
-Guy Starkweather (Charlie's father). 
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MAY,19.1958 (Monday) 
-Dr. Nathan Greenbaum, Dr.John O'Hearne and Dr.John Steinman are called 
by the defense to describe Charlie's mental state of mind. 

MAY.20,1958 (Tuesday) 
-The defense rests it's case. 

MAY,22.1958 (Thursday) 
-Jury brings in guilty verdict for 1st degree murder on both of two 
counts. They specify the death penalty. 

JULY.3,1958. 
-The Supreme Court rules that Caril must be tried as an adult. 

OCT.17,1958. 
-McArthur calls Ninette Beaver and grants her permission to interview 
Caril in a press conference. 

OCT.20,1958. 
-Ninette Beaver interviews Caril Ann Fugate during a press conference. 
-McArthur's idea backfires. 

OCT.27,1958. 
-Caril Ann Fugate's trial begins. 
-By the end of the day, 33 jurors had been accepted by the prosecution. 

OCT.28,1958. 
-Jury selection continues. 



OCT.29,1958.(Wednesday) 
-Seven men and five women are chosen to sit on the jury. 
-Opening statements are made by McArthur and Scheele. (pg.152. CARIL 
BOOK). 

OCT.30,1958.(Thursday) 
-The following people testify; 
-Robert Jensen Sr. (Robert Jensen Jr.'s father) 
-Warren King (Carol King's brother) 
-Dr.Zeman (pathologist) 

OCT.31,1958.(Friday) 
-The following people testify; 
-Bill Romer (Deputy Sheriff who first came in contact with Charlie 

-on a highway in Wyoming.) 
-Earl Heflin (Sheriff of Converse County in Wyoming) 
-Everett Broening (Bennet farmer who found bodies in cellar). 

-The highlights of the day occur during Romer's testimony, where 
McArthur fires off questions concerning Caril. 

NOV.4,1958.(Tuesday) 
-The following people testify; 
-Eugene Masters (Assistant Chief of Police) 
-Rodney Starkweather (Charlie's brother) 
-Officer Frank Soukop (first to check on Bartlett home) 
-Dale Smallcomb (Ran service station that Charlie and Caril stopped 

-at during spree) 
-Lee Lamson (worked with Smallcomb) 
-Homer Tate (Owned another service station Charlie was at) 

NOV.5,1958.(Wednesday) 
-Major suprise occurs in the morning when it is announced Scheele 
will call Charlie to testify against Caril. 

-The following people testify; 
-Juanita Bell (worked at diner next to Tate's Service Station, served 

-burgers to Caril) 
-Charlie Starkweather.(SCHEELE QUESTIONS HIM) 
-Dr.Vance Rogers (witnessed initial questioning of Caril) 

NOV.6,1958.(Thursday) 
-The following people testify; 
-Charlie Starkweather (MCARTHUR QUESTIONS HIM) 
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NOV.7,1958.(Friday) 
-The following people testify; 
-Gertrude Karnopp (Wife of Sheriff Karnopp) 
-Edwin Coats (psychiatrist at State Hospital) 
-Audrey Wheeler (court reporter - was present during one of Caril's 

confessions) 

-At the end of the day McArthur moves for a mistrial, stating that 
Charlie had answered questions on direct examination for Scheele, 
yet he had refused to answer some questions on cross-examination when 
asked by the defense. 
-Judge Spencer denied the motion on the grounds that McArthur had 
not requested that the Court insist Charlie answer any specific 
questions. 

NOV.10,1958.(Monday). 
-The following people testify; 
-Audrey Wheeler (court reporter) 

-After McArthur argued the violation of Caril's rights, Scheele read 
a statement Caril made to him after her capture. The statement includes 
Caril saying that she had held a gun on Robert Jensen Jr., and also 
taken his wallet. 

NOV.12,1958.(Wednesday) 
-The State rests its case. 

-McArthur begins the defense with the testimony of Caril. 
The following people testify after Caril; 
-Dr.Erwin Zeman (pathologist) 

NOV.13,1958 (Thursday) 
The following people testify; 
-Alice Lauer (Ward family relative) 
-Macie Moore (Aid at State Hospital) 
-Pansy Street (Caril's grandmother) 

NOV.14,1958 (Friday) 
The following people testify; 
-Hazel Heflin (Sheriff Heflin's wife) 
-Barbara Von Busch (Caril's sister) 
-Robert Von Busch (Caril's brother-in-law) 
-Caril Fugate. 

NOV.17,1958.(Monday) 
The following people testify; 
-Caril Fugate. 
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NOV.18,1958.(Tuesday) 
The following people testify; 
-Caril Fugate. 
-Edwin Coats (psychiatrist) 
-William Dixon (county attorney) 

-After Caril's testimony, McArthur announces that the defense rests. 
-After Dixon, Scheele announces that the state rests. 

NOV.19,1958.(Wednesday) 
-Scheele and McArthur give closing arguments for Fugate case. 
(pg.198.CARIL BOOK). 

NOV.20,1958.(Thursday) 
10:01am 
Jury deliberations begin. 

NOV.21,1958.(Friday) 
11:09am 
The jury reaches a guilty verdict on the second count, murder while 
in the perpetration of a robbery. The jury also decided that the 
sentence would be life imprisonment. 

NOV.25,1958.(Tuesday) 
-McArthur files a motion for a mistrial with the district court after 
he learns that one of the jurors, H.A.Walenta, had made a bet that 
Caril would get the chair - before he served on the jury. 
-Ninette Beaver and Jerry Hanson have been tipped off about the motion 
by McArthur the night before, and as soon as the radio announces the 
story - they walk into Walenta's auto shop and get an interview with 
him on camera. Moments after the interview, Dale Fahrnbruch and Sheriff 
Karnopp arrive to speak with Walenta also. 

DEC.13,1958. 
-McAtthur ~nd Scheele appear before judge Spencer. McArthur cites 
71 errors in Caril's trial. 

DEC.20,1958.(Saturday) 
-Judge Spencer finds no prejudicial error and overrules McArthur's 
motion for a new trial. Spencer then sentences Caril to imprisonment 
for the rest of her natural life. 

JAN. 11, 1959. 
-McArthur files appeal for a new trial in the Nebraska State Supreme 
Court. His main argument being that the juror, Walenta, carried out 
a corrupt and unlawful act. 
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MAY.19,1959. 
-Judge Spencer denies McArthur's motion for a new trial. 

MAY.21,1959. 
-Caril sends telegram to President Eisenhower to try and enlist his 
help in requesting a visit with Charlie before his execution. An 
immediate reply is sent to Caril which explains that the Starkweather 
case is entirely a state matter, and the president has no authority 
in the matter. (pg.263.CARIL BOOK) 

MAY.22,1959. 
-Charlie is scheduled to be executed at 6am. 
-Robert Jensen Sr. awaits news of Charlie's death standing next to 
his son's grave at the cemetery. His car radio reports the events. 
-Charlie suddenly receives stay of execution from federal Judge Rich 
Robinson who was contacted by Guy Starkweather. 

JUNE.25,1959. 
-A local radio station presents a special rock-n-roll program filled 
with songs about death which are played loudly by over 70 teen-agers 
driving around the penitentiary on the night of Charlie's death. 
10:00pm 
A doctor who is going to sign Charlie's death certificate dies of 
a heart-attack in the warden's office. 
-About an hour later Charlie's head and left leg are shaved and he 
is led to the electric chair where he dies after receiving over 2000 
volts three times. 

JULY.1964: 
-McArthur files a petition for habeas corpus in the Federal District 
Court of Nebraska. 

JULY.1965. 
-McArthur files a motion to show cause why Caril should not be released 
on bail since The Escobedo decision entitles Caril to a new trial. 

DEC.1965. 
-District Court denies McArthur's two motions for a new trial. 

FEB.27,1967. 
-Caril appears at hearing for a new trial in front of Lancaster 
district court. It is her first appearance in public since 1959. 

-the court denies a new trial. 
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APRIL.1972. 
-McArthur files petition with the Supreme Court of the United States. 

JUNE.1972. 
-NBC News makes documentary about Caril growing up in prison. 

OCT.1972. 
-The U.S. Supreme Court denies McArthur's petition for a new trial. 

JUNE.1973. 
-the Nebraska Parole Board grants Caril hearing. 

AUG.1973. 
-After a hearing, The Parole Board recommends Caril's case be presented 
to the State Board of Pardons for possible commutation of her life 
sentence. 

OCT.1973. 
-The Board of Pardons commutes Caril's life term for murder to 30- 
50 years, making her eligible for parole in 1976. 



TITLE: 

NAME: 

BORN: 

Omaha Television News Reporter 

Ninette Beaver 

1926 in Council Bluffs, 

1958 PROFILE: 
AGE: 32 Years old. 
HEIGHT: 5'3. 

HAIR: 
WEIGHT: 

CHARACTERISTICS: 
-Outgoing, smart and aggressive she needed to be. 

BACKGROUND: 
-Attended Creighton University with a major in Sociology, and a minor 
in Criminology. 
-Married in 1947 to Commodore, had two children Mack ( 9 years old 
in 1958), and Joanette (8 years old in 1958). 
-In 1955 I took over job as print reporter for a local paper in Council 
Bluffs, purely by accident. Had no Journalism background. 
-In 1956 Ninette started reporting for KMTV in Omaha. 

0INTERVIEW WITH MRS.NINETTE BEAVER.(Jan.29,1992). 

-In 1958 there were no more than 13 people in the news department. 
Extremely noisy place. The Teletypes were out in the hallway, and 
when the bells would go off - we'd run out and watch for the new 
bulletin. In addition to all that noise we had all the police and 
fire radios going constantly. 

-My boss was Floyd Kalber, who was around 35 years old in 1958, and 
he was both the anchor and news director. He was very stern and 
serious, and very good-looking. Tall and handsome. He'd been at the 
station since 1952, and we hit it off pretty quick. We also had Dick 
Trembath, a short 23 year old reporter with glasses, a good reporter. 
Jim Roberts, tall and darkhaired, a reporter about 25, and everyone 
liked him. Jerry Hanson, good at whatever he did and my closest friend 
at the station. Jerry became the film editor. 

-I did not feel I was equal by any means, I mean it was still a man's 
job .• especially in 1958. And yet I still had alot to learn, and I 
got along with everybody just fine. 

-At home I had a housekeeper. I can remember when I got home on Monday 
Night(Jan.27), I heard on the radio about the Bartlett murders and 
called Floyd to see what was going on, and if they needed me in there. 
I remember us agreeing that they would have found them by morning. 

-On Tuesday, Jan.28, I got in early. And at the time it was just Jerry 
and myself. And then we here that they have Charlie surrounded at 
Meyer farm, so we think about calling the house itself and seeing 
if Charlie would pick up ••• ofcourse we axed that decision pretty quick. 
Our Dick Trembath and Jim Roberts had raced down there at around 90 
mph and they got there in time to get footage of the police firing 



• tear-gas into the windows. And then after they found Meyer's body 
and the couple's bodies, that's when the panic set in •... and the 
excitement started for us. 

-So after the couple was found in the shed, Floyd told me I better 
drive down there and get a room at the Lincoln where I would act as 
a command center. And as I was getting ready to drive down, I worried 
about driving down myself with Charlie on the loose. So Floyd suggested 
they fly me down, but then I thought about the drive from the Lincoln 
airport to the hotel. So we finally decided that I would drive down 
early tomorrow morning(Wed.). 

-So around 11pm Tuesday night, Jerry followed me home to make sure 
I was safe. And I soon as I got home I quickly called my sister who 
lived down in Lincoln to see how she was doing. 

-By Wednesday morning about two thirds of the staff were down there, 
so I ended up staying in Omaha. And then around noon the Ward bodies 
turned up and my adrenalin was sky-high, this was an incredible news 
story. Though this excitement was mixed with fear for my sister down 
there, who I would call about every hour. And at that point the phones 
started ringing constantly. And I remember the network picked up our 
reports for the Nightly News. 

-So around on 6pm on Wed. night I headed down to Lincoln myself, mainly 
because Floyd wanted me to try and get an interview with the 
Starkweather family, and I remember that I just called Floyd and told 
him i couldn't get the interview. I actually lied, because there was 
no way I was going to knock on there door a few hours after there 
son has been arrested for killing 11 people. 

-So a little later on that night (9pm. Wed.)I stopped by where my 
sister was working on local talent show for KOLN (Lincoln TV Station) 
and I told them I wasn't working on the Starkweather story, just 
something else here in Lincoln. So they end up loaning me there sound 
camera until noon the next day. So Jerry shows up around midnight 
that night and he stayed at my sister's place with me. 

-Well Thursday morning(Jan.30) we get up around seven and pull up 
in front of the Starkweather home. So I go up to the house myself 
and they explain they don't want to interview, and I told them I 
understood. Then I asked them if I could make a call, and then they 
offered me a cup of coffee. Within 15 minutes, I waved Jerry inside 
and we had our interview. I remember Helen Starkweather was a very 
sweet lady, and Guy was a bit more of a publicity hound. Well after 
we finished the interview, about 20 to 30 reporters had showed up 
and were on the front lawn, and I remember the Starkweather's telling 
them no more interviews. Except I spotted a KOLN reporter (the station 
from which I borrowed the camera) and persuaded Mrs.Starkweather to 
let just him in. And when he got in, this reporter just looked at 
me knowing we had scooped him - but he also knew he was there because 
of us, so we helped him do an interview and then we left. And those 
were the only two interviews they gave that day. 



-So me and Jerry raced back to Omaha, and were able to have the 
interview ready for the afternoon broadcast, and the nightly news 
also picked it up. But what was amazing was the next morning (fri) 
Dave Garaway on the TODAY SHOW ran over seven minutes of it. Remember 
this was my first ON-CAMERA interview ever. I could not believe it. 

-Scheele was very methodical, very accurate. He had a breeze with 
Charlie's trial, but Caril's made him loose his temper every now an 
then because John McArthur was so good. 

-Clement Gaughan was interseting, I remember me and Jerry finding 
out that Clem was appointed counsel for Charlie. Well we met him at 
the bar he used to frequent, and we sat on either side of him. And 
I think I said ;"So we here your representing Charlie •• ", and he just 
looked at us and shook his head, and I think he ordered a double. 
He was a nice guy, but not one of the better attorney's around. And 
Clem was so dramatic, a great showman .•• that closing statement he 
made with the tears running down his face .•• something else. 

-I became good friends with John McArthur during the trial, and I 
remember always asking John to let us do an interview with her. But 
he always turned us down. And then about three weeks before her trial, 
John called me and said they had decided that they would let Caril 
do an interview. But John said they do it his way, and only one person 
does the interview. I quickly said you have to let Floyd do it, he's 
the best, and John paused and said no ••• your going to do it. And so 
I was shocked at that, and I was not looking to tell Floyd - I thought 
he'd be furious, but he wasn't, he just said call them back and get 
the interview, it doesn't matter who does it - just as long as we 
get it. 

-So the day came for the interview, and it was actually a press 
conference - only any questions had to go through me, and I would 
decide what to ask, and the bulk of the questions turned out to be 
mine anyway. I remember getting there that day and we waited out in 
a hallway and I met Caril for the first time, and here was this tiny 
little girl with a new skirt her lawyers bought for her, and she had 
a nervous smile •• and I told her everything would be fine. And then 
they opened that door - and I could not believe the amount of people 
and cameras. About 35 reporters and 11 different film cameras, along 
with several still cameras with flash-bulbs that went off all 
throughout the interview. And I remember John McArthur explaining 
the ground rules to the reporters and this reaction from several of 
them (all men) which was not pleasant. One Omaha Herald reporter 
said;"If you think I'm gonna let some part-time girl reporter ask 
my questions, the hell with that!''. Well John said it was up to him, 
and since I was a nervous wreck to begin with that did not help too 
much. But my biggest shock came when I asked Caril her first question, 
and she transformed into this mean, cold adult - and not the child 
I had met moments before (years later she told me she was terrified 
of the cameras). I know that McArthur was watching and feeling that 
this was-backfiring, but there was nothing he could do. And I was 
trying to calm her down during the interview, but it didn't help •••• she 
was somebody else during that interview. 



-Personally, regarding Caril's involvement, I had the most trouble 
with the fact that she could have possibly escaped on a number of 
occasions. 

-I mean we all felt she may have been guilty of something, but the 
question was what. But I really felt there was no way she ever killed 
anybody herself, although Jerry and Floyd both felt she was in on 
the whole thing. 



TITLE: 

NAME: 

BORN: 

Defense Attorney for Caril Ann Fugate 

John McArthur 

1910, in Custer County, Nebraska./ Died in 1986. 

1958 PROFILE: 
AGE: 48 Years old. 
HEIGHT: 6'2. 

HAIR: 
WEIGHT: 

Receding, Brown. 
175lbs. 

CHARACTERISTICS: 
-Always had half-dollar coin in his left hand which he would flip 
through his fingers whenever he was concentrating or listening to 
testimony in the courtroom. 

-Very quiet, reserved. He hated the limelight, and tried to avoid 
being in front of the camera at all times. 

-Would never lose his temper, and always remained calm in and out 
of the courtroom. A very soft, yet deep voice. 

-Had interesting court technique of pretending he was not paying 
attention and then get up to cross-examine and fire off questions 
to a witness in order to catch them completely off guard. 

-While he was available for anyone, his closest friend was his wife. 

BACKGROUND: 
-Married wife Ruby in 1934. Had six children. 
-John was himself born into a family of eight brothers and sisters. 
-Served in the army during World War II. 

0INTERVIEW WITH MRS.RUBY MCARTHUR. (Jan.17, 1992). 

-John was very upset over the way they were treating Caril even before 
he became her lawyer. He was disgusted by that fact that they kept 
questioning her without the help of legal counsel. 

-John was infuriated when he heard that Sheriff Karnopp and his wife 
would take turns questioning Caril • 

-I can remember very clearly the day he asked if he should represent 
her. He was shaving on a Saturday morning, and he looked at me and 
asked ••• almost my permission. And ofcourse I told him to do what 
he thought was right, and ofcourse I'd stand behind him. But I knew 
once he took the case, he'd be gone for weeks. I mean even if he was 
home he'd still be working. When John took on a case like that - it 
consumed him. 

-I remember always screening the phone calls for him at home during 
the Fugate trial. In fact one man who called from Kansas insisted 
on seeing John, and I explained he'd have to see him at the office. 
Well one Sunday, John was upstairs, this man from Kansas shows up 
at our home and demands to see John, and then pushes right past me 
into the kitchen and thank goodness my oldest boy John Daniel was 
sitting with several of his friends. Well they were all about 18 or 
19 years old and quickly stood up so this guy had no place to go, 



t and he was then escorted out. I remember he had dropped some papers 
which were from a psychiatric center in Kansas. Now the next morning 
he showed up again, and this time I was scared ••• so I called the police 
and they picked him up a short time later and sent him back to Kansas. 

-I remember John lost some clients because of his representing Caril, 
and we both lost some friends who could not understand why on Earth 
John would defend her. And there were the occasional phone calls from 
angry people who hated Caril. 

-Speaking of Merle Reller, the attorney John shared an office with, 
I think John was his only real friend. I didn't much like Reller. 
I think Reller wasted John's time. 

-He was worried about Elmer Scheele, because Scheele was one to play 
tricks in court. And also John knew all the back-up Scheele had as 
far as assistants, police access and any information they needed from 
Charlie. Where John had only himself. As far as Scheele was concerned, 
he would have a bit of a temper ••• and raise his voice quite a bit 
in court. 

-During the trial John developed a nervous stomach, and didn't eat 
very well. John was very tense at times, and I think he would let 
it build up .••. he would worry alot. 

-I don't think he ever took the $8,000.00 he was given for Caril's 
trial, I think might have let Reller have it. I think he wanted them 
to take that money and shove it. 



0INTERVIEW WITH JIM MCARTHUR.(Jan.20,1992_L_ 
-Son of John McArthur. Took over Caril Ann Fugate's case in 
early seventies as her attorney. 

-I was 15 years old back in 1958. I remember reading about the 
Bartlett murders in the evening paper. Panic truly set in after 
the Ward murders, I was home for lunch and heard it over the 
radio. I know this sounds strange, but it was kind of exciting 
in a way. 

-At the time I had a 7 year old brother (Benjamin), a 13 year 
old sister (Suzanne), me at 15, my older brothers at 17 (John 
Daniel) and 21 (Frank), and an older sister at 22 (Linda). 

-My dad was at work when he heard about the murders. 

-I did not realize that my dad was representing Caril until 
two weeks later when I received a phone call from some guy saying 
that they were having a neck-tie party for my dad downtown. 

-During Caril's trial I was attending a parochial school and 
this one Bible teacher I had would attack my father day after 
day for what my father was doing defending this criminal. He 
accused my dad of being worse than she was - and he knew that 
I was his son, but that did not stop him. So finally one day 
I had enough and I stood up and yelled at him for five minutes 
straight, and then left the room. And I remember my classmates 
had supported me, and respected my dad. 

-My dad would bring home alot of his work and occasionally sit 
me down on the stairs and explaini the case to me as it 
developed. I felt very lucky, because he was so involved in 
the case that we(family) rarely had the opportunity to talk 
with him. 

-One day, about two weeks after he took the case, my dad shocked 
me by bringing me along to meet Caril at the York Reformatory 
for Women. My dad told me to ask anything I wanted, and I 
remember being extremely nervous about the whole thing, and 
at first things were very awkward - but after a few minutes 
we were comfortable with each other. And I remember, we were 
about the same age, that I was not fully convinced about her 
story - but after that meeting I was satisfied that she was 
telling the truth. 

-I also remember going along with my dad on trips to Bennet 
and Douglas as he investigated certain aspects of the case. 

-Dad's biggest problem was the public feeling towards Caril. 
He was convinced she was set up from the start, I mean she had 
everyone on Earth asking her questions •.•• she was never advised 
of her rights, or even given a chance explain herself. 



-By far, some of the most dramatic testimony came from when 
both my dad and Scheele questioned Charlie at Caril's trial. 

-I remember one interesting point in the trial when dad was 
holding one of Charlie's guns and was near Charlie who 
instinctively reached for it, I guess to describe what happened, 
and dad pulled back explaining he couldn't let him hold it. 

-Dad's major contention during the trial was that Caril's biggest 
crime was that she had survived. 

-Ten days after the verdict, someone gave information to my 
dad concerning a juror who had made a bet that Caril would fry 
before the trial ever started. Well after getting an affidavit 
from this juror, Walenta, dad tipped off Ninette Beaver at KMTV 
in Omaha so they could get him on film before Scheele and his 
boys could get a hold of him, and posibly change his story. 
Scheele and Fahrnbruch arrived just as Ninette finished, and 
they were not happy. 

-I joined my dad in full around 1963 while I was still in school. 

-I took over myself around 1968, and started arguing the appeals. 

-In 1972 we started on trying on getting her paroled, after 
running out of appeals for a new trial (we had made about nine 
legal appeals over the years) 

-Remember it was Caril who continued to push for vindication 
over the years, and if she just switched to asking for a parole 
she may have been releases alot sooner. 

-In 1976, she was presented in front of the board of Pardons 
& Paroles and she was released. She left within a few days. 
My dad was actually home that day. I saw him a little later 
on that day, and we were both very excited and relieved. 

-Dad was both disgusted and insulted about the fees given to 
him, I mean it should have been easily three times the $8,000.00 
he was given. The courts saying that why should they have to 
pay for Caril's defense, I mean they were saying that it was 
his fault if he spent all that time on the case - as if dad 
should just gotten the case over with without a fight. 

-I tell you when we went to Douglas to interview Sheriff Heflin 
and his wife, they were very much in Caril's favor. One big 
thing we learned on that trip was the fact that Mrs. Heflin 
found the note Caril had written and sent it back to Lincoln 
with the other evidence. That note was a plea for help Caril 
had written and tried to give to someone. Now that was the only 
piece of evidence that disappeared ... the only thing. 
Lincoln police said they never received it. 



TITLE: Lincoln Police Chief 

NAME: Joe T. Carroll 

BORN: 1910, in Alma, Nebraska. / Died in 1990. 

1958 PROFILE: 
AGE: 48 Years Old. 
HEIGHT: 6 foot. 

HAIR: 
WEIGHT: 

Balding/Dark Grey. 
210lbs. 

CHARACTERISTICS: 
-Constantly smoked cigars. 
-Athletic, powerful with a crushing handshake. 
-Very physical with friends and staff - always a slap on the back when 
he greeted you. Had a great sense of Humor. 

-Strong, booming voice. 
-Tough, stubborn Irish. Would take no shit from anybody. 
-Ran a tight, disciplined police force who all respected and admired 
him. He was the boss, and everyone knew it. 

BACKGROUND: 
-Joined Police in 1930, became Chief of Police in 1941 at 31 years 
old (the youngest in the country). 

-Father was a state sheriff, one brother with the F.B.I., another was 
detective. 

-He was born eighth in family of nine. 
-Married wife Marjorie in 1935. Had one son - Joe Carroll Jr.- who 
was 14 years old in 1958 

0INTERVIEW WITH MRS. MARJORIE CARROLL.(Jan.15,1992). 

-On Wednesday, Jan.29,1958, she left card game at friends home after 
news of Ward murders and picked up her son from Junior High. They 
returned home and Joe Jr. got an old rifle from downstairs and sat 
at the kitchen table looking out the window - watching for Starkweather. 

-Joe Sr. had been up for about 44 hours straight working on the case. 
Mrs. Carroll did not see him until after Charlie was caught - Wednesday 
Evening. 

-Joe Sr. called her once and told her not to worry. Just keep the house 
locked up keep Joe Jr. at home. 

-Almost everyone would call Joe Sr. "CHIEF". 

-Joe Sr. had been the fourth recipient of the "J.EDGAR HOOVER AWARD". 

-There had only been seven murders between 1948 and 1958, before Charlie 
got started. 



0INTERVIEW WITH BILL KRIEFEL. 
(LINCOLN JOURNAL REPORTER - 1955 thru Present) 

-John McArthur came across as more of a Columbo than an F.Lee Bailey. 
good lawyer, well respected. 

-Elmer Scheele was a hard-nosed but fair prosecutor, a policeman's 
prosecutor. Short-tempered, a bit cold. Great track record. 

-Joe Carroll was a damn good cop. He and the department took one hell 
of a beating after the Starkweather case. They could have been more 
aggressive, the Lincoln police should have picked up Charlie for 
questioning. 

-Sheriff Merle Karnopp was a good ole boy, a politician - mainly 
because he had to be. He had to please alot of different people. 

-The day the Ward bodies were found it was complete chaos. Sheriff 
Karnopp engaged in a mass deputization at the court house. Alot of 
these new deputies looked a bit like Charlie, so people were scared 
people were going to start shooting each other. 

-Chief Carroll and Sheriff Karnopp were at odds with each other after 
certain actions Karnopp carried out. 

-National Guardsmen were armed with sub-machine guns standing in front 
of the Lincoln bank. 

-The security for Charlie during his trial here in Lincoln was 
incredible, snipers everywhere. They really felt someone was going 
to take a shot at him, yet they paraded him around to re-enforce the 
public that he was definitely in custody. And they had more chains 
on him, I mean it was a show ••. it was the drama of it. 

-Guy Starkweather felt there would be a cloud over the family if 
Charlie was declared insane. He was a piece of work. 

-I hung around with a group of guys back in 56', 57', and we would 
often meet up with Charlie's group. Charlie would stand off by himself 
and he'd have to be called over to do anything. Charlie just didn't 
want to socialize ••• at all. I don't think he was tough at all, he 
was a coward. 



0INTERVIEW WITH PAUL DOUGLAS (Jan.16,1992). 
t· -Wo~ked on Prosecution Team as a Deputy Attorney __ with Elmer Scheele 

against Charlie Starkweather and Caril Ann Fugate in ..!.2_5§.. 

-Charlie admitted killing everyone except the maid. So we had his 
testimony and enough evidence to make an easy case against him. 

-Scheele took statement from Charlie in the car on the way from 
Douglas, Wyoming. 

-Charlie enjoyed talking to County Attorney Elmer Scheele, Deputy 
County Attorney Dale Fahrnbruch and myself. He liked us much more 
than his own defense attorney's Clement Gaughan and William 
Matschullat. 

-I joined Scheele on every murder in Lincoln. It was no big deal 
when Colvert and the Bartletts were killed, ofcourse we started 
getting concerned after Jensen and King were found, and things got 
crazy after the Ward bodies were found. And of all the duties our 
office had to attend to, I hated to have to go to the autopsies •• 
they were the worst, I'd always get ill, or duck out before they 
started. 

-During the Starkweather trial - the only thing we were really 
concerned with was the possibility that the jury might get hung on 
whether to give him death or life. 

-Charlie resisted the insanity plea every step of the way, and it 
was a terrible case for Gaughan to defend ••. and he was a good dramatic 
lawyer, although his assistant Matschullat was sort of a nothing, 
I don't see why Gaughan even had him there. 

-The national exposure was terrible, we hated that. Remember Charlie 
was the first mass murderer to be tried. 

-Scheele was FBI trained, very thorough. Scheele would only spend 
time on one case at a time - that was it, just one. Me and Dale would 
take on six or seven at once, hell - we had to. 

-The Fugate case was tougher since her age may have prevented her 
from being tried in an adult court, but we won that ruling in a 
supreme court decision. 

-And then we didn't have a confession from her admitting to anything, 
but we were able to prove she was not a captive, since she could 
escaped on several occasions. And that was her defense, that she 
was a captive. 

-You got to remember that the community was %100 against her, and 
McArthur was no magician - he also had a very rough time. 

-John McArthur was sort of like Abraham Lincoln, and came across 
that way, he was a very effective defense lawyer. 



t -This is important, you see there was hostility between everyone 
in our office and Reller, but our office all admired and liked John 
McArthur. Reller was never a good lawyer, and I think if McArthur 
had tried this case by himself - it would have been a hell of alot 

· tougher for us to win. We still would have won, but it would been 
much harder. 

-Charlie's testimony was the kicker against Caril, that's what sealed 
the lid. Our office all wondered who killed the maid since Charlie 
did not admit to her death, I mean everbody thought •. heh, who did 
kill the maid. 

-Charlie was the one we really wanted overall. Early on we sensed 
the hostility between Charlie and Caril, and ••. well •.. we brought 
things to Charlie's attention, such as things Caril was saying about 
him in order to get him to testify against her. And we could do that, 
he was our witness. 

-Had Caril's trial ended up as a hung jury, we probably would have 
tried her on the murder of the Ward maid - Lilian Fencl. 

-Joe Carroll was one tough cop, a good chief. He would always grab 
you when he greeted you, shake with one hand - slap you on the back 
on the other. Big family man, loved his wife and kid. 

-Merle Karnopp was a real nice guy. He dealt with the prisoners as 
far transporting them around, jailing and Lancaster county duties. 

-William Fugate, Caril's real father, he wasn't all there. I remember 
poor McArthur was worried what he might say when he showed up outside 
the courtroom. 

-One great little incident that took place during Charlie's trial 
took place when some deputies gun went off out in the hallway by 
accident, and what a noise it made, now ofcourse everyone got scared 
since there were several death threats against Charlie's life so 
the police all surrounded Charlie. 

-One interesting incident at the execution took place 15 minutes 
before, when an older doctor who was to pronounce Charlie dead had 
in fact dropped dead himself of heart attack. Ofcourse the reporters 
said; "That makes 1 2". 
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Michael Larkin 
14242 Ventura Blvd, #209 
Sherman Oaks, CA 91423 

Dear Michael: 

March 18, 1992 

In response to your telephone call of last week, I am following 
up with some of the information you requested about my father, Clem 
Gaughan. 

In 1959, my father was 56 years old. He was 5'8" tall, weighed 
approximately 210-220 lbs, and had a full head of.graying-at-the­ 
temples black hair which he wore parted on the side. He was of 
Irish descent, and fine featured. He would have the beginning of a 
slight stoop to his shoulders. He would wear glasses only for 
reading and would take them off while talking to people, often using 
them to accentuate hand gestures. He was given to white shirts and 
conservative suits. 

My father was a lover of cigars, chewing tobacco, and liquor. 
He smoked several cigars a day and kept a spitoon in his office for 
the rest of the time. His lip was frequently full. He was quick to 
laugh, one of the courthouse 'old guard', and definitely knew his 
way around the powers of the city of that day, although I think the 
term 'good old boy' is a bit of a course connotation for him. While 
he had a professional friendship with most of the principals 
involved in the justice system, he would have been close to Paul 
Douglas and closest to Merle Karnopp, with whom he remained good 
friends until his death. 

Clem was one of 11 children of first generation Irish. They 
were very poor, and he often commented that he had to work from the 
time he was 7 years old sweeping saloons. He grew up a fighter, and 

.he never lost his wariness of the rich, although he was a self-made 
man and would have been considered rich when he died. He loved a 
fight, even to the point of playing devil's advocate. He never lost 
his sense of where he had come from. Therefore, he emphathized with 
the less fortunate. He felt we had a great justice system and that 
guilt or innocence must be proved through the system even if justice 
was not always served. The alternative was chaos. 

Clem was the unofficial public defender of his day. He was 
often court appointed to represent indigent people, and very often 
would perform legal services in exchange for a watch, a promise, or a 
day's work somewhere down the line. He felt those people would 
always come back to him later, maybe even with money in their 
pockets, and they usually did. Therefore, when Starkweather was 
captured, my father had a premonition that he would be appointed to 
represent him. It would have been a thankless appointment in those 
times, terribly unpopular and incredibly sensational. He wanted to 
avoid what he suspected would be in store for his family. On the 
first of February, he and my mother suddenly left on a month long 
vacation in California and Oregon. He figured by the time he 
returned in March the appointment would have been made. However; 



upon his return, he was greeted by numerous messages from the 
presiding judge. In essense, the judge told him that the eyes of 
the nation were going to be on Lincoln, Nebraska, and there was not 
going to be any kangaroo trial. He wanted Starkweather to have the 
best representation. Dad was it. 

You asked me at one point why my father brought Bill 
Matschullat into the case. Although I was never told, I suspect it 
was because of the volume of paperwork associated with such a trial 
and that he simply needed help to keep it organized. Matschullat was 
certainly no trial lawyer. 

In later years, my father was appointed to be Lancaster County's 
first Public Defender. He was very proud of having worked for the 
poor all his life. My mother passed away in 1978, and he finished 
his term and retired, no longer having the hearing or the desire for 
trial work. He died in 1983 at the age of 79. 

I spoke with Dale Fahrnbruch, now a Supreme Court Justice, last 
week. He told me that he had declined to visit with you. When I 
asked him why, he said most of it had to do with how he perceived 
you were going to deal with Caril - that he just didn't think the 
real story would be told. As a comment on that, Charles 
Starkweather told my father, among others, that if he went to the 
chair, she should be sitting on his lap. My father believed that. 
However, when Caril became eligible for parole, he said he thought 
it was only fair. In his opinion, she had served more time than 
most murderers ever did. 

Enclosed you will find a copy of a photograph taken during the 
Starkweather murder trial. From left is deputy Hasson, 
Starkweather, Clem Gaughan, and Merle Karnopp. The smaller picture 
was taken in 1964 and is a good indication of Clem's body type and 
posture. 

Please contact me if you need anything else. 

Very truly yours, 

~~~ !/dtz-'L_, 
Tracy G. Vetter 



"Starkweather" Age Breakdowns 1.J 

Elmer Scheele - 46, dark brown hair, glasses, 611. 

William Romer - 30, dark hair, glasses, 612. 

John McArthur - 48, greying brown hair, 611. 

Robert Ainslie - 29 (looks 22), brown hair, glasses, 5'9. 

Jenette Fox - 32 (looks 37), light brown hair, 5'7. 

Robert Colvert - 21, clean-cut, brown hair, 5111. 

Sheriff Karnopp - 52, always wore hat, 610. 

Robert Jensen - 17, dark hair, glasses, 220 lbs., 5111. 

Carol King - 16, petite, 516. 

Clara Ward - 46, attractive, 517. 

Lauer Ward - 47, receding brown hair, 5111. 

Clem Gaughan - 54, grey hair, heavy-set, 5'10. 

August Meyers - 70. 

Velda Bartlett - 35, light brown hair, shapely, 515. 

Pansy Street - 62, grey hair, glasses, heavy-set, limp, 5'6 

Marion Bartlett - 57, grey/brown hair, wore hat, glasses, 612. 

Bob Von Busche - 18, duck-tail haircut, muscular, 5'11. 

Barbara Von Busche - J7, dark curly hair, 516. 

Mr. Jensen - 42, bald - hair on the sides, 200 lbs., 5111. 

Mrs. Jensen - 40, dark red hair, glasses, plump, 516. 

Mrs. King - 46. 

Warren King - 26. 

Mrs. Heflin - 53. 

Earl Heflin - 57, slicked-back brown 

Mrs. Karnopp - 49, blond-grey hair, glasses, 517. 

Jim McArthur - 12, curly brown hair. 



Gov. Anderson - 48. 

Merle Collison - 37. 

Joe Sprinkle - 29, dark close-cut hair, muscular build, 6'0. 



"STARKWEATHER" Automobile breakdown 

* The Three Main Cars; 

1. Starkweather's car; Dark Grey 1949 Ford. (photo available) 
- Four door sedan, beat-up condition 
- no grille 
- grille area painted red 
- no hub caps on tires 
- License plate# 2-15628 

2. Jensen's car; 

3. Ward car; 

Blue 1950 Ford. 
- excellent condition 
- twin antennae on rear fenders 
- whitewall tires 
- License plate# 2-8743 

Black 1956 Packard. 
- excellent condition 
- License plate# 2-17415 

* The following is a list of additional period autos that may be 
needed throughout the film, bolded autos indicate first 
appearance in script. 

Scene 2; Several period cars and trucks passing Charlie on 
the highway. Starkweather car. 

Scene 3; - Period tractor outside Meyer barn. 

Scene 6; - Starkweather car. 

Scene 9; - Bobby Calvert's auto parked outside Gas Station. 

Scene 10; - Starkweather car. 

Scene 20; - Several Lincoln Police cars, and about half a dozen 
period autos parked in area. In addition, a period 
black hearse. 

Scene 21; - Starkweather car. 



Scene 32; Several period autos in front of High School. 
Starkweather car. 

Scene 48; - Period taxi. 

Scene 59; - Lincoln police car. 

Scene 61; - Lincoln police car. 

Scene 66; - Starkweather car. 

Scene 69; - Period auto. 

Scene 82; - Several Lincoln police cars, plus about eight 
period cars and a black hearse. 

Scene 83; - Period pick-up truck (beat-up condition). 
Starkweather car. 

Scene 91; - Starkweather car. 

Scene 96; - Several period autos. 

Scene 97; - Jensen car. 

Scene 103; - Starkweather car. 

Scene 107; 

Scene 108; 

Scene 110; 

Scene 117; 

Scene 121; 

- Nebraska State Police car. Period auto. 

- Period tractor. Starkweather car. 

- Several Nebraska State Police cars, Lincoln police 
cars and four period autos. 

- Jensen car. 

- Several period autos, Lincoln police cars. 



Scene 123; 

Scene 129; 

Scene 131; 

Scene 134; 

Scene 136; 

Scene 138; 

Scene 140; 

Scene 159; 

Scene 162; 

Scene 169; 

Scene 173; 

Scene 174; 

Scene 176; 

Scene 182; 

Scene 188; 

Scene 194; 

Scene 197; 

- Two period freight trucks, Jensen car, period 
auto. 

- Several period autos. 

- Jensen car. 

- Half a dozen brand new, expensive period autos. 

- Period milk-truck. 

- Sheriffs' auto, plus one period auto. 

- Additional 1956 Packard auto. (not the same as 
main Ward car) . 

- Ward car. 

- Ward car. 

- Ward car. 

- At least a dozen Lincoln police and Nebraska State 
police cars and several period autos. 

- Several period autos. 

- Period u.s. army trucks and jeeps. 

- Douglas Police car. Ward car. 

- 1957 Buick. Ward car. 

- Green period car. 

- Unmarked police car. 



Scene 209; 

Scene 213; 

Scene 214; 

Scene 222; · 

Scene 247; 

Scene 248; 

Scel'le 250; 

Scene 251; 

Scene 262; 

Scene 273; 

Scene 289; 

Scene 296; 

Scene 298; 

Scene 299; 

Scene 319; 

Scene 326; 

Scene 331; 

Scene 352; 

- Ward car. 

- Unmarked police car. 

- Douglas police car. 

- A dozen period cars and trucks.;- 

Two unmarked police cars. Douglas police car. 
Several period cars. 

- Several police cars - Wyoming I.D. 

- Eight Wyoming and Nebraska State police cars. 

Several period autos. Douglas police car. 
Wyoming state police cars. 

- Jensen car. 

- Half a dozen period and local police cars. 

- Two period cars. 

- Jensen car. 

- Starkweather car. 

- Jensen car. 

- Jensen car. 

- Ward car. 

- Period autos. Lincoln police cars. 

- 1976 auto. 
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James McArthur on Caril Fugate Case 

I received a telephone call from Judge Harry Spencer 

who was a judge of the district court in Lincoln in January 

of 1958. In that telephone call, he told me that he was 

appointing me as the attorney for Caril Ann Fugate, a 

fourteen year old girl who was being held as a prisoner, and 

actually, confined in the Lincoln State Hospital, which was 

a mental institution for the reason that as a fourteen year 

old, it would be unlawful to put her in jail where people 

were usually held pending trial for serious crimes. 

This was possibly the first time that there had been a 

series of murders for no very apparent reason which were 

unconnected, so far as the victims were concerned, but which 

followed a pattern indicating that they were committed by 

the same person or persons. 

The mother and step father and three year old half 

sister of Caril Ann Fugate were murdered in the family home 

in north Lincoln by being shot, stabbed, and beaten. The 

bodies were placed in an old shack in the back of the house 

and covered with an old rug. A few miles away, a young man 

and his girlfriend, Robert Jenson and Carol King, were 

seized and taken to an old abandoned storm cave on the sight 

of a former country school. They were shot and dumped in 
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this old cave, and a few rocks and pieces of lumber thrown 

over the door of the cave. 

Both Charles Starkweather and Caril Fugate waved 

extradition and were returned to Lincoln, Nebraska and were 

charged with the murder of Robert Jenson and Carole King. 

And Charles Starkweather was in the county jail, and Carol 

King, uh, Caril Ann Fugate was being held in the Lincoln 

State Hospital as a prisoner. 

Charles Starkweather was 19 years old, he was 

u~educated, extremely near sighted, rather small for his 

years and had been employed as a helper on a garbage truck, 

but had no significant record of any kind up until that 

time. This was the situation when I received the telephone 

call that I was appointed to defend Caril Ann Fugate. 

In order to understand the problems presented in this 

case, in making a defense, and in fact investigation the 

case, it is necessary to remember that these events happened 

before the great reforms in the handling of criminal cases 

and in criminal justice made by the Earl Warren court, that 

is the Supreme court of the United states and which required 

all federal and State courts (TAPE CHANGE) to change their 

proceedures. And, to actually, according to accused 

persons, the rights garuanteed in the constitution. 
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In 1958 it was common practice to hold an accused 

person in communicate to prevent such person to talking to 

an attorney, or in fact, anyone else for that matter until 

the law enforcement people, both prosecutors and police, had 

questioned the suspects all they wanted to. There was no 

such thing as to the right to the assistance or the advice 

of an attorney or the protection of search warrants. And 
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the result frequently was, and certainly in the Fugate case 

was, that before the prisoner saw a friendly face, the 

police and her accusers had built up a formidable case by 

extremely questionable means. 

When I talked to Caril Ann Fugate for the first time, 

she had been repeatedly been questioned by various police 

officers and the county attorney and his deputy. The 

statements had been typed up, including long question and 

answer sessions. And of course I knew from experience with 

other cases that these statements would be extremely vast, 

and of dubious value in assessing what really happened. And 

of course, when the subject was a fourteen year old child, I 

knew perfectly well the officers could get anything at all 

into her statement, and she would be completely powerless to 

do anything about it. 

When I first saw Caril Ann Fugate, she was very 

frightened and stewed(??). She weighed about 85 pounds. 

She was an 8th grade student, and of course at that time, an 

orphan, since her mother and step father and baby sister 

were dead. After doing my best to put her at ease, I 

established a sufficient degree of confidence that she was 

willing to tell me her story which was rather simple and 

straight forward. She had known Charles Starkweather for 

some time, and had gone with him a few times, but they had 

broken up simply because she did not particularly like him. 
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He was something of a braggart, and rather crude in his 

ways. And she had not seen him for some weeks prior to that 

day in January of 1958, when she came home from school, got 

off the school bus at her front door, and when she opened 

the door she was confronted by Charles Starkweather and a 

gun. Her family was no where in sight, but he told her they 

were all right, but under his control. There was no 

evidence of anything being wrong in the house, as far as a 

struggle taking place. 

Charles Starkweather held her there several days, and 

she became more frightened as time went on. He tied her up, 

threatened various things, and when the police came calling, 

he managed to put them off, and she became convinced that 

Charlie Starkweather could just about do as he pleased. He 

finally left the house and took her along on this long, 

bizarre journey of bloodshed and violence in which she said 

she was constantly in fear of her life, and several times 

attempted to get messages to people, when they were close 

enough, without success. And that while she did not see 

most of the murders, she was close by under circumstances 

where she could not get away, nor were there other people 

close enough that she could make any contact. She became 

more and more tired until she could barely walk, and finally 

in Wyoming, when the police closed in, she broke away. 
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My investigation was followed and mainly cooberated 

what Caril Fugate told me, and certainly exposed some ,um, 

actions by the law enforcement authorities that were 

illegal, even by the standards of that day. I went to 

Wyoming, and talked to the Sheriff who made the capture and 

his wife, and they told me that CAF was just simply 

hysterical, and unable to talk coherently while there. I 

found that she had been induced to sign a waiver of 

extradition in which she expressly released all law 

enforcement people of any liability. I also talked to the 

state patrol officer who was first on the scene who actually 

stopped Charles Starkweather at the scene of the last 

murder, and he also cooberated pretty much as to the events 

that happened there. 

I went over the statements taken from Caril Fugate and 

I could find evidence that these statements were simply 

manipulated by the people taking them. At no time did Caril 

say anything in the statements which incriminated her. In 

fact, at all times she insisted that she was a prisoner 

herself and unable to escape. But the statements were 

managed in such a way that they were given grossly false 

impressions of what happened. 

A good illustration, in one of the statements taken by 

the Deputy County Attorney, Caril Fugate related in detail 

what happened in a murder in which she told me she had not 
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even seen. The Deputy Attorney asked her how she knew 

these things, that she was telling, and she said, "Well, you 

told me that yourself yesterday." It became quiet apparent 

that the procedure followed in taking Caril's statement was 

to ask her about all the events in detail in the absence of 

a reporter to take notes, and then to go over it several 

times, and then finally call in the shorthand reporter, and 

by leaving out certain questions, a very misleading and 

incriminating statement could be obtained. And the person 

giving the statement would not realize what was happening, 

because to such a person it was simply just repeating parts 

which had just been gone over repeatedly. The finished 

statement could be made to look about any way the questioner 

wanted it to look. 

I discovered other things in the course of my 

investigation. For example, Caril told me about writing a 

note while she was in captivity and putting it in her 

pocket; hoping she could pass it to somebody. The Sheriff 

in Wyoming and his wife both told me about this note, and it 

was turned over to the law enforcement people. Something 

happened to the note, and it never could be obtained from 

the state. 

Another circumstance which was very important was that 

I was able to determine with absolute certainty, that at the 

time Caril Ann Fugate's family was murdered, she was in 



school. The time of the murders was established pretty 

accurately. The teacher in the school, and the bus driver, 

and other students verified the fact that Caril was in the 

school, and could not possibly be present when her family 

was murdered. This circumstance had particular significance 

because the newspapers, the radio, the TV reports constantly 

referred to the murder of Caril Fugate's family occured in 

her presence and with her participation. This was continued 

and encourage by the law enforcement people even after it 

was established beyond a doubt that such could not possibly 

been the case. This sort of thing merely illustrates what 

happened to build up a tremendous prejudice which rendered 

the trial little more than a farce. 

I felt that the only possibility in a defense was to 

bring out every single fact possible so that anyone who 

examined the full record could not avoid defending the truth 

and could not help but seeing what had actually happened to 

this girl, although the hope of an acquittal at that time 

and under those conditions, was out of the question. The 

uh, state of the law, and the state of law enforcement, 

particularly in cases which received great public notice and 

in which thee was a lot of adverse publicity, is well 

illustrated in the Fugate Matter. 

At that time there was a statute in Nebraska which 

provided in most simple terms that when any person at the 
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age of 16 was involved in the case in which such a child was 

accused of a crime, the court must transfer the case to the 

juvenile court. No discretion was allowed, and no 

exceptions were provided under the simple, unmistakeable 

meaning of that statue .. The Caril Ann Fugate case must be 

transferred to the juvenile court. The Dean of the Law 

School at the University of Nebraska came to me and said he 

would like to assist in trying to get the case transferred 

to the juvenile court because a failure by the court to do 

so would be in gross violation of the statute and a 

violation of the constitutional rights of Caril Fugate. I 

told him I welcomed his help, and we would certainly do my 

best, but my experience in such cases was that either the 

law nor the constitution would receive much notice in any of 

the courts of Nebraska in the Fugate case. After trials on 

this matter in the County Court, the District Court, and the 

Supreme Court of Nebraska, we got a final decision from the 

Supreme Court of Nebraska that the Csril Ann Fugate case 

would not be transferred to the Juvenile Court because it 

was not a case. There was no way logic could support this 

decision, but of course it had wide public support, and the 

result was that the case was not transferred to the juvenile 

court. 

After the wide spread reforms after a series of 

decisions of the Supreme Court of the United states under 

Chief Justice Earl warren, it is difficult for people to 
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believe before that time, criminal justice was little more 

than a farce, but I had learned that over many years of 

experience. 

Charlie Starkweather's case was tried first. And I sat 

through that, which was a lot of learning all that I could 

that might help trying the Fugate case. Even though Charles 

stark was extremely vicious, it also appeared rather obvious 

that he was far from sane throughout the trial. His 

attitude was that the County Sheriff and the County Attorney 

were his best friends, and he referred to them as "his best 

pals", "his buddies", where as his own attorney was his 

enemy because he was trying to prove he, Starkweather, was 

insane, and of course that was an insult to Charles 

Starkweather. 

Starkweather was the most enthusiastic witness against 

himself, and of course, he was convicted of 1st degree 

murder, and sentenced to death. He was the last.person to 

be actually executed in the state of Nebraska for a great 

many years, because within a short time, reforms mandated by 

the Warren court became effective, and further executions 

were held up for more than 20 years. However, he was still 

living, and was the states prime witness against Caril 

Fugate. 
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In her trial, there was no witness who claimed to have 

any personal knowledge or information that Caril Fugate had 

done anything wrong, except for Charlie Starkweather. He 

testified at great length, and I questioned him for two days 

on cross examination and he testified on the affirmative and 

on the negative with every possible notification both ways 

on just about every point. He would say Caril was totally 

innocent and unadvised, without knowledge, and then a few 

minutes later would say exactly the reverse. 

The whole thing was ludicrous of course. But under the 

atmosphere that prevailed at that time, people from the 

highest to the lowest believed what they wanted to believe. 

I was a post(??) many times by people both well meaning and 

otherwise told me to expect Caril to get the death sentence. 

I never did believe that. I simply could not believe that 

even with all the fury and the passion that prevailed, that 

12 people would go so far as impose the death sentence, 

when they had to know, if they would face the facts, that 

the case was grossly misrepresented by the state. 

Caril testified, and her story was never shaken, and it 

was consistent, and she testified to about the same thing 

she had told me on the first occasion I had interviewed her. 

She was found guilty, but she was not sentenced to death. 

Within a matter of days, I learned that one of the jurors 

had placed a bet that Caril would get the death penalty. He 
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had made that be before he was called to serve on that 

particular case. 



WEAPON CHART ON STARKWEATHER MURDERS. 

1. Robert Colvert - Shot with 12 gauge shotgun, which was taken 
from garage of Bob Von Busch's cousin, Sonny. 

2. Marion·martlett - Shot with .22 rifle (Winchester Pump Model) 
w~ich was borrowed from Rodney Starkweather for 
hunting. 

3. Velda Bartlett - Shot with . 22 rifle (Winchester Pump Model). 

4. Betty Jean Bartlett - Killed with hunting knife. 

5. August Meyer - Shot with sawed off .410 shotgun (Stevens ·model 
59A) which belonged to Marion Bartlett. 

6. Bobby Jensen Jr. - Shot with .22 rifle (Winchester Pump Model) 
which was taken from August Meyer. 

7. Carol King - Shot with .22 rifle (Winchester Pump rifle) taken 
from August Meyer. 

8. Clara Ward - Killed with hunting knife. 

9. Lillian Fencl - Killed with knife. 

10. C.Lauer Ward - Shot with .22 rifle (Winchester pump rifle) 
taken from August Meyer. 

11. Merle Collison - Shot with .22 rifle (Winchester pump model) 
taken from August Meyer. 



"Starkweather" Costume Breakdown; 

TO: Judy B. Swartz 
FR: Michael G. Larkin 

Throughout the script there are number of distinct costume 
changes dealing with both Caril and Charlie, but there are very 
few descriptions given to any of the other principals. So it is 
important to study the following videos/films; 

1. Caril & Charlie. 1988 WOWT-TV Documentary. 
2. "Caril"; Growing up in Prison. 1972 NBC Documentary. 
3. Starkweather News Footage. 1958-1976. 

In addition to the video, there is a book entitled "STARKWEATHER; 
THE STORY OF A MASS MURDER", by William Allen, which gives 
excellent descriptions of almost every character's clothing. 

The following is a dress breakdown for each of the main 
characters with {P)=Photo available & (F)=Film available: 

Charlie Starkweather - Charlie normally wore tight, low-riding 
blue jeans, beat-up dark brown cowboy boots, and a heavy, black 
motorcycle jacket with the collar usually turned up. Extremely 
nearsighted, he also reluctantly wore rimless wire-frame glasses 
whenever he drove or watched TV, ect .. His dark red hair was 
always oiled up and combed in a ducktail, with the hair pulled up 
to make pompadoured curls. When Charlie was captured in Wyoming, 
he was wearing this very same outfit. {P) (F). 

Caril Fugate - Caril had medium-long dark brown hair that she 
always wore in a ponytail. During school hours she wore wool 
skirts above the knee, and either full or cardigan sweaters over 
a blouse. Charlie gave her a pair of white majorette boots that 
she wore everywhere. Away from school she would often throw on 
some jeans, a man's shirt with the sleeves rolled up, and as 
usual· - the white boots. While Charlie would never be without 
his leather jacket, Caril was the same way about a dark-colored 
scarf that she often wore around her head. (P) (F). 

Bobby Colvert - Only seen once in which he is wearing a white 
Unionalls worksuit that is in need of a good cleaning. Colvert 
must also be wearing a wedding-band. His short dark hair was 
parted on the side and he used brill-cream. {P). 

Pansy street - No set style, but she usually wore plain, second­ 
hand dresses, and a dark-colored overcoat. In addition, Pansy 
always wore glasses and crucifix around her neck. (P) {F). 

Jonette Fox - complete example of what the 1958 career-woman wore 
at that time. From the make-up to the conservative pearls, she 
was very fashionable without being flashy. {F). 



Elmer Scheele - Usually wore double-breasted suits with piqued­ 
lapels. Very careful with his appearance at all times. Stylish, 
but never flashy, Scheele's dark hair was neatly slicked back. 
He also wore glasses, period horn-rimmed style. (P) 

Sheriff Karnopp - Always wore one of three hats, from a dark 
fedora to a conservative suede cowboy hat. Was often 
photographed wearing single-breasted sport-jackets with long wool 
overcoats. His ties were always thin and smart. A chain-smoker 
who would often be seen lighting Charlie's cigarettes. (P) (F). 

Velda Bartlett - With very little money, the petite woman dressed 
as best she could. Although with a 2 1\2 year-old child, she was 
often had an apron tied around her waist. (P). 

Marion Bartlett - Not overly concerned with his appearance, he 
would usually wear baggy pants and plain shirts buttoned to the 
top with no tie. He wore rimless wire-framed glasses. (P) 

Rodney Starkweather - Usually wore a variety of stylish plaid 
shirts, complete with jeans. Slicked back red hair and long 
sideburns. (P). 

Gus Meyer - Probably had a total of three or four old shirts that 
he wore with his jean overalls. Add a worn-out farm jacket and a 
beat-up cowboy hat and you have old Gus. 

Warren King - Not much is known about him, but I suspect at 26 he 
was probably wearing plain-colored dress shirts and straight-leg 
pants. No tie, or sport-jackets. 

Carol King - Very conservative, thin bright-colored sweaters over 
white blouses with a small crucifix or pendant around her neck. 
Long skirts and pat-n-leather shoes with white socks. (P). 

Mr. Robert Jensen Sr. - Plain work shirts and loose-fitting 
pants. Construction boots or shoes. (P) (F). 

Lauer Ward - Top of the line ·everything, but conservative. This 
was a millionaire who had money and he dressed accordingly right 
down to his gold tie clip and cuf-links. (P). 

Clara Ward - Sarne as her husband, high society conservative. An 
extremely classy woman. (P)> 

Lillian Fencl - Simple, sweet dresses for the maid. She would 
most likely be wearing an apron, and she wore glasses. (P). 

Gov. Anderson - Dressed very well, like his friend Lauer Ward, 
but his style was more refined with tweeds and dark ties. 



Robert Ainslie - The Douglas, Wyoming Chief of Police wore a 
basic police uniform with a single-breasted jacket complete with 
matching pants. He also had a badge on his left chest pocket, 
and a badge on the center of his police hat. In addition, he 
wore horn rim glasses. (P) (F). 

Bill Romer - The Wyoming Deputy wore a cowboy hat and horn-rim 
glasses, along with a shirt and tie covered with a thick 
wool/nylon coat. His beige pants had a dark stripe running down 
the sides.· (P) (F) . 

Clem Gaughan - Flashy dresser who loved to put on a show. Very 
polished look, more like a salesman than a lawyer. Often carried 
gold-plated pens sticking out of his suit-jacket pocket. (P). 

John McArthur - Very humble, reserved man who dressed how he was. 
Not very concerned with his clothes, and his suits and sport 
jackets were probably a few years old. Very drab colors. 
(P) (F) • 



SUMMARY OF FUGATD R~FLECTIDNS, JANUARY 26, 1992 

l, Charlie reassured people h0 would not harm them. Not one 

v j c t i m r e f; l :c:; t •~ c1. 

2, Charlie justified his actJons saying victims were a 

th re at t o h 1 m . H e p e r c e l. v e c1 th f! m a s a pp r o a c l·i i n g h i m , e v en 

though in actuality they wer~ retreating, passive or even tied 

up. 

3. He would be c a Lm , but •:if> h1; b ec a m e mere a9it;;1terJ, she 

w o u 1 d l a t. e r o n s e e t h a t t h i f:. "' e1 ::, c~ b 1..: i l d - \: p t o s o m ~ t y r· c:: o f 

incident. 

4. Caril believed him each time he said he would not harm 

th e V i C U Ill S • She n o w f e e l.s it was Lmp e r a t i v e t o b e Ll.e v e this 

to rn e1 in t ;'1 J t I he r own comp o r; u i:· e . 

5. She felt. t h e t if hFJ would di) this to these v Lc t i m s , h e 

would do it to her or her family. 

G, On two oc ce s f.o n s she s a y s as she w it n e s s ed t h e kil]jn,Jc, 

s h e c o u l cl s e e h e r. f., e 1 f s c r- e am i n g a s s h e s e e m e c1 t o b e s t ~i ri (1 j 1 1 (j 

besidm h~r~elf-•but couldn't hear the screaming. 

7. Charlie gave b e r a choice of e i t h e r m a s t.u rb a t Ln q her or 

she could do hjm, 

fear she did hirn. 

8 , The re w o u l d be l on g p e r i o d s o f s j_ 1 enc e a s th e y r c) (1 e , 

She didn't want h i m t.o uc h in o her, so out of 

p u n c t u a t e cl by mono 1 ogu t:: s t h a t h a d no re 1 e v a n c e to wh d t wa rJ 

h app e n i n q 

though he 

or even 

s t e r t e d 

a c kn o 1-1 1 e d g i n g 

in the middle 

her 

of a 

presence. It WtH.: 

o o nv e r s a t.Lcn and 

as 

then 

***EHD***·· 
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MEMO 

p. 1 

To: Michael Larkin, FaXE~d lo (818) 9£36--82:?6 

From: A. James McArthur 

Date: December 21, 19fJ2 

Re : C <> nv e r :~ a t ·i on ~; w i t. h ca r i 1 

1 tu l l<c)d 1 o r.,u· i l YEl::;tNdriy by phone nnd n!-;kc~d her the qucs t ions you pv.;c-d to 1n(:1 
Friday ev1.:111ing and lwrl:i1,;i1 and J also w11 pr(•vidit1(/ info1·n,r1tion Ir om tho tlin,1,} 
hour t s l k 1 had wi l h Cari l on tho Sunday fo'l'lowing Thanl,.s~rivlng. l will l i s t tl1t) 
[nformat ion I obtained in my t a l ks with he, as l think of it. 

1. cart l and h1•:ir family wE:11·1: mombors of the Nd2a1·ene Church p1 iur to tho 
incident. She told w, thti1' they had pret 1 y much s topped goi,18 to church , 
however, s inco hf.H mo t hot 's d i vorr.c f1u111 her f a t her. I got U1P in1presr.io11 
that was l)eul.l1'.::,;_, d i vorce c arr i ed qu i t e a s t i qma in that churc.h at llwl 
time as t t is u very fundarn1mlali~;l church. 

2. Car i l wet~:; v01·y happy to hcid1· abou1 Urn new w i tncs s you told rn(: ab,,1,1 last 
week . She conf i rn1(➔d wha l tlw doput'y told you about nu111r.~,· r·u (\J£: 11(1 to 
i nt er vene between Charlie aml i;r.~1 .. i nk l c , She told us that m. ·,.he rw1 rrom 
U10 Packard tu Romc~,·•s vohi cl e i:.l1r.• thuuuld :-Jw would Gl~t n ll111h:1 in tlw 
back n1 ,,1ny t irne , Sh0 doeim't know huv'i long they woro in the U1i" bofu10 
Stlwkwoatlwr left b:11 s.a i d nomH1" did 1Kdl1i11SJ to !':lop Cha,··1 ic:. Slw :-:.uid 
that aftc, St:1,·kwr.itt1·l·i(.:/' toc:ik off U1ti/ d1·c,ve on inio Dougli% ,~'.·, if 11CJ1.hi1,~J 
had happ()IK':l. t~o ligl,ts or r,·iren'.:;. She couldn't believe, Rc1111e1· had tf,,:• 
nerved tu fi~ilit Sp1·inhle for tht~ 10w,11·c1 ,nonoy. She had not Ln1,w1, that. 

3. I asked C,u .. il about what TV show~, d1~'. und Gr1arlit.• \'vdld1nd in 1'.1S7-~~n nnd 
she remombei-cd wat(.hin'J TY with h·im bLit said it didn't n1ak(: nn::I, of an 
iinp, .. e~,:-;·ic.m on hc,i·. She belir.>V~J!; it pr()bably would have bt:(!11 ei1111.·1 old 
dGtect.ivc.'i or w,.)-.;;l1::1·1d, She said Cli.:ir 1 i,~, would r:ifton fanta•_:;iz<:' at::oul l>l:ing 
a guninan fr1 Ult! fnshion of B·illy the Kid, When l p1·e::,sod her on I\L~ 
fantasi(-:>~; sho ~; .. 'lid th&t h<3 actua11y would say thn1: he had bt'eil born too 
late, U1,il he 1;hm/ld huvn boon born in tho old W(t~;t.. She liclh:V\:'.; he: 
would l i l<u to have r- i dden with tlw old ti me gang'.:: l i l<u the Jwn1~:; u, Da Ho, 1 
gan~s wll'i<:11 one ti11w opentt,~d in thif; nrea, rt foct, yot.t mr~y be 
interosted to know ih1:l.t there is in Lincoln a place known a~, "liobboi-~, 
Cavo" which i~; n ~:rnHhtohe. h,1tllr,1l cave locatmJ 1t<.!~H tho p<.,>1;1tl!ll1 i,Hy 
Wl)ic:h, 1<?gGnd hth it, wa,., used by J1';!'.\'.•~e ,/Arne~; t,nd oUw,· out.liiw~·,. I clidn' t 
think to a~,k hG'r whether ·Hwy ovN· wont tlvJ1·e. It ww; a very popular 
place for· couples to go at Uvlt tin11:; and, in fad, 1 h,NCJ. lwcu1 tfh1r♦;! for· 
h·igh ~~choul part ic~, tiboul t.ha1 l in10:), 

o/(t\~ 

4. Ivmy previcA1::; conv1.:>1·~;i:llion wHh Cc.tri1 jur.~t aftcff Thank!;givit,u I askc!d her 
wht1t wn!, the diffol'l"i1ice betwnon thu~,c, f~t,11·1<woathr.'r kilh.,<J wid tl11y,,1), such 
as H1(~ farmer who helpfJd thom get unstuck FJftN the teena(w,· kill ·ing:·,, 
whom h(: did not harn,. She srl'id ~:ll,.\ th()ught it. was that tliu:;c: wl,u111 liu d·id 
not harm he1d not cro~;sed hi 111 fr1 any w,iy, 1 asked her how RuLiert Jen~:;en 
hnd cro~·,sod lli1n f:inco 3hci ~;aid th<; t1::ic~nil'.Jers cc,opc:ri-iled i11 (W(~1-y wny. She 
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replfod tlwr when they first got into tho cat· Jensen asked StarkwN1thor 
for the gunf; they wcro carrying. Starkwc,'ilher rep l i ed that t he gut·i~; wcrc 
unloaded whl ch f-E":e1'11~d to sat i sf y Jenu~n. But. she th inks Ui..il tha l minor 
crossl ng of Strffkwea ther was «nounh to convince hi 111 that ,Jem;0n was r1 
potent in l threat evr~n though hi? did eVHYl 11 i lt<J Stat'kwGHthor asked him to 
do. 

5. With reuerd to tho \>h11·d house ldl'ling'.~ :-;hi: .. told w> that r;he w,.1::. tHv1wnri:• 
until after Sh8 was in custody that the ma i d was deaf , She thnuJht she 
ei ther cl'idn1t under s t and on0l i sh or· had n f:p<:~<:ch impcd imont , Sho i::;aid sho 
tried to t e l l hot· that she, car i l, was not helping Stiu·kwoc:itlicr. They 
went into lliu bathroorn whorc !..ilic lwanl thrj f·ighl with \'Jard c111d UH.i shc.t . 
She know whd t hftd hnpperwd. St arkwe a t 11,~>1 came to the ba 1 hr oom nnd told 
hor they better come out then. Sl10 wc.1:·; afraid n(,1. to. She doc":;ii't know 
why he killed e i t her the rnaid 01· Mis. Wan:l £:lXCr.:>pl l ha l they W<:111:) pn1,,·,;1tit1l 
wi tnesscs. Ne'ither- did w1ythit1LJ U1;1I could l1l1VP b(~t!/l in1erprtt,cd as a 
thr e a t tu him . 

6. J asked Cn1·il 'if she would I.>,.➔ wil'lin9 to 1111=1(,d ra·i1u1.,.1 [lull~ t.mfore filn1i111~ 
bogan and talk to hot·· about he1· 0xpn1· i,)1H.•.':, She told me th:-ii slH·i wc,uld 
very n1uc:h likr:) 1o du that. You rnay br:! intorc~;tod 1o know that whc'tl she 
wa::; h0r·8 ~;r)'lt:il'al wo0ks aoc, dit~ e;:p1·w..,'.~Hl great confidti11ce in yc1u n1·,d f~eh; 
H)eit )'ULJ h,wo Ellways fovelod with her. AlthoLJ~Jh she t;till wii,lws the 
story wN-on't !Jein';l dune at "11 she i~_; resignc,d to 1.he fact that .0r~nv~l1iHl/ 
would do it and is alnd iha1 you n1·e involved ir, H. For 1.ho1 ren5.Q111 sho 
is now willing to give you l:i~:;'._~L.;lctnco in S8Ging that sho if; poi 1r'c.1yt:d 
ac(;ura1o1y and fr.l·irly. Let me know if you want lo clo 1his and I wil1 
contact ho,· fo1 Yt:>U about setti119 :~011112Llii118 up. 

7, I have ll tr"erriendou:;; re~.;pi:)ct few 0rii:111 01,11111:l1<:Y as an acto1· and think he 
can bring a lo1 to llie rolt::,. I would vct'Y much like- to nw<~t l,ini bi':,foro he 
ste.1ds hH, role to givo him some id~a of who 111y foHw1· ww;, how ho 
conducted himself both inside and outs·idu the cour·troorn, and, mo~:;t 
impo1·tm1tly, what rnotivoted him tr.:i k8c~p on with tl)i!:O cn';;o. I th·ink 
knowing that is essential to wHi•.H'\.:t1-111din9 why my fathor Wi;ti:; i:;o d1.'idict11c:!d 
to seeing tlm1 jut;t i(,e ul1 iinalr:ily pt·ENi1·il for Caril, t➔ven HH:>t.1::3!1 it nr:Nfir 
really did. 1 think Brian l<nowinr; who my fothc'11· really w~:;0; will add 
greatly to his poi-tra;al of hitn, and hopt)fully, add to hi!, t0::.;p<~c1 .fo1· 
what my father tried to do in this caso, and what he trhid to toad1 nw 
about thE:1 actual administrn1.-ion of justice uncfot· our sy:::1e111 of 
juri~-;prudenct':. Dad taught mr~ moro th,1n l<IW in this case, he taught rn~ tht':' 
mean·ing of pt· inc-ipk, dedication to a caw.;o you bcd ·iow is r·ight, and how 
important, And really fragil0, our constih,tional rights really an), 

Jirn McA1·tt1ur 
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~ARTLETT, Mr.,Marion7 
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OA-4-58 

SUMMARY OF GROSS ANATOMIC FlNOINGS 

l, Apparent gunshot wound of skull with apparent entrance over vertex of skull and 
with associated skull fractures, inttacerebral hemorrhage, maceration of right 
occipital lobe of brain and with s'cattering of metallic and bone fragments in subs­ 
tance of brain particularly the right posterior areas (See above descriptions). 

2, Marked subdural and subarschnoid hemorrhage. with cerebral edema. 
3, Multiple soft tissue lacerations of skin and deeper structures of neck, posted.or 

thorax, etc. - see above. 
4. Multiple ptevious old surgical operative procedures in upper abdomen with chole- 

~ystectomy and gastroeterostOJny, 
5. Ea~ly post mo~tem degenerative changes in •oft tisbue$, 
6. Early freezing of soft tiaauss of body. 
7. Mild patchy aortic arterioaclero,is, 
8. Chronic bronchitis ~ith bullous emµhyeem8, 
9. Chronic fibrous pleuritia - bilateral. 
10. Bilateral chronic fibrocsseous gra·nulomata of upper lobes ol each lung. 
11. Chronic pcridplenitis. 
12, Numerous upper abdominal edbesion tags secondary to o1d operative procedur6s. 
13. Aspiration of lioody mucous in larynx, trachea and bronchi, 
14, Congestion and edeain of lungs. 

FHT/sbh 

~ ~LI~ I<"\ 7:..,_.~·',; ,r' y ' /~~~,...I ~' oV"; 
Ota, Tanner, Miller & Papenfuss 

by Dr, tanner 

\ 
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for a distance of approximately 6 cm. Epidural hemorrhage in these .areas is minimal. 

Dura and ·durd sinuses .. the dun appears intact• 'l'here 1s moderate tlagenerdbed 
s~bdural hemorrhage of relatively minimal character. 

teptomeninges - there is marked congestion of the leptomenige8 with rather diffuae 
subaracbnoid hemorrhage over the brain, This, however. is most marked over the 
left frontal region. 

Brain• weight ia 1090 gms, There is some flattening of the convolutiona and narrowing 
of the commissures. On section homogeneous grey and white brain tissue in which the.e 
.a architectural markinga prominent and distinct throughout, There is a good deal 
of hyperemia of the brsin substance with rare petachiae. No avulsion of brain tissue 
nor di~tinct laceration of the brein ia seen. 

Basal vcsae Ls .. i,1tact. Not remarkable. 

Pituitary - unchansed. 

Base of skull - as previouGly mentioned. t GROSS ANATOMIC SUMMARY 

l, Multiple 8kull fractures including: 
A~ Fracture of left frontal bone with overlying lacerations of skin and with 

extension of fracture.over base of skull in anterior fosoa to involve the 
left sphenoid bone, greater wing. 

B. Fracture of occipital bone, posterior foasa, right, 
C. Depressed fracture of left posterior frontal bone with overlying laceration 

of .scalp, 
D. Fracture of left posterior parietal bone With overlying laceration of scalp. 

2. Fracture of mandible in ~idline. 
3, Subarachnoid hemorrhage, most marked overleft frontal lobe, and subdur~l hemorrhag• 

with cerebral edema and hyperemia. 
4. Laceration of skin of neck at angle of mandible on left with extension deep into 

structures of neck, 
5. Puncture wound, skin of base of neck on right, posterior. 
6. Abrasion and ecchymosia of skin over manubriu:m of •ternum. 
7. Hemorrhage into soft tissuea of neck, relatively miniinal. 
8, Edema and ~onsestion, lungs. 
9. Retained food material in stomach. 

HLP/abh Oro, ~~;;,;;;/auc:~>1~-- 
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is eseentially negative and the caLvariUlll !ntact. Removal of the calvarium reveals 
no evidence of ep Ldur a l , aubdur e l , or sisn:t.ficant s ub a r ac hno Ld hemorrhage over the 
hemispheres. The dural veua sinuses are clear. There is same aub e r ac hno Ld staining 
with blood and some extravasat1on of blood in the posted.or fossa psrticul'arly on 
the right side. There is no menin5eal exudate. The brain :la removed fron,. the skull 
in the usual fashion and is found to weigh about 1570 gms. The vessels of th@ Ci~cle 
of Willis are normally arranged. The right cerebellar hemi,phere end right side of 
the medulla~and pon, aho~ iome blood tinged fluid and appear to be slightly soft but 
no actual lead pellet penetration can be de~onstrated in this a~ea. Left he~isphere 
of cerebellum is negative. Cerebral hemispheres appear quite normal but on cut sur­ 
face reve~L a s~all amount of bloody fluid in the ventricles indicating same intra­ 
ventricular hemorrhase probably e~tendins upward from the fourth ventricle. Thero is 
distinct blood on the £ourth ventricle and this wi11 be described below. No other 
focal lesions are sean Within the brain substance itself. Tbe ~eendymd1. linings of 
the ventricles are clear, No significant arte~io$clerosis identi£ied. 

After removal of the brain~ careful palpation and disection of the foramen mdgnuin, 
removal of the upper cervical spinal cord and investigation of the spinal canal 
reveals that there is definite lead shot inside the dura and beneath the dura ex­ 
ternally in the region of cha posterior portion of the £oraroen magn\ll'.Q, the right 
side of the posterior cenricsl region, particularly in the first and second cervic~l 
regions. There appears to be fracture of the po■terior p,>rtion of the foremen magnum 
in this a r cn and s ome free lead shot m.nnbertng about 3 are found in the region. There 
appearn to be a definite softening and maceration change in the upper cervical spinal 
cord at t.:his region which I would interpret as being traumatic and secondary to injury 
from the shot gun blast evident in other parts ot the protocol. This is a very difficult 
ar e a i.n neck region to explore anatomically and the X-ray s cud Lea wf.11 assist consid­ 
erably in interpretation of the above finding. 

The pituitary gland is essentially negative. E~81l11net:bn of the base of the $kull 
is negative except for the changes deocribed dbove. The calvarit.DJi and anterior portions 
of the aku11 appear quit~ normal. 

~ / s~ w. GJ\PP~-Mi4T.Qt!Ic rINowv:s} 
l. Shotgun wound involving the right posterior n6ck and occi~ital area with marked 

skin and soft tissue laceration, subcutaneous and deep soft tissue hemorthage, 
hemorrhage around poaterior esopnagus and trachea, apparent fracture of right 
posterior portion of foramen magnum With traU111atic inju4y of uppor cervical ~p!na1 
cord and medulla, laceration of right ear, etc. (See above description for details) 

2. Hemorrhage in region of right cerebellar hemisphere with bloody fluid in fou~th 
ventricle and in ant~rior veatric1es of brain. 

3. Subarachnoid hemorrhage, localized mostly to right posterior base of brain and 
cerebellum. 

4. Multiple lead shot in skin,superficial and deep soft tissues, epidural and ~ub- 
dural areas in right posterior occiput, etc. (See above description for detail). 

5. Nild te1:mind type bilateral pulmonary congestion and edemct. 
6. Moderate digested food residue in storoach and esophagus. 
7. Large amount of disested food residue in upper sm~ll intestine. 
8. Minimal artoriosclerotic chanses in aorta •nd coronary veesels. 
9. Mild hypertrophit: arthritis of spine. 
10. Slight: deformity of left index Unger appat11lnt with probable loss of t::ip of f iti,,1 'v\ • 



/' J3NSBN, Robert - 2 - 

GOO- .EI·TDOCTlI!'I3 SYST.'.!H: 
Present thymus; 

· Traumatic hemorrhage about pituitary gtnnct; 

900-- NERVOUS SYSTEM: 
Extensive lacerations of brain tissuest due to multiple penetrating 

gunshot wounds and bone fragments; 

xoo ... ORGANS OF SPECXAt. SENS.3: 
3:ttcnsive Lncerotion of inner, middle, and external ear structures, 

bilateral; 

SUM.MARY: 
Tile findings in this body include the mut t Lp t e lacerations of the 

brain, due to multiple gunshot wounds, with associated blood toss resulting 
i11 death. Tile cont a c t abrasion of the left che elc indicates the face-down 
position in which the body rested after death. TheI:"e is no evidence of 
ct he r r ema rk ab t e injury. The genitalia do not reveal evidence of recent 
orgasm. 

E. D. Zeman, M. D. 
Pathologist 

.EDZ:ac 
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7 00- G.]'-'.l T~'ll:;n: :, \]. Y SY.Sr.::i-,1: (Go n till uert) 
, r. .. , " ... .. . -· i , r •.• : ' L ._, ,.,. .-i 1.· r. .- ' • 
'.I ' ""' . I.. •. ' ) - • '-• \..-I '-• ,._, I_.~ • i,.;J I p 

;•,,·~ ···;:"~ c·1 11 »u nct u r e s (':1' of c e rv Lx e • .J • • .. , .L ..._ J.. l. - _ ! r, ..... V -. .i / \- • ., ' 

,..:,);::)ll.'.5 1:euvr.1:i1a1;·icu;·,1 of left ovary; 
;,o e v iue n c e of spe rrna t o z o a in va g Lna ] 
i-:o a nona Lie s o:: kidneys, ureters, or bladder; 
No anoLlal~cs uf uterus, tubes, or ovaries; 

800- END·.)CRHf.J .SYST21.:: 
Su ba r a ch no Ld l1ei:1or.rhu3es of pitui.ta.ry ;;tond; 
ho u n u s u a 1 c h ar.g e s of t h y r o id or ad r e n a t glands; 
?..ecent c o rp us h emo r r hc g i c um of left cva r yj 

900 ... ~)ERVOUS SYST.3:,1: 
E;~TENSIVE TRAU:L\TIC t.AC.SRATimr AND cm:TUSION OF rns 13RAIN, EXT.ENDING . 

F~~JJ·i RIGHT TO LEFT, DUE TO BULL3T, an.t.sr ?RAGl,lliI-:TS, AND ~"'1'!E Pl'tAC::- 
l-L3NTS; .. 

E~~T3':SIV3 SU.3AMCHNOIJ, PXAL, AND DU~L I-IE1•L\T8~!.A OF THE BUIN, GENER­ 
ALLY; 

:;01')- .S?J.:.CL\L (1~~Ai·ID: 
'I'r aurna t i c fra31'.:entation of mic!dle aud inner e a r s t r u c t u r c s , bi Lu t c r n l}: 

SUMMARY: Tile si;-rnif i can t findings in this 'body are: 
1. CAUS3 OF DaA.'IH: 

E.~~tensive t r auma t t c laceration of brain, d ue to p e ne t r a t Ln g butlet 
wounds (.22 calibre, single) of the head. 

II. R-.:.t,ATED Fii'fDI:''.GS: . 
Trnumatic (sharp instrument)t penetrating wound (1) of posterior 

fornix of vagina; 
Traumatic (sharp instrument), non-penetrating wounds (2) of c e r v i x] 
Re c e n t sup er f i c i a l lacerations of an a I canal wl t h associated "mucus" 

and t::lood; 
''Brush burn" a bras ion of the nri d I ine of the skin of the ba cl~; 
r.tuc-stainin.; of but t ock s and upper t h Lg h s , posteriorly; and 
Abrasions of the skin of the kneesp multiple. 

B. D, Zeman, M. D. 
Pathologist 



* FENCL, Lillian .. 2 .. 0A-5-58 

800- ENDOCRINE SYST3M: 
No un us ua 1 changes; 

900-- NERVOUS SYSTH,1: 
Moderate hyperemia of the brain; 

XOO- ORGANS OP SPECIAL SENSE: 
No unusual changes. 

'f SUM1JARY: 
The findings in this body are those compatible with death by violence 

thtough incised puncture wounds involving the right ventricle of the heart 
and multiple wounds penetrating the lung tissues. 

B. D. Zeman, M. D~ 
Pathologist 

EDZ:ac 



Clara Ward 

* Summary of Autopsy Report 

- Death of this person is attributed to multiple stab wounds 
of the chest and neck. This resulted in the collapse of the 
right lung, as well as extensive hemorrhaging of the lung 
into the plural cavity. Much of the blood escaped from the 
plural cavity due to the stab wounds inflicted on the chest 
wall. 



c. Lauer Ward 

* Summary of Autopsy 

- The victim was shot twice. One bullet entered the left 
frontal temporal area and exited the mid-line region of the 
back of the skull. The other bullet entered the back - 6 
inches from the base of the neck, passing through the right 
lung and exiting the chest. Both bullets were recovered 
for examination. The victim was also stabbed twice in the 
neck region with deep penetration. It is believed that the 
first bullet fired entered through the back. 
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APPEALS IN CAHJ. I, FiJGA'fU 'S CASE 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Tria.l/Heat-.1.ng/App<:H)l 

Appeal f~om decision of 
District Court denying 
writ of mandamus to pro­ 
hibit County Court from 
trying Ca1,j,J. as an adult 
in District Court. 

Appeal to the NebraskR 
Supreme Court from jury 
t~ial convicting Caril of 
first degrao murder. 

Appeal to the NebraBka 
Supreme Court from denial 
of motion for new trial 
based on newly discovered 
evidence (juror bet). 

Petition for writ of 
certiorari to the Supreme 
Court of the United 
States based on juror bet 
appeal. Writ denied. 

1964 - let federal habeaB 
corpus petition filed 
after. U.S. Supreme Court 
ReQobe..d.u de c i.e io n , Baaed 
on denial of attorney 
when her statement was 
taken. Federal Dietriot 
Court Judge, Robert Van 
Pelt, js8ued opinion that 
Eacobedo. was retroactive 
and so would apply to 
Caril's case. If upheld, 
it would have had effect 
of granting a new tri~l 
to Caril. 

Who involved fo:r Car.i.l 

John McArthur nnd Edmond Boln­ 
heim, Dean of University of 
Nebraska College of Law. 
Appeal denied by Nebraska 
Supreme Court and remanded for 
trial in District Court. 

John McArthur handJ.Gd 
aepects of appc~l. 

John McArthur handl8d 
briefing and argument 
peal, 

all 

both 
of ap- 

John McArthur handled brief1na 
with some help from Edmond 
Belsheim of Law CollecP. 

Law p r o f e e eo r- suggeei.<?d time: 
was right to file. He had had 
article he had writh~n for 
Nebraska Law Review cited in 
~.o.he.dQ deci□ion. 

1 



FROM MCARTHUR LAW OFFICE 03.03.1992 08:32 p • 2 

Car:tl F'ugate Appeals/Hearings 

6. 

7 . 

Appeal by State to Eighth 
Circu11; Court of Appeals 
during which time Nebras• 
ka rushed through a poat 
conviction act in order 
to frustrate inmate fil­ 
ings of habeas corpue 
petitions in federal 
court. Court of appeals 
bought State·e argument 
that case should be re­ 
manded to State Court to 
allow poet conviction 
action. 

1st post conviction act 
in State Court - 1966. 
District Court disemieeed 
it on pleadings. Appeal 
to Nebr&ska Supreme 
Court. Dad hoped Supreme 
Court would summarily 
affirm dismissal ao we 
could go back into feder­ 
al court early. He felt 
State poet conviction 
remedy was a mere sham 
designed more to frus­ 
trate inmate claims of 
constitutional depriva­ 
tion than to give them a 
real remedy. The Nebras­ 
ka Supreme Court reversed 
and ordered e hearing. 
Dad felt this was done to 
delay our refiling in 
federal court. 

John McArthur wrote brief but 
I did much of legal re8earch 
for it and wrote memo r-a nda for 
dad for use in case. I also 
flew dad to St, Louis for the 
argument in the Court of Ap­ 
peale and waa there when the 
case was argued. 

John McArthur prepared the 
pleadirtgB and argued the mat­ 
ter both in the State Distrjot 
and Supreme Courte ae I wae 
still in law e choo L, 1 helped 
with the legal research and 
preparation of memoranda for 
dad. 

2 



FROM MCARTHUR LAW OFFICE 03.03.19';.12 08:33 p. 3 

CaI'il Fugate Appon.ls/HearlngA 

8. 

9. 

Poet conviction act hear­ 
ing in State District 
Cou~t before Judge Ha8t­ 
ings (who i~ now Chief 
Justice of Nebraska Su­ 
preme Court), Suprise 
admission by trial judge 
Spencer that he had lim­ 
ited participation by 
dad'e aeeociate, Merril 
Re 11 er , j_ n the tr i a l. He 
had no ri~ht to do thie. 
Relief denjed. Appeal to 
Supreme Court resulted in 
afflrmance of denial of 
post conviction relief. 

Filed second Petition for 
Habeae Corpun in federal 
district court. By this 
time U.S. Supreme Court 
had he lcl that E.a.c.o.b.e..do 
decision was not retr.oac­ 
ti ve dealing severe b l ow 
to Caril's chances. 
Judge Vs.n Pelt el eo re·· 
cueed himself this time. 
Why. we don"t know. 
Judge Elmo Hunter from 
Mieaouri was appointod to 
hear case. After hearing 
he denied Petition on its 
merits. 

John McAr.trn.u· handled ev Lde n­ 
tiary hearing beforo Judge 
Hastings and W&B eecond 
chaired by Merril Reller and 
myeelf. I contribuLoJ legal 
memorandu for both the hearjng 
and Bppeal facets of the case. 

By thie time Reller had died 
and dad and myself handled all 
aspeote of case. Dad did the 
evidentiary portion of it 
(except for hiR own testjmnny) 
and I handled the legal as­ 
pects of thiB. By this time I 
had graduated and waa in prac­ 
tice with dad. 

3 



FROM MCARTHUR LAW OFFICE ~33.03.19'?2 (18:33 p. 4 

Caril Fugate AppeaJ.a/HGaringa 

10. 2nd Appeal to Circuj.t 
Cour.t of Appeals. Caril 
was told that if she 
would drop her federal 
court actions and appeals 
she could be paroled. 
She refused. Court of 
appeals affirmed by a two 
to one vote with a strong 
disaent by Judge Heaney. 
We filed for. rehearing fill 
ban.c. Cou~t denied it on 
equally divided vote. 
(One more vote and it 
would have been granted 
before entire panel of 
eight judg8!3). 

11. Petition for writ of 
certiorari was filed with 
the United States Supreme 
Court. The principal 
issues on appeal related 
to denial of oouneal. The 
first was during the 
taking of her etetement 
when the State provided 
an educator to advise her 
rather than an attorney, 
and the aecond was the 
trial oourt·s limitation 
on Reller·e participation 
in the original trial. 
It takes four votee to 
have the writ granted and 
we sot only one, from 
Justice William 0. Doug­ 
las. This ended the 
legal challenges to Car­ 
il's convi.oti.on. 

I believe by thie time I had 
pretty much taken over all 
appellate matters including 
both briefing and arguing 
before the Court of Appool o. 

I prepared and filed the Peti­ 
tion for writ of certiorari to 
the U.S. Supreme Court. 

4 



FROM MCARTHUR LAW OFFICE 03.03.1'~92 (18:34 F' • 5 

Ca..t'il Fugate Appca.lo/Hear.1nga 

12. In 1972 we applied for a 
commutation of Ca.ril'e 
life sentence which was 
necessary before the 
Parole Board could con­ 
sider parole for. her. 
The Board voted to com­ 
mute her eentence to a 
definite term of yaars 
which made her eligible 
for parole in 1976. 

13. Parole hear.j_ng i.n 1976 
held at the Women's Re­ 
formatory in York, Ne­ 
braeka. At conclueion of 
hearing Paro la Bo&rd 
voted to parole her to 
Michigan. Term of parole 
was for ten years. She 
wae releaa~d from parole 
after five year□ for good 
behavior. 

I think I pretty much handled 
both the application and the 
hearing before the Boarrl of 
Pardons and Parolee. 

I handled tlie head ng be ro r-e 
the Paro 1 e Boa2:·d. 

5 



lit~:·,\ , ';; ;j1½;:Ji;Cf /,f/{)t\ {f / < ;:: ''/".'\: :, 1< ·• • · .. · ·.· )/;I; fr';t~};~f ;J~f i,i1l~(1 
t}li<-t~s ·; ..i'r.'n~f.i(f~,:?:-r:·,_..,,,,,, .. ~ ·-'. 1 df not. ch,1nge ';ri' my ('!)r'O~ i Uo1, for a rii\rol e .for:'. ~arp, N~{~((/l~~\}\ 

'
• .. __ ·_•_·;_,_,.,_,_•·_:·_,:._;_'/f'l•,, ··a11,nn. not l·ecau3r> I do nf't hC?11!'!v!! in rd1i1b,iliUt10n or r,1u~9Jo,·- hiit, 

tif'c;,111,;o J fr,t l thn •krirr<' or r,1111 is hr:irnt shou rl fit the cdm1?/-iind.1c·~ 
;,i1fr:ri1ir1 the l,rut,tl •,,·,,v r.,,rll r11'1◄1lr. and St~rb11•,1tlwr Mur!l~'i-'r,! l11,di­ 
~1P.VCl"I victims, hor t•1111it.h1~,c-nt ha') been VQry sli~ht. :, Tha.comont'f· 
hi!'i tict'n ri,it1<? that "-;he has ~rtcnt half ot her 1 ife i.n pri~~n/i·ihich'· 

- should he long cnou9h to f)UlliSh a person. fl 1!01>.;(lvcr,'sha has n'ot\('' 
s:i~nt half of her lifo in pr i son -,s tha expect~d .1He si,an of a·i~oriic, 
i; 1i, .. tw,•f'.ln 7n ,rnd 75 _vr.ws, ~hi? coul d never 11,w f'or h<!r l\~frrmdou·i 
ci-i1•:r•s If' ._,,,~ t ivl•d to .,,~rv11 ,, 1 if~t itlll? ror t!,,ch of th<> tC?n"'victi1ii~ 
•,hi'.' l''llrtlr.,.rd or hc!lpc-d t,urd~r, h11t surc1.v these pr>or,lc's lh'C!•s shoul 
,:,1•ml fnr 1111,r15 tlMn il l tt t l e ovc•r·,, yci!r1s time r.ach"'.-~1hich is'ilhriut 
tl,r. tinl~ shu ha$ SN"vr.d. Ctirol King \'ltlS an OXCC!Cdin:91y inte} 1 i~cnf 
~nd b~~utiful young lady with an lnnc.-r rodiance fa1t by all who C~Ma 
in ccintact \'Ii th h~r•. ·-·- l thin!: anyont? Hho !:now our ~oh )rid Carol \16ul 
,,.,r1't1 that thQy wcrc!'gcntfo, lov1n:1 children, ~1ho~e l"\ain thoughts/t 
1•:cr~ to b"inq lowi and h11~rinc.-si; to their f.imi l ics ;,nd friends ;'and. 
to hcl r:, tht'!lc? w!lo neoded he,,10--1-,hicl'I h \•1hat thC?y ,-1<!rc tryinri to do' 
whe:n Murdered hy Caril ru9ati, and Stark1'loather. The hcts arid proof 
of this case 11nd the m"imitudr. of the crfmcs simply are not seP.min~l 
cih·C"n full C('lnc;id~r,,tfr,n, ,,n,I C11ril F'u11ate ch,,nri0s hnr am.1·1ers as Sf,\ 
"rt,·n ,1s ,,.,~.,,fi " riur•'.tion ,,n,l r.:MvC'nif'i1tly forriot~ anil cli,;t.orh th~­ 
r,,ct,; nr lt!:!1' t'1Vr<i~r srrr.-, with r.h,,rlr.s Stark•.:r,,thr>r, !iht' 1~11~ i;cm-'j 
k1cNf to sorve t'Ul. her natural l i fo 1n r,rhon by a Jury trial, .and 
I \ ir:c~rcity bi,l icve lht?y 1no.1nt for her sr.ntcncc to he c:11rried ('IUt ;:-\ 
,,n,! urhr.ld AS rl~tcr1nfnt1d hv th(' Court1s dr.dsion- and lHc 1Morison;;. 
r.:,'nt !;h0uld rnoiln just t'1"t-• lifo irr1')dso11r1r.!nt. · · 

~nyt½1ng further t could ~ay would 01ly be mor~ re~etitiovs, as 1·; 
have other statcm~nts, su~ncsod1y on nor~~nont file. which t'm sure. 
you h~ve re-cxa~ined in prr.!naration to reachinq a just d~cision todj_ 

!:01", I,; thcra anyori~ else fn the room at this tfru~ that wishes 
ar~~ar a~atnst .•• 

l'.Ar.511111.L T fl TF:: 
(rarole ~nard t~n~er) 

•Jt- "l.TZ • .. ,., . .'' . 

ThorP Is a vnun~ ~an, ~ovcrnor and th~ Rodrd, th~t w11s 
that ha fs rrr.scntty on 18-rnonth nrohAlion and 11ou1d like to $p~ak:,:. 
in t.1;ha1f' of rchabfl it,ition ;ind in bchillf of lliss Caril f:ugate. 

1'11 rioht. ~gdfn, J ~,;k, is thera anyone else who is here who ~fih~ 
to s~cak in o~no~ition? 

m,, there is M h~nd. f,11 rio~t. Th~nk you very much, We have •· 
elosGd those in or~osftfon, 

YI' lwi !'ilrl ic:?r qfvM thP. or,rnrtunfty for thc-.a who wie;h to ariottar ... 
in f',wC'r, t,ut "'~ c'!r~ t;lC:dn~, i1ftor dhcu~sinrt thh casl'! with my co1::-..'. 
lc!at1uc-s, 1tP. are Qrd n~ to ,111 Ol'I n.1 t e r:H i to come forward, I under-: 
stand th;,t hi? wfshr,s to t<1t.tify for, In this ca,;e, f~r. tlit:t, W('luld 
,VO!J s land th~re a~d be s11,orn by the f,t t('lrney ~enera 1? · 

. . ' 

( Ou1 y S•,•:orn) 

Pah, the ~oard af'ltrC'c:htcs vour enminc, f'or1·:~rd. Tho not~ that J , 
have ~~re fndiccH~s th,tt yC'u· arc t)rr?!iocntly on orot.-atft'ln for a fe1ciny 
I think th~t'~ f~fr to ~ut t~at in tha r~cords, but w~ navcrtheless: 
~:,rti;-;:. i .11.t1? vour c0Mfnt1 for\::lrd, ~'.('lul~ vou i,1 ease M ahr11d and t~ll i 
t"'-e' Ei:-ar-d v~UI" f'ee111"~l; on t.,is r,-,att~r ind t'?r-tainlv an,Y first-hand,: 
I riN;11; :~t? th4' t yc,u h~v'?. . · ... • ·, . · .. . ,':>:f};] 
:~,-.' C~,.?1r:--.an.ani:I n,~:-~rs c,f th~ !',oard, · Th.-nC. vi;,u for lettiM l"e i::/ 

._ cor.-~ t:~ •. 1 'r,, orcHntly c,n 1:-r;-l'lt.h c:,r-obation ·ror a felOt'ty which ~a·; 
·• l!"'~M. T"ie ,1udq~ .H th,,t tir".'7 of my trial \>.'U, ·• ,et10u9ht to be riut 
on r-n:-~11tiM for 1~ r.oonths, 11nd I am very l"'Jch for the rehahf11tatl~ 
t~at t~,r St!lte h"s, · I M'! .fn the tiroc~u Mt-i work1no t~roul'Jh Re~11b,/ 
ho:-i111 th,1t I c11n dev,,lona r,~111 throuiJ"tP.rh!ib.•-·-n," fact that l,'1'11 ... 
r.,,.,;;:.:1, r-v ,~ire h <.x:'\"ctin,, I'd 1Hi{vC!ry 1"1\lth to set 1·'.iss Fu~·111t.e 

· M ~ r,1,.ol ,i "''" r1!'cik,t fr,n fer t1ic f11ct t!,,,t o,,c~ a ncrson is t'lUt of,tj 
l'Hl t'~~H,~nthry or out Of jail• or nut of a rt'f'~M!I s~hool / I .f'ecl s( 
t"".at V-l':,' l:o!Vt' no TlC.'HfbHit,v to ~afn a: nrst:~/ld knol\'1Cd',le ~" hi1!;/ 
t~ 1 r. ~ T"'\ ~~•··r, th t n,: wi.th :,c t:i., 1 ""Oil I,:- I,,. auSl'/,,~·°.!.'-,.~t;:.;~~r:g,;Jtr~,t~ 
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~){}~';il;· .. ::\:,:)li:;:·;,:;,••:: .;.·.::}:t•:;f K}}.?Y/:!;tt:tf:?{;1tlti\}{{f {(1}~\ff tfSf it1:t~~~?:;?i>\:t'./~' .;:k:;·f .• . . '. .... :. .. . . . . . . ,· 
fY;:-/_,.:H~r:·!:itz contd.).:'.'·/ i'_Q,r.:·you•,!lfve·th~·m ~'chanc~/ l1m a hign $Chool dror,out, t'n, n6w .\J 
i){, .. 1;•,,/.. . . . . '.· .. fri the r,roct'SS n,1l•il I'm noino t!'I oi:t rny high ,;chool dit,1oma bccau~c·. 
'.-::•'. •·I \·",}S ilfvnn II ehcnce tH.'C'1U~,(.' I, tieforo I got in troublo,'l wat; down·; 

l'ln l'.'v11rythine1 l·ricc1u~,.. r ~,.,,; ., hi11h ~chM1 dror,out and t?verybo<i,Y wa,;· 
,1r1,1fnr.t rui irn<f_r.111s1 I fin,! th,,t ,..v,•n thnuoh J ,11,1 somdhfn9 wrnnri,·.1nc 

. tha State wns ~c~y lenient in h~lning me I'm ~oing to do all I c~n l 
l·t'tt'?r myself to help tho St.;to,· And I fool tho s~me w~y. t think·: 
Cnril would do if sh~ was qivcn A chnncc, She's s"ant ~utte a whflj 
a1·1ay from cv1fryhody mccapt whom sh'l Is i 11 the nc ronni tory with. and I 
fr~l thnt ff sh~•~ ~ut out in 5oclnty under rcstl'iction5. of course~ 

.1111cf h .,lln·.-•l'd to ~~nrk.1,1ith thl" r-uhllc in l~urnin!la trildC or '·.:.:/ 
.. · l~;,r•ninq cl csklll herself. t think it ~/C'luld hclt~r hers·<!lf• and it•,·:/ 
.\:('luldn't be! 1-·~Hing ~ lire •• iu5t sittin~ in thq l'cinitcntidry •. · llaybe 
sne dfd do·!:Pf":cthing vwon~, h.tt r rlon't soe 1~hy the Board or tho >. 
State couldn't oivo he~ a ch~nco to mako som~thing out of hci life.~ . ~ . "' . . 

G!"VERIIC'R EXNI: 

1'P., IHTZ: 

!rCR[T~rv rF STATE 
ALLEII J, llEF.rlf'.MIII; 

O: 

/1: 

": 
A:- 

GCWER!,OR txor1: 

~. 
r,rvrn~inR r xou: 

!'~PSHl\ll T~TE: 
(~atole Board rember) 

Y('lu ,'\r~ h~r~ .iust as an individual. , .or r,art~timo knowledge ot 
11r1ythi n\'l, • • 

l'ust wh~t I've heard on radi"• n~ad in tho riarors, and what my O'lffl ·.·· 
cxr-,:,,ri~ncas UC!'. _110 qrours • 110 nothing, 

·~•· 

Dale. 1. h11ve two
1 
(Juestions hnre. ts this your first of~cnse? 

I 

This is r:iy first' offcnsi:-, f,ctu.111.v I h,1d a mhdemf!i\nor as 
to the fletit t.arc,~riy. This h my f'il"st. anct it's c,oing to 

' l Presume th,lt you have served some time ir1 the Conr,lcx? 

sti~nt a w~~k ln ji!_il, and that was cnr,urih, 

Do you ·th Ink fn our soc:iety ti,dc1y, do you think an individual 1s in 
·a <:(lr-:f'l<'X, a pr.11,,1 e~mrlr><. as nunhhr.1cnt or for nunishmcnt? 

A little of both. It seems like if a person is given a life sentenc 
t understand, after a cP.rtain 11nount of time. a ~erson cannot a~peal 
the fatt of t~e life sentQnc~. and if they are or~nted the appeal•· 
then also can h~ ~rant~d narole, I just don't think they can still 
r.-alc- sor.~thfn1 out of thoir 1 Hi,. She li'1S verv vouM at thei time 
bt that doesn't reallv r.iattcr if she's o1d l'!OC'U

0

Qh to make UI) her O\· 
mind. • · 

Any further ~uest1ons? thank ynu very much, 

Th~nk ynu VQry much, / I/ 
J 'd l 1b.? tho fol1o~if11g two 1.-,rffr.s to stand:: flC!r.ki llc,r,lt't nnd 
r.~rh S,•t!rlry. f,ra thry In th~ rnom? \kr,·i: you hn\h hrr~ l'fhNI we 
stArlcd th<! h~:,.rfM? Vou w.•rt!, Th,rnk yr,u very much, ·l have a 
rerucst from th~se two ladies to tt'stify in su~rort of c~ril Ann 
F'ur.Hi:!, T!i!!y 111?rc hcrC! at the ti~ th11t 1-1(' a11ott'"rf for t'iou to b 
heard as op~o~vd to the last ~antlcman that was not h~re. W~at is 
t~t' fr.elin~ of th~ aoard in this? · · 

l~dits • ,.,.~uld one or tiotll of ynu !it.and 4~_.ir'I, · r,lr.ao;e. l~c ccrtafnly 
arn leanin~ ~ver baekwards to b~ ontirc,y fair fn this ~att~r. Y~u 
•,;~re tifvcn onMrtunH.v to t<?HHy rar-1 ier, Did vc,o l'lhund(?rstand : 
t~e ~~cl~ration of the ch~1r ~h~~ wa start~1 nui or did you just 
d~cide later on· that it ~1ou1d. b!! -'rorcir·,!'iate for you to make sot!!'! 
co~~rits?. •··· ·· · .·., . 

• , • Th~,V Sti!!tPd. that thl'!_V ,-:·r.r~ conr.,:?rMd at,o!Jt the matti,r of· 
tehat-i1it11tfon. 11n'i tlicy \o-'1\l'lt!'.'~ t(I_ ,;r1:ak on th.,l in h~~alf of Caril 
rul"latr:■ '!;C\ it 1·;/\,; l!f'ter tl:H Mt<! wH !.true!: thht their Cl)neerll to:. 
S"IC'il>' Aro•.~.· · · · · · · · · · 

Tt,l' C~afr rvie$ t'1:,t ,,:e tt,ifii~ ,H 1-.•('uld l-1! c,ut o( t1rdel' 
te~tif~ on t~~t ~&tter at t~i~ tf~,. 

t t'.a\'~<'l'lt' c,t"1r.out'Hlon or '~r. Grec!1110ltz. • f!r. 'iMrmho1U, the\ 
!'1d\t~t'n!l teHi ... onv 1-•~ic't tlil.' r."""tf of r.1rclon~ asl:ad vou to t~l.e . 
frc-"' :•,,;s ru,~tC" •. i,.i .. l1l.\t ~.-,,:, ,,-.,1

11? r-ul·l ic? . . · 



SECRETARY OF STATE 
J\Llr.11 J .• tiEEP.flll!lN:. 

MR. G?HtlHOL rz. 

SECRETARY l'F STATE 
tLLEr/ J. B£EIWA!i:I: 

MR, GP.EE~:Ht'LTZ: 

srCRETA~Y OF STATE 
/,LLEN J. BHRr·A:m: 

/\TTl'"r:tv r,rnrr.AL ll yr, r.: 
·sECRETAP.Y nF STATE 

ALLEN J •. BE(C.-J·'.M/11: 

l'R. G?EE11Hf'IL TZ: 

SECP.ETAP.Y Pr.STATE: 

HCRETIIRY (lF STATE: · 

The nc:tobar 5th tcstfmony. 

I-le hi!v~ th is , this oC!rtains to a discrC!111rncy 

It's th~ fourth to the last r,~n(!, 

l!ha t' s thl' nui,,!,rr r, f tho 11.vm? 

.ATTORr:EV r.rntP.flL 11r.vEP: ··Tit(? nctoh~r 5th s~,.,uld he a riart nf the r,uf-)lic record r.xceot t 1~11\d 
1 n,, tn add that rart or th11t remain confidnnthl, the riart of it: 
~ .. hfch r~fi,r~ to r,ossih1n r,11role nl ens l'lhic:h might fdcntif,Y indivi•_· . 

. 1!11,,1 ... J tl(1n1t r,•~1 lhill t11,,t ~hl'lll1d h<'! m,,dP. r,1.1bHc ~(ICl!USO H .. 
r,-,rolr is q,.anted, inform,,tion ,,l1nut th~ in,t'lvidu,,l involV!'ld h 
actively riaht now prejudiced and cou1d rut" any possible pijroie· 
plans, t'lutsidc of that. I feel very stronci1y that tho additional 
~ust be a part of the oublic record. 

lt would h~ve to be deleted from this then. 

If the orcs s 1-ri\nts to see it, then they can s~& 1t with the absolute 
undcr$tandino that under no circumstances WC11.1ld they revea1 the namn 
or circumst:inCl'?i of ~ ro,;sible parole nl an , flc,w if th~.'I are lff11'n~ 
t.o see it with that understanding. I 1·.'t'Ju1d have no ob_iections.· 
rithcr.-:he, l don1t think that 1t should be seen at all. I think H' 
fnnortant th!t it be a ~art of the nuhlic record, , ,fnr additional 
lcst!nnn.v t-ut not th11t p11r.t ~•hich 1·w. didn1t ask for. Up to this 
ro t nt , l'I~ cocneratcd with the 11oc?rd c,nd \~ith evcrvone and if there f 
~ raro l e , we 1-."0uldn1t 1•1ant thh r~vcalr?d In advance. 

. // 
It should ht J.'l"·~·rt of 

;;' 
. ' 

That ~ou1d be the l~st paoe, John. Third to the 1ast page. Fourth 
to th~ last nag~. there, ~tartino with 81ankenshin, It's the fourth 
to th~ last ra~e. 

tlo,1, ~1ht-n we ~et into it, it'!. ,iust a matt.er of conversation with 
~fss Fugate at the ti~e we were •• 

It's Page 16. Startin~ at tht to~. 

Startin~ at the too, l think w~ cnuld del~te th~t ~nd lat the~ hav 
th~ rest of ft. That cou1d be a oart of our' record. and 1et the., 
r~st b~ a rart of 11u~lic record, • , 

11ou1'1 it h~ hQrl'!r.able if ,~r:- \./Ould h,we th~~" fntnr~r.tt-d 1n thr.se 
:iartkuhr doeur,~nU to cor.1e to our oftfct> so we could sft down" .. 
and dhcuu th-is and n11k1? certafrt thfs c:oulr.t tie hr,t conffdentt.al?: 

t!~ll, I lliink •that w~ ciin 1S11rcc with tho oraH on t'1h m.-.tter. I '.: 
tl:irtl: that w~ ishNlld idcf1tify "t thh ti111"! 1-tith th<! checkmark of th 
C(H\Y t '1at you ''re 1'11' in~ to tirl'r,t?n t to t~i? f.ciard, Why don't yr,u ,ius t 
draw i! cirel~ aro1.1nd the r.atti,r'j th~rc t.,ltt w~ f'(!el f'or our r.!edsfo 
s~ou1r1 be .c:onfidMthl • an~ 1·1<? "1111 nrcsent that to th~ r.oard with 
the understi,,~in~ that that ~trt efrc:l~d is·~, a c~nfid~ntial ~atur 
and Oflr-Ortu11itv f'or !he ladies il'ld cEintlttm'!n of' t!iP. !"r~ss to review 

·. ,-:ith the unde,.-sundlnq that t~at riarticuhr t"ortion is. , • · · I 

ra~~ lf. I ouess. 



SECRtTARY CF STr.T(: 

f,TTOR~l[Y r.r m:P.AL 1if.YF.R: 

(iOVERrlCtR t X0N: 
. .A.fTOF!t:EV !",Ef:EPJ\L riEYE.R 

and 
$[CRtTARY or STATr.: 

G0VEP.Nl)R nou: 

. .. . -· 
··.·. I t~ov~ HC !10 Into txt)cutive Sos s Ion, 

·!:~cond 

l~vod and St'Cnnded, All in 

r.y~ 

r~t ~on tarried. 

I\TT(1R'.ltY GfN[RAL l~(Y[r{: f movP. 1,'t' r,o into on<'f\ -:.c-s,;ion. 

t,f'VtRnC'P. EXC':I: Do t hear a motion, 

JITT01t:EY GEr:rnAt ~:EYEP.: I Move t!1at the co~t11lion of the life sentence of Caril Ann 
Fu9ate be denied. 

{r'C'Tl(lN l1IEO FOR LACK ClF A S(CO~:O) 

SECRETARY OF STATE !lEERrlMl'I: 

. I 
I 

// '' ·' 
favor sii:inif,Y by nying "aye", 

ii 
I 

V~TING AY[: s~cretary cf Stato ~ll~n ~c~rm1nn Jnd ~ovcrnor [xon 

VOTl~G !:AY: /lttorne!y Genera 1 Cl arnnce l'eyer. 

Gf'IVERIIC'R: The 111cetino is adJciurnt'd. 
I 

w~ acient this then as th~ l~$t ar the ofrtciftl record w@ will 
s,~nt ta you and thr,se i,ntitl1~d to it. 11.t this time, the State.· 
Eoard of ·Pardoris will QO into E~ecutive Session. We would like to 

· have the room clc11r1:d r.·xccpt for the me?mbers of th~ nrcss and the , 
~~mt-P.l'S ·of tha rarnle rk,arrl. • ~•e ~,ciuld like to ask those to remain. 

t l"IOve that the lif~ sentence of Caril Ann Fu~ate be cor.r.ivted 
to a term of not lass than .JI') year s nor more tnan 50 year~. 

r ',N·oml lhr l'l(lt 1,,n. 



:i < .. -·:;..:""7"',-·,:: 
. _:.-.::;_;~::\:>:~~_: 

MRS, JOHNSTO~ 

~i;.. GR.'::r.NHOLTZ 

HR. B!-:ERMANN 

MR, <~1<1:nmr,1:r:: 

~:R. B t F. F. ~::; 

1-'.1'. GJ:'J:nrnC'T.iZ 

' ' 
~·.r .• ~:E:~ 

~ ~I: ' I• 1 ! . J-~r,:::I 

I 
XP.. !:!'.lu. ,.,. 
K~. PE£R!-~t; 

~~rt.. ~a:.:.J.. 

t !lr•<·,:-n,I th~ m,,t i OI'\, 

r:'i!'>cu:,idon7 \ 
\ 

:~..,Y !"ur·th<'r iil.:o:cu!l~ion? 

Slnrl" .... l'l '1fC! tn PJ•f"n ::m.r,lon, Mr, Allorttr.>Y t''i'•Jll'ri,,, ,!oyoll; 
1,1 I ,.h In m.11\r, ,, mot i nil ·t 

T \<10111<1 movr, th,1l the c<,•mmutntiort bo cl•miN! ,,t thi~ timt', · 

ft has br-on 1nowd by l.h(I ,\Horney r.·•t1M.,'i\ th;1t.' tlii!'I 
f•Ut .isl1tq at thh limn, rs thcru II r.oc.:m1,1 t rl,:,C"l,;1·1? thc1t 
t:hi!I rt'()tion h,1~ 11\i:-ri ror 1,u:k oC "~r•~·on,1. t)c') Y(l\l h,wr. 4. 
11111t I c ,n'.) 

t wo111,1 h,1v,• t·t~•p11•1·,tit,n rirnt, HO!"' M,,r-ic,, dn('S thh1 
~~h~dulc, l~ thin r~irly ~ccurat~ as of thi~ ~ay? 

i bt'licvo ao , ya~, She held.no loss of 900d t!m11, 
~i:ntenced prioi- to pilSi!Age o! r..al307. 

T'll move that ••dth r,:,,_1,nn to tJ,,., ,,r,plie~ti'"ln o! c,,d\ Ann 
rugnt.t>, thf' m.:ill:('l' o f ("(ll!IJTt\lt,1tlrm, t.hat her lif<t E-cmtenCC'.! he 
cor.'lrlutr.'d by t.ht' rc1r1'1ori p,,apl t-:i ii t o rm of not le,s than thirt 
nor m~r~ th,'ln fc,rty yn.ar~. 

,1t'lhn, T h,wt? a q111.•r-ti<in. rr the n,otion ca.rric!I w<!'ve got thi 
to··f~'rty. ::he woi;ld bcc:01110 al iylble prc-!JuNhly, the thirty 
yc-ar con('!' t'H'lm('Whorn in Mey of 1976, The annual revic-w,;, 
arl' ll1c·y sti 11 in ,Jllnt"7 

f,o prPsurn:'IJ-> 1 y in ,l1m1• • c,( 19 76 r;ho W(1ul 11 lwr.nm/'I ct i qi h l c, A 11 
t'\lu•.r th111q:1 bri11•t 1•q11,1L 

1d,1l1t.1 H ,,fi .. ,1111•:;,1'! ln11nc• m1y t ltn1• fr,r ilny 1lb1C"iplln.ny 
r"MlC'O!:, 

You could "'''='P h.:-r cit\ p;irQ}(? thr?l'l througlJ_ the podod of · 
r,r,.,:urnably ~11tch of' l'.lA'-7 ts that 1nnq/~nough p11role pl'.'1·iod? 
,1t•hn. h(1W wN1ht )'OU r,,.-\? f/:' 
TI'\At wn11l<1 ,,ive 11-.; ,,fs.i'1t. yr,,,rs c;,f P.llp•/.·rvl,don, J wc-u1c1 !'IIY -­ 
th.,t t.l1♦1t '«1'1\ll,i !,n ?iu!1t, ·M,,lt wr,111'-.I qiv11 u~ 1<,t!I l,r tir.itt to 
l·dnq h'Jr t·:ic-~ ,1rJ1i t,1~,• ,,noth,;,r lc'lnk if' sh~ didn't live up to 
th~ p~rol~ pro~l~ion~. 

':'?-.<> f\011rd cf' ritrol<:' ,·.-1?1 rli .... di;lrg~ ;1t ~ny t.irntt thC!Y ~r:t! 
1:h~ 1o·ore to r::,n (ltlt .arir! not ''" ,,r~.-•n,,hl<' to ~i:,dt•ly anii tif't .b": 
,,:•·••n,1l·•lr ir, t1111•1•n•i1d11:1 ...-,, f•r,•,Jl<'I (in,I 011n,;1•lvr.;11 !11 ,'I ,!~lt1f"•i . 
r•:·l:arr,1~dri._1 !'•J'Ot :-ittln•1 !wr,., · So 1o•!1y t10 t.ht> h.,.,.. r.-.a>dt:1um 
wh•m ...,,, r.,n dir.r,-l,,,rct• l,,,r .:\t t.!i•• 1"inim1nn? · -- 

Ye•.; 13oo't thin►. t.,..n y<.',,1·'l 1o1_n,111 1--r ,"!t'I ;it!t-<11,,1tt' _lM,t7 

J ~u~t ',11,IV,f, to tl·,r,..,., c,n th(' t11!•l~ ...,,,.,t u~ t1Urc•r••r1C't' h hl"t'-"' 
t"n ,,nd t.,.•,,t1t~• )'l•,,r'.'I, tr th" 11t".uc1 r,,n rli<1c-h.irqo hc-r ,'Liyt 1111~ 
! !°:"l' dr~ i r,. t I'.', -..·h .,t i !" th<' ,!i. f' r,, t ,.r. rr hrt.1t1N•n l nri ,'\!'id th I rty 
:•,·•,1!"~? 



.. , ,_.·,· ', ·.·,'::'" 
. \ •• 

•,, 

·,:.,111 i\rl!I 1··11<,1,1t11 - 1.'<:tnl1t:r M, 1!113 

MR. P!:n".'.,A~ ,__.._f') r,.)\'r: P:lOR 
EXON 

t'r.'! ,imr•n,ibl~ to (:hitntJin~ thirty to fortY•fiVt,• which 
'Ii\"•' yr.rn t_h tt.•~ or thr,,,, an d " h,11 f rnora Y" .lrs. 

Hr."'' old wt')IJl(i !'lhe ha 1 f s ho \ol<':lulr! have to 90 bnek with 
1iaxi r'!Ul'II th1•n? 

. 29 ,,nd ••• 

29 ~.:\~ oarly 40's 

Motion has car r i ed two to on e , 

/.' 
/I/ I 

w~ don't want to crcatci a sit\1;,t,ion . .',~here she would have to/· 
be rfoa1t with by the St.ate l!o;;pitals rather than an il'!Btitu• 
t!OTI where th~ ~ourt committed her. She's b~en ther~ ~ lonq 
time. 

You c;1n ac-ut.nlly !'(.'lCMUI he r on :p3role rarly, so we don't 
\.',int to r,ut too 1""-' of rtnnd,nd!lt, If she is getting alon9 
.,11·l<,1ht you Cl'ln r~lf','li';C he r , 

111 h1•r J',H'I ic·ut.11 c,,::t?, I ,Jnn't think..,.,~ f'h<'ll1l<l t•11t hc-r mi 
r,1rok i\t any c-11rly datC1!J, t wi,uldn't rec()mm•nd it, 

Thirty to fifty? I'll M1end th~ motion to raad not lesa 
thirty nor mor.e than fi rty year te~ un\1er the s chcdu Le , 

l',ir•.h,ir ,lisc:-tl~~ir-n?, 1( tl,<>re i~ n" f'urth~r dir<cu!'sion t'11 
c a l l f<•r A vot e 1.1n tht' motion ~s at:1cmdcd, All in !avor 
in1Hc~te by !':aying Aye, 

No. 



f,,,,,,)$,~~ttl,1~~~~!!'t!~~jj~~!~f :;!H~.~·f ;;; . ,,:ii 
1i~;;'.,~· 1 

f?/t\:\()<,"-·,·.· .. ··, -· ··•: · t'i.'tr00n Nikki Wr.i<Jht; Cec.r'C.!t,1ry: .le,mncnc rouql.:i~n, ,Secret/lt'VI 
· I·'r-crl 'l'hcr:ias, P<'lrole l'dmini$ltr,'.lti.on: .tosoph Vitd:, Director of. 

corroct.Icnsr M.:1rt.i Conrad, NCW; ,Tuckie? Cr.:iwford, S~intendent; 
~'T,:ir'!"CR Mcl\rthu.r, 11tt.or.1oy; Vicki ~V, cmu,~olor; <,, F. Kuchel, 

. \~): ~\.1nf.:trct S.:w,:mq ::lllC'll(.~i' :'CR:,iclq t\ll"V."l,, r,~,p, llt:!rtlcrson 
Nurst11<.1 llcxro; f\:lul Kint, llcrx1cnmn rtcmpit,11 

----------------· .......... ----~---- .... ----..-------,ff-.,... . _ 

I\. T clo, 

MR. 11REE:·1Ha..TZ: How 11\lny tJ.rTCs have you cJPfX!lll'(d before t.his !Joard, Miss i:\>g,;!.te? 

I\, I don' t kro,., hc,,,,t 1':lany t.i.JT'es • 

Q. You kird of lost track of tizres? 

A, Yeah. 

Q. f..s I rrentiored earli1:.1r I I ~ yoo to be as call'\ as ~ possibly 
can and speak out on your behalf. Has anyone went over the 
pa.role agr~t with you? 

~. This lust ti~? 

Q, Yes, 

A. I wt!!'lt over t.ho parole e.(Jt"ecrront: before, t kro,,, ~t stipulati.cms 
are on t,l-,.,._re. 

Q. Are there any conditions that you don It undarstand? 

~. No, 

Q. 

'A. 

Q. 

rnn1rcr nrntr:m rn1n rn1>1 mn OlTT,Y f.\·tll'l.N tN 
' , -- _ .. -·-· ., __ ·-·-·-·-• .. •-.,,■ _. ,. 

You fully undorst.arxi all the corclitions, 

Yes. 

D:> you feel th.lt you'll havo any clif:ffoulty livi~ Up to 
tJ,~ rnn-Htion:; of tl'10. 1i..1rolr ,1,rr,, JTY:'nt? 

! don't believe SO, I'vo bean .wle to livo undor the conditions 
hore. I think I CM abide by the t~le corrli.tioru:. 

~Tl,J.St tell, the no.:u.,;1 \J1at your d.i.Uy activities have been. 
I 'vc been v.0rkir'X) in the l!c1~k1rson Nur:;in:1 llc:rro f.or a.l:out ho 
r.:nd a half ye-1rs. ~e last ti.mo I $/'fy/ trc Doard was when I too~ 
the geriatrics trai.nim oourset an<l then r f;,/Orkoo as an .=t.i.clo until 
1 hurt rrry $houldcr, end then r. , . for ,, criunlc or ronths or !;O, 
~ then ! ,~ back ilS so1:t of a d.i.ctici,in. I pr.~ed (';)'>eeial 
diets and ma::1m sura th.it too cllru.~Hcs qot, thC! irisulin OJ"ld the 
ca:-rect calari E:.$ , anl my hours were f.rci:, 2 i 30 J.n th~ a f terr'lt')On 
until 8:30 ~t night. 

?IR, GPl::CNHOLTZ: What about leiF.llll"C tilm activitio~ whan 'y'OU •• , 

A. 

Q, 

!\.. 

/\_j i..::, 

A. 

Q. 

A, 

I do " lot of •• -..ork, crcx:hotim, watchin<:f TV, , 1-!✓• 

m you takiOJ part in arrt camrunity pro:rrl:ffWlq,. action, 
recreation? ;, 

Ye$. I t.lke part in all the o~s that ~ h,,w on crround which 
are the onea yt,u oam throu,;11' ~~r l,ohN1inr, 11(:Jj rq to ITOVies, 
qoillC'J 1n,,t1im, c:ioim to chW-"C'h1 ,'lrtl, •• t.lrJ until thi::s trnnth, t 
!)<'lrt. icip.~tcd .in tho vac..1ticr. hHll c r,d,,..,,I • 



t}f ~t :tf 1 )i;!~#:t~'.''.!:~;:;~;:;~t;'. /'.:~;;'.i\;/i:~'.:~::t"~;~·:'.'.\:i};:\?::;:;\h~;i•,;,:·· · ···:~ .. : •· ·:·· .'~- 
1 • '.: /> f11i.'(':m:r·Niir11:1''/.1·';-:Mr. N(•.11.·dt,yc:ir."1 h,,vc• ,Ill')' (j\.ll'l11..in1\i; eo /'l!;k n'l. T-'ll<Ji'ltc? 

. . . ,•· . ·- ·.. . . : . 

A. 

I\, 

I\. 

A, 

I\' 

MR. NF./\L: 

:-8. c;R1::nm011rz : 

carii am• I hm,ll). klrd of. ·qrowri in t.his l,ur.irloss toStether. She 
. ~ to York al.out t."ic t imo I st:.:irtcxl l,X)t'I; for tho r>arole Board. 
Rile" \,~;lll ,'l 1'1-,·(•,,r--olcl n i r l , :1 yn\H1•1 l;1cly. c.,ri] I tJ10.m•~ ))("'{'fl :'«"m:' 
t,IIJ.: ,1h:~11t. i11 Hie• l'Vl't1t· tl1o11· rh in lln;ml ,h:·•n p,,roh• vou , th,1t 
yo.I wlLl r.J<:•rh,lflt.l nmido i.n ,\!'J')l,h!I' :;t;,tr.!. !)J ynu ruuy ll!l<k1t'!H,'\!'1d 
tho agr~t on dctaincrs, I mca11 the int.erst.ate pc.u-ole cx;JT100ct? 

Yes Sir, I do. 

You've m.'.\l:lE:! m.:tny rrian:ls )mro ut t-J"IC! iMtitution, otnloyees at 
t.lu- 1ml it tit Inn i'lr(1 cln:1c't' tn yr~I than wit-Ii nth0r t1Tp}nyr,..,fi boo .... 111!',0 

··. you have n1 . .111iorit;.~• over rrost of the. , .,\rd H's t10l~1 to be 
l']Ui ~ a shock for yru whon you Icavc hern to find yoursel -f wit.hrut 
all those fri<rnds and .ill tho supr:ort you ht.id .lll these years. 
lb ,'C':11.l think you can COfX" with thr,t situation? 

(1111:.1 illqlli!hthl,• •• 

You r•o..'JJ it.~, th.it 1.111(1cr this irrt0t··:;t:,1Lc 1\1rola canpa&{ r;hc,uld 
I, l.d we t:.r.:msfr:r you to a.nothcr stnto, tJ1ot ~ ivrroc s1¥)1.1 that 

st<,tc oo rOCC7TTT'()nd to ~ aftor you ur~,n their ~poc:rrnldation. 
lb ynu tll"{k•1·nt-..v.d tht1t? · 

so it ooh::-ovos ~ii in the event this f><'lr'ltd cioos parole you to 
rm 1 i :•,-. t lv1t 1,t" nrn,t, b)• ynnr nc-t Inn~, l'.'f'l<Xlltr,1<1a t.hn r,u1'.f.Ort 
of t!t1• 1~1tc•f,, ,111th•rit it•:•\ i11 t(,,11 ::l.ilr• IM,·,111,~• it.':1 n,11. wl1,1I 
Nebr,:15).,;, ;,•.:int..'l should bo p,.,rr,lc 1·01.1. H's wl'l<'.lt that curuact 
S3ys, tl1at ur:-cn the other :-.tatc's r~ncia<:ion, wo must carry 
out Nc-,hrt\f1i<:1 •~ obliri,,tion, ,,ril ~ wnnt t-.n m,.~ke $Ut'e in t:he ('!VCnt 
nf ,1 t\trnll' u,:tt wn ni,k I.hi' qu<':,t- inn:, h1•r,~ lw::fnr~ it's t:cr, 1.--ito 
t·n ,l:l~: ,111•11 • fllt':il' inrti f'I) W111 l 1 qn 1lnwn the, t ,,h1P h0rn, ,"\1¥1 ~~ 
1~.~11• t.li.1t· Mt. l-b\1·thur wil.l liri1,1 1111! ,111ylhi1,r •••rt.in,•nt lo 
the C.:lse, that if you h,wc any q1.J1~st.i.Ql'\!,, yo\l be sure you ask 
the BOard bccauso scroowhcre d~'!1 the ~,ct, we don't want Caril. 
to say, "I didn't knc;,.., ,11 

Tl'\en' is e1nc:- qtk:?st.ion T \t,,Dllld lik~ to M,k. Dcinq in tl-,Q !'X)Sition 
! aM, \o.h..,t. kind of ,"lCtion could I !~!'l5il)ly take in th□ future 
to cl.ll11in..1tc tho publicity that I ~ld like to avoid? 1 rrean, 
if I 1m plnet'.'!d in ~ position W'lc.r.'C I 'rn tryi.n<J the bc!;t that ! can, 
l 'm ~.irki.t'!C1, nw,·1.l<.' 't.:1t.er on !n tlr. fut:ur-c l r!("'t: m.1r.riccl or 
~t.hin:_1, ,,h,it. stipulat.ion!;; d(') T h,we tJ,.:it I. c,'.'ln protect 
myself? !rx:list.inJUishnblo ••• I do not wish to get interviewoo 
~• ('.')r 1.n t.l~ t"utur.c. t do not wish tn ~ cm the 'I'Odtlv Slp,.,, or 
Mikl' ()11).tl;l!, ,,r ,,11')1J0.1y r.1:.t111'l n!),-,...,, l nim •ly Wim.l! ·to 'lt).ntlt 
uni do tl'K' l~~t Y CM • • t:o ti"£' l>n~t of my t1bi Li ty, ru-d thh; iA 
all I wc:int, i'.U'd I do not wm,t llrr/ ~Jblidty, 

You will hff\·c f:o, by t.he virtoo ot' the ~:et that you've put 
yourself' in, .:i co~in ;;;-rount of nubl.lcit~t is qoing to be attad'ied 
to ynu. You' ra ,'lWi'trt' of thi.A, nut ~'(1\lr. CQ.111scl, Mr. P-tl\rthur, 
c.,1, .,,!"\:'-.' ~~"'' <\' t.lu• \'ill".iou~ \o.•:ty!l tJ,,;t· yno rr,.1y nrnt.rci-. your 
rir:ihttl .:is f..'u• ns µr.jv"cy is oon.:~m~I. 'l'hc r.:Lrolc oH~c::or i.~ 
the st.,,to thllt •1-01.1 will qo to in t:h"1 cv~nt or n t.)/11:"0le, ho will 
bo br.h1f.cd on t-J'IC prJv~·u.y th,,t. yo11 cloi.ir~ nr1'1 \o.Orkin-r within 
the structur~ or the local., .nnd the civ.il t"iqhts li!WS, t'm 
sw:o the privaC'/ YQU _h<)ve rc::o·tt-1lro:! will be r.ccuroo. lt's not 
('Jt,itn t:o oo c.-.,~. Ym11rc ,twnro of th!.,,, or \'OU ~ldn't h.we 
mt·•nt.imnl It hf•rc•, 1~11. ,~1rt,'linly I.he- ,~·1rn1<" m1t;tv,riticr. will cln 
w•ri·I hinq 11111• l~,m t·o qiv,~ yn11 1;.1r,,111:H,l:1 l'H'("(•r,r;;1ry rnr you 
to b<J i'I pl'.'<."ltt1cti~, dt:iir.n .:1rd (l)V(J yr:,11 ,, c-!1.·1.,cc t.o live, Th,,t.'n 
what ~'\?U 're askin:J for. 

Hi,111I, 

Thank you, Mr, Chai~• 
; 

tn ordr.t" t~ m11J.:c this tr.:sru;ition, c;u-U, you'rP. goi~ to h,3va to 
.. 
I 
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MR , CTREr-N! !Ol 11'7. ; 
c O"l'tl'n • > 

A. 

MR, F0'1LE'i; 

!\, 

rm. rn,nm·: 

A. 

l('..in, to sny no t:o pc:,oplc tryiNl to 9nt ym h, {'f('t, • • You h.:tva 
a ri11ht t.o l Ivo your life, T t.hJn..1< urxlcr th~ cirC'U'TL'>tMt..'\"Hl, M 
a r,orm;,.l citizm. l!c,,.x;?vnr, you will be urxler su~r.v.i9ion. How 
~'t'I\I 1n.1ho thli~ tr,,n~ition .in ·gtrfctly un to c.u-il F'Uqate rurl 
tlli' 11hl or ynur p:imln r-llPNVi !'<,r:,, You nill-:~-xl ,1 t'tur:'l1ttic,n~ ,mo 
yn.11 n, rq ,rmK"?ntt ~1 by cc~Jn~l, but th~ro nro cott..i.ln ri~1ht~ th.'.lt 
you do have •• , in thtJ event th:i.s l'3o.lrd m,,'\kcs thnt detenru.nntion. 
Ml', Hnwl<-v, di, ~'11 h, 'VI' :Ul)' C'l'lTl"l<'lll '.; or ('[1k"nt inn.r; or C:tril 7 
Well Caril, I too have visit~,d with you on m,rerous occasions 
while you ~re here, m-d the one question that I wu1d P0$e, 
am if my rr.mccy servos me oorrec.tly, at your last hcarim was 
i;arct.hi!'I{) to the effect th,,t ,,,hor~ clool'I retribution amc1 ru'X"l wh:-rc 
docs rch.:lbi U tation t.nkc CNor? J\ncl r think you rl'.l'O'~ic.r. thc1t. 
llopofully tcx.lay, with the responsibility of thi.,; 130.ird, rx-•ss.ihly 
an a~ CM be arriV'l;:!d at, J\nothcr quosti.on that I asked 
you ot one other tine, , ,qoing throu-)h my mind, My fonction, 
1u1 T !".CX, it, 1\.!'l :, ~•I:' (')r tho Nc-bt','\~k<'l :;.t,1h• T'arnlo Boart'l, i~ 
t.n prot·rot :iflc":i<1t y, nn'. to r•mtc-ict· the• vindkt: ivnr,r,r1:; nf fl(_ici.dy, 
Now over tho vc.:m, o'.ltxl in tlic L,~t rc:w ~Ji~, .\M T fool it should 
~ hmlnht 011t \-.\~ h,·1~ rcccd.v<xl lcttct"s frn:1 c>pr~:mitiCJn ll1rl favorwlc 
lcttern, t:.ck1pl\0rK' c.1lfo ru¥l <'\tt•.rythirn elm,, but be thut ns .it 
may, I still huve to br i~ up OnE'! other thing that with your 
tool, years of incarceration, you hAve never received av-on one 
write-,.rn,. Is that true? 

You have nE?'VC.t" 1.'cceivcd a dia:iolimry rmort., 

~:.; to ~• kn::;...•lcdqc, I hnve rot. 

11-l.it is r,-..1lly ~tJiin-1. \k• kn:,..- Li.tt l'IO m..,tte.r \I.hit the outcxnc 
or this j~, :m:t I think t1Mlt1 1 1:hink it Wi\:1 ,,n Bml fr,h .:-iuthor. 
, •• said &....-:cthil'l<J to the effect ,'11,:)Ut the cruel foll~hip of 
sorrc,..,, and this is d\..-::,lle::'!'on hcrrc ii little bit later, !t's 
d, • ,9!1rasc tt'l<'.lt fits ·_into the whole roalrn of lif.e, EVery,:me 
will not oo h..lPP'l .:in:l c:,veryon.~ will rw:,t be rmd, but it's M 
ovcr11ll aspect o':, • ,!;;t'.1 at this t~ t 'm CJDing to ask you, a::. 
Mr. Neal did, do you h..'\va any (j\.lestic:ml'l you ',,O\.lld likP- to ask 
of the Doo.nJ, ilf1Y carrcnt.s th,:lt you woulcl like to XTl3kc bofore r 
clcfcr b1ck to the Ch,li.r? · 

Indisti.rr;uishable. , , 

YCA, 1 re ~ 1 cnrn, 'I'hw. yo.1, Mr. Chai!1'1,.'U'l, 

M~. (;~IOIJI'Z: Rcvr,rcrd T,1h.~. 

ro::v. Tl\TP.t I think you'V('? tilro..idy r;pol~ to tho IT\1ttc.r. c,f wanti"'l t.o be 
iu!,I. ,'\ 1x1r1~1n, ,ml ( 'm qlil<l v(~I nrof.:i• {'() it r.it.hcr t-1'1.-in T h,wirn 
to ~nt.ion .it •• indi$t.i.~JUish,1blo. ,,..r.:l it's throur,h yt"}\1r clcsi.rc 
N)t to bo ~ kird eif <1 ••• •·KY.]rlc?!'l!l. f.et rm ask yCt.1 thi.s. /\r~ 
'!'f.'l\1 th:Jrou-1hly l'>t,tfoifr.(] with )Xl\tr ~!mica nr whC:' rc,, you're ''?<'>il1CT to 
l•m·t t w,,nt; you to be n,,thrir'<l w!H, t-.h,1t;. tr. th?i tnt-,1lly your 

choioo bla«l uoon o friITTlship tln<l t1 to!,~t;ionrJ1ip;t?1_!t:,"thli~hocl? 

A. 

A. 

RCV, Ti\TE: 

l\. 

You're very satisieed with th.lt? 

Very satisfied, 

What al:xlut trc ~loyrrcnt:. situation, .:i?Yl if t could f.oresee the 
kinds of pl"'Oblcsns that you are g0ing to hilve to dc,d with 
iJm'Cdiat.cly, tt Mi(Jht Ix! exploitoo nsrxx:t, ~"It ••• t$! t:Jii~ 
OT.l'.>MY in any ~y refotod to the r:icnnlC' t:h,'lt Y"''ll I t'C c:,oi~ t<~ m 
stayirq with it? It is, 

Yns. It is ,'I r:,'t"ivntc-t.ypo ~,loym:int, 



$','.'),{~~~~-~~~~if ;~t;~;\%t~,~~'.:2:A•~7,J 
~\t~- :;_;r: i' 

. r.r::v. Tll'l'i:=1 
_:\, 

REV, Ti\Tt: 

!'>tR. G~OLTZ: 

/\, 

Q, 

~I!::.:·;. ll,\1111 .. ){JIS'I': · 

' .• ·;- :· 1•• •. 

A,, 

M!~, IV\LIT.(.'(.JIST: 

,i, 

·.- .. ·:, 

MRS, twnJ;Oisr; 

A, 

MRS. n,\! l!.Q;Jl ST : 

That ,wa..c; mr cone~. Tho't 's all :t have. 'If the 13oard sees fit 
to grant you n parole today, all th::l blessings 90 with you. · 

Caril, is this olorical-tYPG ~rk? 

Y~s. 

The s.:ine typ,i or a.1ployr.-cnt ·e~t was foi:mulate<l \l.hile, 
Mrs. nahlquint. 

' . 
c.:-id.l, b1,:lC.I\Hloo) T don It' kn(W you (ftd h'• '1R \,{~11. ,1R tllC nthcr rrt:'!'1Jx1rR 
or tho t}'.,i.:\rr.l, I ho:I!:~ it v.on't •• .vou iC T aak you a few c,uci;tionc:;. 
Hit.h r1Xr;1rd t.o nr. r~-,.,,,lry'H q,~~nt inn, hiWin:l nevor r(~iVNl ,, 
,.lh;dpl.imry rt..'l'(lt"t, havo vou over fnund r<>\1n•;el( in a pnsition 
whc-.re you have ~ imc;ry, unset, lost. ~•our t~r over a.nyt;hinct 
th,·1t mw li.."l'!C! h,,fl"~1rxl whi l~ ')'0\1 \\l:"lrc in tJ,,~ i Mt. it11tion? 

Yes, I have .• ,irdist!n;ruiRhr.\blc.•~ ,\-.hich T thotriht ~re tot..1lly 
-....,·nn:1 tine\ th~"l"f' ~ro t:l.l'!'('li'! wll('n T dc:m't .:ilw.ivR ,"lclrcdwith th~~ 
w,u·dcn. l 11on't. .ilw;iyi; .:igrce ¼•itJl t!10 discinlim,./M<I ! h.:l\!C' 
flarad up, ru,d I hove ar,oloqi:cd rock to, •• Tm:l thcrc'5 been 
ti.nns ard ,"'ltt<'lr ~ 1va dLe;cuRsc<l it nnd e,.·cryt.hi~1 I think . 
both partiQs, •• that beth parties \-.Qrc \,TO!')('J. rt is rot itl.5t a 
one-sido::l, •• indistinguishable •• 

h'hy do yo1.1 fr'(...,, t:Jh'lt you ~hould I~ rxvnlnl tcid..,y? 

I ft.'{'l T !:il't1111<l 1"10 l\l?"Oli'd r.(')(.L-ly tn, 1111' !1t-.,t-.Utl"'n r ... ,y, wl th the> 
tJITC I 1v1:.\ SCI"\'L"-1, with the r~nd.:1lioor; of the inr.titutiont arxi 
the caTrnUtation that ii;; as far as I'm conccrno1, the t~ has been 
served for. the crirrc that I had been <XFmi tted for, l!l'ld I 4:cel 
that I h~ve servoo my t..iJre as fru.- a<; society danandi:;. • 

00 yru see uny ~f.it for yourself by further ir,oarO'!ration in 
here? 

No, 11.!. •~, I do not. 

You l'IUlt irn~('1d <.-...,rl.icir to om of thC' othor no.,rn rrarhors that you 
ditl not wir1h lo b<.1 cxploi tcd or h,1vc .:,ny r;rx:-cinl ,1n!')Oirara.-A ru-Kl 
o,.,hat havo you. H<1.v t.ould you feel that to ca1uly with your 
w.i.~!'lt's, t-Jw t\..:i..1rd \,X)\l]d TMke tho&- J'.'C.VlllC~:t~ of you.rs iu·rl ~ial 
co1"KlitiCM of your p,:lrole for n t,criod or yc..1rs? 
That would be f.ire with rrc, al:>solutely. I'm not sayi~ one thi.nq 
to c;et out .:1nd trcn turn around atd gO out anc1 F.launt, •• t 'm not 
s.:iying one thi.ng hero Md doirq ittoother thing. This ia ~y ~ 
abs"lutely r1;1fuse t:.h.:lt. any intervic,.-,s in ,uw way, sh.,~, ,or ronn, 
I !m)' <lbsolutcly no, .:itd I 1111 not ~,oim to bu:'lqo fr.a,, thtit. 

:-rrs. DAHLQUIST: If the Doord ~d ,"011.'1.idcr tl'lat to oo a :,;pedal o,r,di tion of ~ 
parole, ..,_t,at tin'e limit do ycu think should ba placed on you? 

A, 

A. 'Whate'l."Or the 9oard .... ~d decide. 

~ms. twll:Q'.JI5T: , , .fitJ\ll"O$ ()r, s.1y, f.ive ya.'l.ra, trn yo.ir:~. llru wiU you ro,'lCt, 
c,,!'il, within ~lrty if vrn.1 firrl yr,u.rR<'l f in ,"Ui tmfnrtun.,t.e 
1 >0r~ it i •>n \o.1'1r~rn :vm.' rn1iK:'nl nf ncx: i ,➔ y W''l1l l, J r,.·,t· h • ,"lc:'f':oc••,t.,1,1 n;? 
1•,iMt ~ultl !xi '/Ottr rmctiot1 to th:1t, tl'~1t I'm mire you will be 
encountered with sarct,it"(! duriM yniir r,.,mlc? 

,\. H\"!ll, I h,:w,, cwJCri.crcrd th.it ln 11<'~, i\J"'lr'l J 'vc ,119'l <'-~,cricnocd 
i.t 'at t-.'Ot"I;, ill'Y.1 I (~1 t:.hi:i .... '.'.'IY, Tt1s ~tr.k♦:ly ,'\~ I ,'lm, ilOO 
rct for \,hllt's OCC"\ln:'O<I r'Jr -...'h.,t yn.1 think, ,It'::; for ...,t1,,t:. r ,'11'1, 
and H ~nc, otm' t. ;icooot. )~ on thosn rrr,,u.rrl!'I, then thi,-1' r.c nnt, 
ln the lorn nm, y!"nl'rr l:h:~ !">Jl(" ,,h, lr.i r;r,i.nq to rtl"t hurt, mt t:h<:M. 
I~l:.r=tin,1'llir-!v1blci, .T h,W() mir;iU<~J('l(l otl,~r ~n •• but r•~ J('l,it"t'lrocl 



MRS, MIIT(\\.TTsr: 

A, 

MPS, [l.'\l trJ,.1.ll sr 1 

A. 

ttFS. ~.Hl(Qigf C 

"'· 
Ml~, DAHI.QJIST: 

1\. 

Ml~, n.\ln,(t:llm': 

A. 

i~. DAHI.I,.l.l!S'l' I 

l\, 

t!RS, ll\l ~,:JIS'r I 

,\, 

Ml~. [>,'\l n (\.11 ST: 

'A, 

l\. 

MR, G~CLTZ: 

~. TATE1 

/\.. 

Rf.V, TNI'E; 

A.. 

~thing toe, · I nppr.cciato the , • . It's mt that I think I 'm 
better than. • • irdi.stirquishal~lc. • • 

11.:ivo yc,J f'r)UJY1 any ch,1mo within yourr;df: /:\tl"ICO the ti.rrc of the 
currrrut,1 ti 01 ·;• 

I feel. ,i.nd.istimuishable •.• 

What aro Eial~ of thQ .:ic..•co·,•plls~nta t.h-.,t you've h~ slrx::o you•v~ 
been incarccr.nted, Caril? 

In self-betterrrent, 

In sclf-bottct.T.'l.'.)nt? I think T can iooq~ !"JCC'.')l',la. , r think too, 
CO!l"-1ss ion, • • in1.istincjU.i sruib Io , • I took pri.tlc in tha people 
w!"Q for 18 jll,l.:U-S have hi!.tod rrc so !~, it has da,i;t.roye:i their 
life, and it has made their life m:;re ••• 

Have you t.1ken any sper.!ial murses in •• 

I t.ooJ.; geric1tri~ training, • irrustinguishable. • 

In:listi.nguishable. • 

What i:¼:, yru want m:.,st rut of 1i fe? 

I'd like to settle cb-m, got m.UTicrl, have a cx,uple kids, you kn:'.)I.; , 
set ~ a house, clean. ,<ll1 ordi.nary hooscr.,.-ifc. 

llcw ec you see ycursolf spordirn your leisure t.i.ire when you' re 
not 'wOrkirrJ if you wo.ild be paro'lod? 

Tf T could ,"lrx:1 if it'!; at all tior-r.ibl~, T'cl Hko to \.ltlrk m1yhc:"! 
wiU1 tccn-ooo chil<lrcn, l'V(~ i)(.'0Tl !.,, t!'k:'. , , 

Yeah, special prcbl~. \ ~ Kids ....tx, jU.'St need ~ to 
care el'OU]~ •• in:11stin:;tiishab lo •• 

I 
·, 

I think every little kids feels th,1t way. ts there anything that 
you would like to ask the Board, .o.ny other questions that may · 
have extre to mird? 

No, I can' t thUU\ of any, 

I have rothinc furt."icr, Mr, .Chtiinnan, 

r have one c~.3tion, C,1.dl, llJ'-d it wns G;'),trkod ey oomth.inq 
you said th'lt this w.1~ .:i ycnr of many ld.n<l"> of' motinn .. , nncl I 
-...ion;ler then, anj I think ycu c;:.::l.n hcln us i'lR ~ Doard, i.f yours 
was an execption withlII •• ,of: the !;tatutc:;; that~ ht1ve, ~ 
oot1rolly do not set ~nyona pa.cit six m:mthri, but ~ statutes 
giw us the loow:!l'l t.n, .ln speeial ca.,;c~ thnt we F.eel are 
i,t,portant, t.hat "'" cnn sot a person, ard ~ set you ·a yMr lJJ,eoo, 
and I •rn thirvd.l')(J th.:il;. yix1 krn.1 th.it you htrvo c1 hoaripg sat · 
for yo.i rather th(m go for a oother six 110!'\t.'1s, MCtltci: six months , 
nrother six r.-o:1th3, W.s kind of thinq. My ~stW17 is, do 
you think th..~t ...m!'.l wiw? '/ 

Ji 
I Yes, 

Do you think y~.1 ,,.ould h<l'vc pn:~fc-rrcxl to ,'1,~lvc tho six JT'Ol"lth 
route and them revi~7 

I think so. 
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REV, Tl\TE: 

m. GRl:1-.NIO!.TZI 

A• 

Q. 

A. 

r-m. Mc/\RI'IIUR: 

MR, GREENHOLTZ ; 

A, 

HEV, TATE: 

· You teok my l«:lrc1s ril'.'fht:. out cf my rrcuth. 

r ' ll 'l i ve t.h3n back to you. 

C:~1.ril, Y!'\.t clon't f'oe l th.:i~ Y'm'r(, ~1n.ll'l\'.I to !l,wc MY pt'oolcrns 
whatsc,;:,vo.r m.;tking a rcnral transition b,,icl,: !!"Ito, , , 

Oh, no. . . 

I'm b1.l.ki~J al:x:1Jt frustr~Ol'ls, Like wo bavo frustrr1tioru;, Every­ 
one l'k'\G ft'UStrati;:,~. flnyth.inq can happen. !\re you planning on 
gattirq no,u~ted with the nu.niE;it-..or in your ccrmrunity? 

Yes. 

:-:. m:xm., t.o qi VP yr~, u<lv i co. l\J•id nr. r or \-t~ur .I c-; sure t.irro 
,1ci.i(•it.!q;. Ynu'rc not ~1~1 ti:"I ~t.iy Ct.'X'pc..-1 11p in ll llttl!."! rrxrn, 
You'll I'(> wcn-kir¥·1 m Llmt>t. ,irrli11tir,-nlir-;h,1l•h', ,/\n.l tho rh"lrcl 
w.:mt.s you to 1 Ive 3 norm •. 11 1i re. You will he und@r ~ur~r.vision. 
If yl"l\l viol.ate tho corxlit.i ons on thC' p.tro l o ,,q~nt, vou 
will. bo :=;ubjcct lo be rcvokt"d ,irl.1 returned, returned ru'rJ revoked 
ru,d rf'.!CO'TTl\itted. Do you ~1erstard tl'1<1t ful1~1? Ard you're 
folly m,:o..ro t:ht1t tooro h; or,1n::;ition, st rom oppoo.ition, l\nd 
~'OU h.wc rmny , rn.,ny fric.!fKb. ,:mt! mmy µiocc:i of cor.rcr.oondcnco. 
This ln1.n:1 h.,i; t.hc ~~~.ox, rnt:JX11l.•dl>ility to m.,ko t-Jio tl<'Cir.ion, 
lrx.li:;t.i1r.ruish.u,l1.~. ,Now ~'n~ qcd.1¥1 tn t.,1.k tn other pcoplu ho.'t"(' 
this J'Tl'.m"ltn:j, for um tK'lllmt. Tti<liie;tirr:ruish.:ible, '/ I !t 'g 
unfortunate that you didn't c.1t"?t to do any colfoqe ...-:frx, scm: 
colleqc t.rainim, but it isnit too late, not yet, ,ff you so clesire. 
Of cn\lr:-', th:1t. 's Up tn \'OU, 1111• fh"lnl 1·,1n't r.nk~( tJv1t r'tC'C.iRion. 
I think \<A1 \I.Uuld lik<· to IX!,tr f1nn your C.'nutir;i:-,1, 

\•loll, I tJ1.ink C';u·i.l w,11:1 wine •... in tMi; Institution speak mucn 
louder and much rrcre adequat.cl y tl1nn \•tr.it I can say or Mlyt:x:,dy 
Qlse c:a., say. 000 thinJ s.11o did :=my tJ1ilt I \o.QUld ju.'3t very 
briefly to\rll Uj'X:)n, airl I think u~re ,'.I.re 50l'C thirgs invol.ved. 
!tillstmCJUishablc. • . I'm only aoout n )~ill" older than she is 
~ ! , in .i scnr-..c., Jdn:l of rrr~· ~' witl, her. The thin:J thut r 
h«vc l:ccn r.o ~m"!SS('(l about is wh,jt ,\ t'J)tm:ll person Cur il fr;, • , 
in<li!\l lll'Jtli:111.·,hlr ••• ,r.1 T l·a'lC"J. .. tint !Tl)' wi r,, .,n:t I ,-w.1 our rtiilnr.--n 
h,1vr.1 !inm c>ut l1t•rc on M'l.'lJT'/ oGc.:minn::;, .-11xl nl\L, m·mtl.rinc.'<.1 l1<1vinq 
fo;:,l inp, for pc.x:iplc mvt T knc-,,v h<M fX'<'.plr' t"r.flponc1 t.n h0.r, , , 
I lllilll. th.ti i:; 11rnh1ld~• IJ11• nu:t 1·,m1rk,1hl,, lldr)'1 i!1 1'11<1!· :,111• 
h.,,; l••·n ,11,!,•, 1>•ifl,i11 111,1 t'i111! 1111•:: 111 l!ii:: in::I itut ir>11, .11111 
qr,,,. 1~1 t.H 1.)1.~ ,1 nm1rl;;1hly noi11f1l r•nn~ 111, ,111d I tJtink lh:,t. in 
prnh,!.lr n1r. pf ~t. n11f·!'!t.,nlin11 Hdrrf!'I t-.h-,t' r.,n IY' r.,i<l loth 
"'"''',·.,,ii .111..I h1l.li ,1h111t t!u· 1,n,1r,11, •• 11-li::I i1~n1i:;li,tl,),,, , 
Sil(' i :: ,lW,1?"0 c~r thci:=;C' t .:utl t:h.~ fll()',t; iITU)rt.:mt t:hi.nq i:c; f',hC' krn-rn 
hr1-¥ tn <l<),11 wtth theru"! pm,lr:m!';, Thin in tl'K' t.hiT¥J t.h;it: T think 
is ~ry, Vi'....!::' .ron.'U'kablc, a.N.1 1 think wi tJ1 t:1"1so CCfl1TCnts I thnt 's 
al:out all! have to say, 

Thank you. Ar.~ else hava &"II/ q,.iestiora? Cou.ld you iclentify 
yourself for t:h~ reo:)I"d? 

I 'in J.nres .M;:ru-.thur. 

I'M just. ~rirJ:1, this has been a strorg frioooshii:,. J\re ~ 
going to make miy recarrrerdations to legal ccwu;el in the area 
\Jierc she's ga.Ln':} •• 

You haven't disou.,;~ th.1t yet, 

C'Mil, you sr,oko ~"ll"liCt" to the Omirm.,n ..u,out the proolmi thl'lt 
you'll readily be conFrontod wit11. ,,,i-,,c, will you tl'tlk to or wt-ar. 
wi 11 P,J sock • • 

Iniir.tinJU,ii:;.litiblc- •• f-'irst of .:lll, tho prnblc!"ii•l I t,.,vc •• 
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MPS. C..\H!..QIJ! st' 1 

MR, N1'~\T,r 

MR. ~~rt,"R: 

Basicalli' the Parole Offi~r is where it at.!lrt..'3. llc,,.,,ever, the 
Do::1.rd ~1d oort.ainly be availnble at any t.in'r;! if yo·i.1 find it 
necessary, :t oon't have any f'ur~r crua~ticM, Mr. OlalltMl'I, 

Mr, No.."11. 

I don't rcvrl ty ~ \iwti<'.'tl'K"r T 'm ,·1d(lr'('.IH:,i tl'J !'.his ro c,,ril or 
\olicthct I 'm ,1dclrc:~sit'J"J i.t: to !-it'. ~r..l\.rtJmr, hut nr. r,t{.'ilrtJ,ur, 
}'0\.1 fi l t:. u .. ,1-p, .,nd vou 1\'<' hr,,rd (.',,ri 1 r .. ,.,. t·n th~ 111:'>."U"tl t.h,,t-. 

r:h~ dPr:\1·,•:1 h' puhl ic:i.l.y, mil yclU luvm l Mt·?:, 1,1hlq11hit:. 1:i11k w!lJI 
Cadl nbc._.it publicit;•, ,•oo hcii:u-tl.C11ril di reet ~ statcn:mtFI 
to l'T'C, Caril wan~ ro publicity. \-Jltd'I Mr, Than,"ts, our plaOCJmnt 
offiC'c1r, t,,Prn witl1 r-tn, F\1q,1tr, ,incl qr-..~r, Cl\,'1'r th(• r~"ln1l0 ,1/'ll"l"rn'l'l1t 
wit!, 1w.T, tlk•t·,•1:1 ., di.u'tl'.'() U1,:it wt~ wi 11 ll.iv<• im;!:al.l,xl .i11 
tll.:il:. parol o «1JrCC1'imf;. as part of l).'1.rolc that sh(.)'ll qrant ro 
intcrvic.•,,•g, i:t~<'lr on m irrt:ervicws, whether it be television 
or otherwi :;~, wi tJ"(;lut !)Ol."?IUS9 ion of th:? P,;,.role Board or the 
riarolc Mficcr, Md if you will intc~l to :resist that in MY 
way or- if. it is rot to your liking, hero is tm plaoe to st.a.ta 
your position, 

~. Gtril .i.n.,;ists on th.i.s, and prior: t◊ this t:iire. • indistinguish­ 
able .•• or course. the IJoattl is aware of, she c.lnrot control 
::ci,lici ty bcv-:m1 oor ire1ru;, lx,yr:nd h0r mt <rrantin:t f.ntcrvi~. • • 
TrKlir.t.ir,-,1Jinh.'lhlc •• 

l·k-1 I, i:h,• ::.,I 111,r" t hi•: nnti1ln<1 ,1nl :tlK•'n ,1nkit'Y'l 1m tn J,,,Jp 
her wit.Ji h,•1· ndv,wy, ll1n c1•rt.1lnly ;, nin~1!1) l!\1ltcr fm· U'K'! 
r.it"'.)lc 13c\.1n:l to i,.,rit.o i.nb:'i the p,:1.wlc cigrc:-cm:mt, you make no 
in t.e:.rv fo,,.,-s wi t1-c1.tt r,iennissiOl'I of the l'urolo BOO rd • 

Ard I'm o;:,rt.'lin th..1t rrost new!-l m:::dia, if thcv folt it was a vlolation 
of a parole to be granting intcrvi~, cc.rta.inly \oQ.lldn't be 
asJd.m her to J-:l(> mnkirrJ ~. Sho'i:; ,,flkinq 1.rn t.o write it in there. 
Is this rinhL? t thi~ it bchcovcs u~, in tJ\C event sho qet!'I 
enot)Jh votes hart'.' for p,:u:uln, that \-X! t.trt1ctura ll ri,.,role aqrcan:mt 
th,,t: prnfl"(··U: h1'r i 11:~t n lit: t 1 r- hit. l r nhr < l~n' t. hm.'<" 
tJ10 .:n1tJ1ori ty lo m:IY.o tl1C!".O t.ri 11f1 to i11~)0.U'.' on tfa .. 'fm omcrrl'lln':l, 
src ccrt.ninl;• c.m't ••• Do you know w.iat I'm trying to s.ay to you?· 

MR. ~~. Yes, l oo •• irrlisti.n;;uishllble, .r kin., she feels quite s~ly 
about this. · 

MR, NE:J\L: 

MR. NE:AL: tmat we're talkil'XJ .:u,cut '.1,era ~~ facts. Wo're n::>t going to di.angc! 
our thil"\Xing. • .So "~ can proh."tbly taka car~ of 75i of. that 
if it's on the pnrolo artr.oaront., Thank you, Mr. Cham.111n. · 

MR. GREEY.!OLTZ1 Mr. Io.;ley, 
'• 

MR. Rair..E'x'; I don't be li!!?ve t hiWe ru,ythi ng further, Mr • Chai.man. ".l'hal1k you. 

MRS. ll'\!ILOOisr: Just· ono rote, Caril, in ro.j.o.rd:;i to the ~ial ron:lltiono; of 
the parol~ c!kJt."~nt;, you reali zo that a violation of MJY Ofl<? of 
those CC'lrdition.c; .ls certa.inly ••• a pmb.'\blc causct he.1rim an:'1 
n f'¢SSibla r~tion Md beil)('J bt"OI.XJht back to the imt.itution. 
Are yo..i cr,,,ara of this? 

h. Yes. 

MR. GREr:-mourz: Caril, y.,u askoo· for the 8011.rd'ts nssi!.tan:r., in ••• o:, you 
think the Board can assist you by tnuk.irry that a special oorrlition 
of your oorole that ~ not do F.a1"CtbincJ liJ.:c this a.f.tel'.' yo1.1 
are rnfoased? l' think that cruld be a ~roat o::,n~i~qf_;!ltion h~.rc. 
~· othet' ~ts, ooiinselor? f / . 

~~. r-b'\R!1n.JR: I tMnk t 'm fini!'lht~I. I 
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MR, GREENHOL'l'Z1 ThMJ< you, Ms. F'Ugat~, ~ you m.:1y oo cxcured. 

stJSJFX.T EXrrm m:, 1 

!:!!.,rNESSl:S B'ROCO-rl' roM\PD 

MR, GP.El:N-!OLTZ t ~ve you got tm t.a;pc roo:irde.t: roody? W<a! will ~ hear the 
p~le that are awearin:; in ~ition for any favor<lble 
t"<)l\<\hi<'r,1t·ini1 in thlrt m.1U0r, '1'11<"' p1ncr"ln11•,, wi 1l h': ~T!lf' 1q,, 
li,1\11• ;1::P,111 ::1,th• }n\lJ: lt.llOC' ;md ,1•.lc.lri.!!lr, HO \>l\~'ll hav" It ;11.: .... 
a m:ittc.r of record, Again, I'll rl'll:,eat it, Is MYt,crlv appc.u-irrJ 
in opposition for MY favorable consic'leration? 

\ 
RPI. T.:\TE1 Is thero anyooo here tooay thnt · is in OI.J!)C)Sition to Caril 

ruqate' s pn.role? Tf y~ \a.re, Mel you wnnt to ~ f01-ward 
,1rd nw.~-:c your stilt.crr.- .. '!1t:.s kt~m to the. nrens ~! tJ1e no.,rc1, yru 
may do so nt this t.Unc. There flCcm.c: ti.") bo no one, Mr, Chnirm-..n. 

tm. <iRIJNllOLTZ: ts there anyooo in the ro:::111, in t:h::i i'ltl<li cneo , trot hac: an 
interest I 11 this l'Yk"lttcr that: ...ould liJ:a t.o ccmo before the 
aoard artl ·state their reasons \\tiy they feel that ~. Fr..qate 
sn,ul.d be granted a r<-trole? 

'l'hc &-nrQ prooxturo th~n. W:Jul<l you please cane !'orwnrd ard 
identify r..rursclf? oo you want then to be 5\-,0I1l in? 

Yes. Raise your right ham. WITNr:..SS t:l,"LY sw:im IN 

! do. 

Have a seat, Mr. Kuchel. How ar~ you today? 

F~, thank you. /' 
/i'.i Yru underst.a.rd this procodure , .'/ .l 

Tnli:;tinqu! slvihl o •• Mr, Chilit:m.-m m-rl rrmix,r·n of the no.-irrt, my 
n;1lll' in r:. P, K~d·rl, l nm ., r,rofcr:r.nr nf Crimi ri.:,l ,T1t1ti~ 
.:it the University of Nd)raska at a-r..u-ia. t( it mocts with vi=,w:' 
,~rmi ssion ,wl in thr~ tnt~rnst of ti~, r 1,.'(Ju1<l like- to ro~-:'I 
P1>' :;t,1tm1.:nt into U1,) rncord, "I .:i1~,nx:i,1lr.~ tJ11::- opportunity of 
bcin-; pcnni.ttad to offor son, brief ob~rvatioM COl'D2rn.l.ng 
t110 parolG of Ms, c,:i.ril flnn F\)'Jllte, I am ,'.lp[ie:1r.i.nrJ h~re only 
ooc11use I know there's .:i Cfl"Mt ulll'.;M'lt of scntincnt an:1 Ert)tion 
on both sides o.e the issues you must docide, .-ind ! wish to 
stc!lte ~ of the! f<"Jctual iri.fox:nation which I i»'!1 a~tro with, 
let n-e l'ltate that I h.we been i.nl"ires,;ed with the obstructivity 
tJ1is floi\nl h.1s rogul.:u-ly sho.-m in it:s cvalu.:ttion of thia Mil 
0U1or. c.:ii;\ct-:, t mn o.mfioont; you will rot f.:ll.t!'.\t in yoor· objectivity 
ns you tral.:o your docii'lion this day. The f,'lct~ th.:"tt are 
pertinent in this situ.:,tion a.c; t see it tell~ us that the 18 
yo.lrs Ms. Fu'.]ate has served j s a gr~t de-u lorr,t=.rr thM the 
~vera9e i;:,eracn servi~ a sentence to life i.mnr1$ortnent has G¢1"Ved 
'M1cr...o l'icr:T. facts b:!ll 1.1s that she hai; ~rvrxl her. cntiro l A 
years without ti -lisci()lir..-u:y report. N,yonc who has -...orkod 
in a oor.rectiotial institution 1-'.riows this to oo unusual •. The 
foct.s fu.-ther tell us th~t sha has canpleted her schooli~ 
while it1 this institution, th."\t she foat"t1('.'( 1 the Vi'tloo of work 
ru1c:'I the self-discipline a.rd p,,t.ionoe nccc~M.ry to <'l~li,,;h 
tJro.1.e. liar p:otractnl pcrl.ocl or l-hrk. ~lar'.H~C'.I tcstifil!S to ~r 
.:ibUity to adjust to tl10 out!'3idc world arrl to iro,,t: the work 
c.-.ql!':ci:ation.CJ af othc!.r rxorl<i, Tho l')Ositivc tc::it.iJTnl"ly T 'm nun, 
you h,we rccdvoo in t.hc form of oon:csrx:,rr:loncci r.pc,"lk hirihly 
of h~.r !rierrlti who ru-e stronqly • • .rul of t-.hc cdterll't one 
coJil \l'>O to rre.:.sur1:; prC"P:.u-odnc::.s for c:ordit.iorw r.clG?l!ro tallS u~ 
th,'lt Ms. ~ate is an cr,':COption,uly qoad ri:.k. If corrections 
is to h~ a.,y J'!nll"l ifl:1 other than th.it a l'T'Q':lOS o[ punish'Cnt 
nn::1 rcit.ri.bution, then we mus~ c:.<nncloo~ thnt tho rrr.x:a!'ls h,is 
achiavi;xl its ulti'11ata qo.-Jl for 111.~. F\.,:J.!ltc, \'k) :ill krrM th,.'\t 
offendt!r-$ arc inl'ltitution.'\lb:~l 1'19 r,urtli.l'Jnr::mt, not for 
r,i,1rd-Rllr\'Cnt. 'rhn cni nroccn!l nf ll'lc:it-il-uf•i,-...., .... , -"~-·-'" , .. '"'-----~ 

,~r:v, '1'/\Tl-:i 

Mn. GRI:l:NH·JLTZ : 

MR, KIJQ{El, ; 

MR. GraDliot.n : 

MR. Kt.OiEL: 

Q. 

~m. )<l l.'l!T'J,: 
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MR, h1.IO!Et,1 
(~'11'-.'l'll,) 

MR, NFl\L; 

MR, NE:1\Lt 

MS. SAVERS: Yes. 

Q. 

~5, SAVE:RS: 

HR, GREl:NllOirr7,: 

MS. SAWRS: 

o. 
MS, &WERS: 

... _Q' 

MR. fCW!..EY: 

MR, CREENHcr,TZ t 

~E. W:SS!Cl<; 

~IR. oru:ENHOLTZ I 

MS. PESSICl<: 

o. 
MS. Pl:.."'S ICK: 

the rmabilit.,t('c;; pri::x-;-~•,1~s th"'lt rosul.t in r,u1v.::r:vi~, {-eloiJse, 
Th.:'ll: f'l'YX.'<'::r: ),,"IP 1'.l<'<m ,11x-.nnpl ii1hcd, ,1rul I linl it"!Vr- /!!: il'I n<,.., 
t..im:'! to allow M.4, l·'U(_mt<.1 tha c~~:ort:.w1i t.y to nv.tJ,;a al tJOr.it:.ivo 
contribUtion to soc:icty." Thank you for your ti.lT'e, 

Thank you. 

Anyone h!!VE! any questions? Thatll< you. 

The inp.it ii; really appreciated, 

WI1mtss BFO.GfI' ·FOFa·lm MD OOLY 5W.'.l~ IN 

Ard j"OU!' Interest; in this ~e, M.'l '~? 

My interest in this case has l,cen Iorq-r arsjed, ! am only :i 
year older th.-m Caril. T 'm a nacIvc Ncl)rasknn. I have fcllc,r,.,m 
har the p,:1st 18 years dur i.ncJ 1.11l)risorrrcnt nnd a qreab c1c,il of 
interosr.. My inwr.ost ir; ilh:ci ln rr,.,,ttcrs ncrtain.in, to society, 
I th.ink ~ hnve m, ooli.(Ji>tlm, t:o sec th:1t our nen<1l system is 
what it s.,y~ it is and tJ"l<'.lt her r0.habili~tion •. r don't think 
that caril can exhibit M'1yn-orc than Mi.' has alreiJdy exhihHC!d 
to us, th.it-. src is alrc..-1dy tn try, M<'l thnt •~ all she can 
do ls to try. Thlt. 1E; al l .:m\' of tt.<; can rk», T fcl t vcrv 
CXl'ITlllttQ'.1 !o tcst-.i fy, mt only for m,•i;,-,lf. T feel that I. 
h.i\~' l••t11•f'1tnl :~ic·i<>ty l11 qnv--1i1•1 1q1 th.'lt r-:11'il h;1:1 not, ,ind 
yut, , •• i\n.l l wouJ.cJ pl1xKI wit11 the lk..,,.1nl to ull<.."" lier 
an opportunity for a parole and be a productive tranbe1: of our 
so::::iety. 

You've also ~nt rorrcsp::1rxfon-:e in favor of her ••• 

Ye.s, I have, 

• • ,ooiff; grar1ted favorable oonsider.iti0t1, 

Right. 

Thank you very r.iuch, 

Thatik '/OU very much. l\rlyOnC! olse? 

Wl'J.'NESS BID.l(Ur l-'O~.Rf)' AND DUL,Y St..ORN IN 

i'es, Sir. \ 

Clive yc,.ir name for the rea;>rd pleasEl, 

M<f rame is Shelley Pessid<, and l'm ft"CJTI York, Nebrask..l. 
,, 

.l\ril your · inh':!rnst in this c..-1:'Jc? . 

1'k.~11, 11W l't'Cellt.ly in tho 
0

l.:l:'lt yr,,,r l>CX'!rl ,1 mrrc.><:t.ioMl officor 
here at tho il"IStituti.on, I resigned £lOOUt t~roc ~lrn ;)(JO. I 
r1:1i::i.o/lOO to hc1ve « b."l.by and I 'w ~rked very clomly with caril. 
I 'va workod with her supcJ."Vlgor arrl har. h,il.l fnr t.hc p,Jst year, 
ru-,:1 l just frel that it'n my obU.qnt.ion, I h,'.llJ'(! I~ vary clooe 
to Caril, not only ~re 't.t! jrn~t suoorvi~r~ and resident/'!, \«:l 
bee~ very close fricm.ls. t f<=!<!l th<tt c.u-il fo such a WcnM 
oor,;on that t.hero' s i;o !':\any thi~a th,"lt sro has missc<l out on. tf' 
I can. think oe tho th.il"J"Js I missed 01.11; on frCJ"1 tho tiJl'r. I w.,~ 
14 until, 11m ju.1t 2fi, I c.:in't iln,'l<"7!nn iust !'~ of, they're rot 
--•...t.·- t....:- •l-.4 ...... .,._ M,+- f,,1,nT"'n1ct t-h-4t"\t"f"'l h~,,-,.._ ."\ .. 4'-'°"' fnc,f,,\+-,rt:1,.,,., +-h.~ .. 



!'{i~?;~Jtii1if;§~i;~{\i:!t:_·!(f ~}?ii)&.IiC:_ .. --· .. __ _ .. ~. ·-·-'" . 
~i:~. i'E:SSIC.~X= she'r,; !l,ltl •• diffaront thin7s, oh, tht'>,. ('.tet <li.fforcnt thingi=; to 

(Cct-.TD.) do 1 l ko sw:irrtn.it,g ard di fforent thii'Jl:~. Trn"I~~ ,'\~ the thir,qs 
· i::hc h.ns mial"!C'd out on. Tt 's like nt1(1 rrontionod, all she wnntoo 
to de wa::3 to have .:! hcoo. She can ' t ·j ui~t r10 !ic"JTlc, ,ind l f 
she f.cc.ls like r.-..1.l<im c. o..1tch of cookicn , it'!; too little th:lnqa 
sho mi:;r·..cd oue. m. 0nc t.irrc she wnnh:v1 n cb,. f;hc, Wc\l"ltm !",aTmnc 
M!1~ 1,;)11hl Iovo ,md h,m1 on tn, m~I th.11';(·, ,1rC' t hc tJ1im~ t-h.1t. ! 
fr·cl /':(1 :~rry rnr 11,,1· t:.1,-,t: ,1l'1C' h.:i:; t11inn1'<l rn.1t <'n. l ·\unt l1r.,po 
Y"II 1 ~ ~, f I I'. In , 1t\1t1t ! 11•r t hi n p,1rn h•, .tnr l t h.1v1, 1-,:·, cto11hl' in 
my 1:111,I lh.1! nl~.• will t•t~l\lt' tn ,·,111 tl~d ::!\,•. in vr-rv t'(1!~1!,ilil.t1t'(I. 
J. t:h j 111{ ror ~1~ Ion r· n)i,, 1 II lx"<"ll ;f\11'.!~t ! ('J'\C:'lfl evorv y1 vrr or Ill 
tho 11c:,,~11i.111CJ.r ,u,i.l 1'\'<.:t1>t.:.hin:1, L:h..:.·y n.•1 lvo I hbi thin<.f over. .-uic1 C"lVc-t' 
LU"lc'.1 ovor ,1criin, ,:m:1 T dnn't t.hi11'\:. .I,!'; t:J,o 1p..1Csl:io11 nt h,,1'>'.l, I 
thit,k •!r l'liir~, Iii, in ::!JP ri,,,d,,•·t-n !H"1 p;1n1lc'(l :u~l h•:ul ., rinrm.11 
life} h."ld 1 (1..'\Jl th,,t shc't, Vl.~rr rccJ'..I)'. 

Aeyono have any qUestion.s? 

I hll'.'G rnne. 

MR. GREENiOL'I"Z : 

MR. RC'h'1£'x'l 

t,ffi. ~ IOL T7. I 

MS. PESSICK: 

Q.· 

~5. t'ESSICJ:: 

Q. 

MR. GRE:f}ITIOT.,'I'Z: 

Q, 

MS. PESSICR: 

Q, 

a:. 11-:,::w1<: 

0, 

~. PFSSla<: 
0, 

MS. PESSTCK: 

Q, 

~u. ·1'1:1'1-',ll"K! 

Uc:,,,, lo~ did you :.ay y.::,1..1 ~re ctrployE'!(;i ht",..rQ? 

I.as t ','Olll:. 

Just 1,:i.st year. 

I haven't bee, ase11::1ei1ltc(l wit.h her for 18 yea.rs like a lot of. 
pc-q:>to, b.1t T .l1<wc hem very cll'.l!?O w\t-,h her in tho ~st, ruid I 
ft~•I l.h;it· 1 k1r,w 11,,,- ,111 '-''11,11111c1iv1 11i.11 li,w11 m·1yh:1 k1t-,,.'l1 h"r 
for 18 yeurs. 

Were you in favor of her havin:r n d;;K:r? 

I could roe the prti)lan t'.hcrc, but it's tJ10 li ttlc thitYJS that 
rihe r1.1icl to I'\' nr Lh1t· r <'.l'IO"ltrn!c·rcd, 'rhiil c1hln't h,'U'!f)('n while" 
I w,1111,nrkint l1t•r,1, 1~1!: t!)j• littl11 l'hlnq:1 th.1I. ~'(111 j11nt: n,...-, 1'11,1t 
!,lit:'::,, vr1y w-11,11 1••r-::nr,1 dn:I 1J.,.•rc'r: t . .ltinq:: t!i,,t ·,'()II c.•,1n't: qi.v,_, 
than in tJ1c i n.c:;titution thnt you mn on l:!1c ootsido. 

l w.1nt to a.,;k ')'0.1 ,:\tnthf'..r CJU(!Stion, ro yru thinl~ •• 

·n,in in wh,,t l 'm myirYl, Rh.-:1 li,lf; ml!lflt'<l ,~ut: cm no, rfuny th!~rs, no 
m1J1y lid 11qi; I h.11 '>,.,q rn.1ylM• 1km' t t Ii int: .ilx~1t·, I il:/1 fl(')illt t·o :.1 
f<"X,thi11 '1i11K' (11' h1!:k1•t.11;1l l, t Iii np t.h.-1\. •1"1111 lv,vr.• mlni:c,l 
out on frum 14 to 132, t cru,'t .lrn.,qioo lx:x~.:1tr.o 11n not tl,,,t olct 
yet, but I C.:\11 think of' the th.il'Jm· I'd m.Lrrn out on, 

l3ut yc:iu wcrt:in't c!1<'ll"l1¢d with eomiittir,q ll felony. rn you fool 
thnt tJ1crc 5rl'..'lltld 00 puniSm'!Cllt, , ,.irJnin.!,t rollc,.-1 citizens? 

Ct> I think th<:!ra should be p.mistm:mt? 

Yes, 

W:-ru.kl you r:,,i' t:h.,t C"','t'rytx.rl)' rc."llly krt1t1:I r:,ril 1-,),'J,1t-11, th,,t 
th'.ly 1.·o,'\J.ly k.n'A.<.' he:!.':" ,ml liko her'! 

Yes. 

Ve~, nhn jn, 

c,,ri 1 dni.•rm't ,~, ,111ytldtllf 1.J1.it. <'.1ri 1 1h·m1'L rn·,t I~• w,mt rn· I ,-.,1. 
str dcx~n•t dn fl,::m,thit¥.i <)r ~1y r,c:m-,t-.hJrx1 to ,,nyonn 1w;t 1-n m,~:l" 
tlx:r.1 :hink t;j1at sho is •'I cp:,c.l t,crson or inmthim. Caril i r; very 
much her- o.,n n,,,...r~n, ru1d Hko ~o ell"~ S<""li.d trxL,y, it:'l'i 
c'.!r\,'l7.i:,-i •,1h,1t ;lhC hns ~rru,,n to he ffi.JC::h ,,, :,;ho h,:i~, ll.kc a}:,r:,ut the 



if!.(~14~;v1,~m~i(f~1~ftt1Nt1J\NW'"''). 
.. ~1S. rrss rr.K: 

(C'nN'l1', I 

l'i"'llJC.' 11 

MH, c,ro:r~ !Ot/T'?.: 
~f;. l"'tR~tC':l<z 

(). 

ss. PtSSICK: 

HS. E:I'P: 

HR. Gflm-Jr!OLTZ: 

MS. EPP: 

Q. 

~E. EPP: 

r<'!fot:mi!-my h!'.'..!X' or t.hc etmt~r, !'lh\"' hM !"In htHl fn:,Hn<i~. ! clnn' t 
thi1tk :111,,111 q,, ,!Wtiy ..... ,Hi ,111)' ),,1(1 fr•ollnq:l l~·l'l'. !'.<> nnny dirft'rf'lll 
q.ii:li.~ I '1,i) :i..-x•n ,wt out <k> 11,:ivti these fo,·1 i rs m , rm ... mt . .1111:s•t. She · 
docsn • t h.;1\10 tlITTOO . 

A 11 ~l r,(ic) i n f; i T'C(lr i t y. , 

Yes. 
,/-' 
I' 
I,' , . 

1 ndis tin JU i s.'1,1,b lo , 

Like sha said, sh0 is very i;olective and ,.,:h,n l f.i.rst started 
•.,ior)dng here, she didn't a~ar real warm tr:> rrc, hut she f~ls 
out thin<:r(l ~ L~ very sure \lf.'icn she docs ~ up to ~O'T'l!;X'l r,e, She 
is sure that they are frich:ls, and they ~111 st.c"U'ld by her. 

HR, GREENHOIJ.I'Z: You have to realize th.:1t wo do.al with all types of t~le arrl 
all. t:ypcs of F"'xsonalities. Did you get real close to Paula. 

MS. I"E:SSICJ:: No, 

Q, You Ioarnod thnt mich , 'I'hat.: 'a .tll the <'JU~t..iomi 1 have, 

REV. T,\Tf.: I have ~e. 

~Ul. <ml'J·}Jlk1!,'l'1.: 'l'h:11\k ynu l.~'t)' tr'llld1. Anytxxly c1:w'J 

H!TNESS BIU..Gfi' roRi•lJ\RD ANO OOL Y 5\-.tlR-J !N 

Yes. ·•·· 

·! 
I 

no seato::l. pl~se. State your nerre for the 'record, 

l•:Y ~ i!. f>~~ln Q-·,p, i\T)'.l I'm frrm York , Nebraska. 

I thinl<. I h.:id a letter f.rcrn you. 

Yes, J 'r:i di roe+or of nursinq ot thr lfortl~.rson Nursinc:r lkmi'l 
\,➔,,·ni c.u-il h.111 h"<'!I on lv::irk Rclc,1:a', ,md T 'va kro.m linr ror 
,1.1-cJUt tw-, ;m<l a h,,lf ;·n,r.r.. She !\t·,1rtcd nut as ,'.l wluntc'C'r .in 
our ini;tit11tion in ,7,um,:uy of 174, In ,"l!X)tlt Scpt:CT'ber, sh~ 
st.:irt~l w.:i.r:kim. «.s a nurse Is aide ru-d st-.arted out on a 90-hour 
9C?riatr.kR trai.hiT¥J pt"CXJ!'clTI them which !;ho ~.letErl, ru-d then 
after t.hllt she w.;,rkoo ns a care st.1ff ircrrbcr until she iniurcd 
her shouldar, , .MI then she cruit for ,1 cnupl~ of rronths am 
then ~<'t:\iz.'nCd "'°rkir,q in ·tre dict<1ry c1cixirtment a!:l ~ dictetic 
,1i.do, rn'll l fc,,cl th.:it c.,ril has dcm:mstr.:it:ad whilo sho waa in ~ 
inntitution th.1l 1.;J-.c, <~iln t.:iko on !"t'l!~')('")!i~ihiJit:y, MY MC 
dmrin.,e:t.r~1t(')c.1 her ~nm;ioh for: oldcr-1y rosiclont:s tharo. She 

, r.-m'lo fr iml=15 .wTO!lfJRt the, rosiclants m~l lllml'YJF.lt her. o:)-\IJOr}:or.s. 
r thl.n),; t.hm·c W,7/i ., 1nt. nr scntim:mt. ,,q,,inst hnr whan i:;))c fir.i;t; 
nt. 111 i, I, , ,1-,. I 1 ~ 11 • pn 1'-'" I llc•rr~' lf , md t 1Wll''I( I ., 1 nt· c,f t h"t t r-;,,nt i rrrnt 
,mn1nd, l\\dl h,m !v:'('ll in ow.• h·:t11c· ,1 c..'t)t.1111<' 11f t.1.tn(ni on f11rlou1h, 
Wr~•vo lc,1.t'"!'m to love hnr as 11 port1.,n arKi ,:1ect•ptcd her for .,,,,,,t s:1C ii:i. !'>1y ehi.lclrcn love her, ard !'l1y husband thinks va.ry ,..~ . 
hirihly <)f 110.r. Wo'rP vr,ry rnuch in f',1vr>r nf 11,-.r bci.111J relcw-w.d, 
;,1~1 WI'• ,:.111 i;rv• Tt/l r,.11·1 ht'( rn·1i1em !111 l1r-r t '> I>•• inG,ffni''r,,t.r~l. 
I don1!;. tJ,W; t .. h,.1t ;r.nytl\im c;oulc.l ,~ qairY.'tJ. l think tli.it !,;~~•r, 
rc,'.'ldy to CJ i w li fo i\ try, .u,r::l I th i nl< sir. dci;crvos it, 

\ 

' :.m. GrulN!{OLTZ; ,\ny ~ts fn:tTI am'OTlc? Thllnl< you f()t' yt'.W:' inr,,ut . 

W, 'l'Al'E; I have one question. I guess you'r111 tho <.~lcsest person woo has 
Sl:'Cn CM"il functioning i.n c;1 (XfflT]UnH:y scttl/"J"f •. Jtcv did f!he 
h,1nc'll~ st,ress when she was roioc..'tod by tho ncq,l(' she WilS 'nQrkirl'J 
wlth? '!!CJW did she de.it witJ1 th1t? 

MS. EPP: Well, ~iJ'neg soo \oJ()U1d cry. J, tri(."(1 to cxnl,,in to har th.!lt 
this i~ t;.ht, 1.,r.w t~c•oph" ,,re, .iricl th.1t. riho in <Joirn to <1ct thh; kind 
of rcactir.·m nr; ,..,:,ttt)l' \o.➔x:,ro i;!'K! tp~:-1, ,"Incl l'J1,"lt tho om/'! ~,n rr~,1 ly 



REV. T,\TE: 

MR. G~ar..TZ: 

MPS. D\HI.misr: 

MS, EPP: 

MR. N&\L: 

MR. GREEN!iOLTZ; 

r.m. KI~: 

MR, GRtENiOT~TZ: 

rm. KI PST: 

Q. 

:!R, K!PS1'1 

(). 

~unte:3 w-ere the onos that suppor+od her, her friends, lli"\t 
. had accepted her for wh.:it she w:is. 1 think 11s ti.rm -went bv , she 
was able to ler.i.rn how 1~0 de.:-1.l with thi:'! type of :;ituat::.ir:m, '/\t 
I'l rst , I thit1k .it nx1l.ly thrc-.,· hor , in t:h,,t it. linrt her vorv 
droply to fool th,:it r:;l,a w,1R horn t:ryi.nq to help t:hcrn, 1'!10 they 
1>.A:t·,. 11111,hin1 h1•1· ,!\<',Ii', .1r~'i nhi- h.1,I ;1 ("('>tll•l" nr vpry ntrnn11 
n~1d.irn1H, , ,/\nd t..!11.in, ,.n .. l'i n-vcr.rl n.•::ic.1<•11!.n .it· th~ h(l'l'C lod.iy 
who sord the 1 r' su11 :x,rt to her t().l.,Y. 

\-.bul.d yo,J say then th.:lt this has been tnt1ybo ,1 kird of. trai.nin:i 
grourd for sare of the bigger thin;Js sm r.tlqht run into? · 

I fc;iel so, It has given h!!.r a charce to deal, with he.r errotions 
out.sicb of tho institution. 

can she ra-11 make it? 

I belil!!Ve she can. 

Thank you. 

Nhat you 're saying is you think it was best that she ~rience 
these frustr,,tion..9 before she was relM5ed? 

Yes, l thin.I< it wna (Jcxxi t.hat she saw hcM life was goi n:J to 
bo t.matlng her. Mrs, Dtihlquiist. 

i'OU said it was t\,,O and a, half years? 
Yes. 

J\rd yru said that ~n those prohlans arose, sho carrs to you, 
am you were the me \\-t10 coun..c,clco her.. Those th.in:Ts .u:e qoing 
to hawcn i\CJ,lin if flho i~ to be parolcxt. /\re you sayim t.mlt 
r;hl' ycry t1l,finiu.,1y llC('(l:; :":(~)t"IC win i.s c.,!-:i."11,10 of co.m~lin,1 
her Md t.'!lkinJ with her at ~ll ttrrcsr :ts that oosicully \o.Tl.tt 
you're sayinc_,? 

! feel that Me's wi$e enoU":}h to k.row that ehe needs this, that 
she can seek out help f ro:n so:re:mc. 

I:n you feel like sho caJld cooc with thasa on her ™11 if there 
is not a. , 

T think she has •• ,I think durifll"J the la.st six rronths, $he has 
made quite u charge, .iooistin::;ulsh.l.blc. • // · 

Have any of these situ.Jtion.<i occu.rr.crl in the lilst 6i~ rn:inth$? 
,./ No, oo. 

lt:>thing el~. 

Thank you, Pi:ITI. 

~ else? 

WITNESS B~tr roIWI..~ l\.t.ID DULY $-{)~ IN 
I oo. 
Have a .ISMt, St,!!t.(! j'OU!." ~ fot' tho ro-.::ord r,le,lSO. 

f•t)' nam.1 is Paul Kirst, I'M fran Henc:Jar~t Ncl:>ra!'i~, !'m the 
adni.nistrator of .th~ llcr.cforoon Ccmrrunity llormit..-il, 

J\I'rl your interest in this 1T111ttt1r, Sir? 

1 Mt hem to at te£tt to ciu- il '~ ability as a future anployoo in 
the outsiclc \-nrld m-.::1 her ,'tbi.1 i ty to cr;nq wi th the "°rl<l. 

D:> yo..i fore~ any diffkultiC'::; or prolJlr.m.<\ with her fl\-.ikim ,"1 



MR •. KIRST; 

o. 
r!?..s, 01\HlQIJI ST: 

r~. fO~'IZY: 

MR, KlRSTt 

MFS • DAI II.a) IST: 

MR, KIRSI': 

MFS, DAHLOOisr: 

MR. KIPS!'; 

MRS • tl- \lilJ..."'U ! 9r : 

MR, l<I~: 

MPS, DN-tl.QJIST; 

MR, KIRST: 

MR. T1Dru;1 

No; I don't, Sit". I really foel th.it Caril, duriT)(J thf1! last tvx, 
~ o. half years at llerxforSOr'I Hospltal, hes ncvr;:!.loooo trC!'l:!ndou."ily 
her .:iliility, ahilitie!!: as M employea, and I cro c1aeper than -just 
the rrotions thZ?t she performed, Sha has amonstr,:3tad to me her 
ability to C'l:rnTlllnicate ~11 with her !31l')loyces. This i~ 5errethi~ 
th,,t l pcrl"lOn..'llly V.lluc very much. Wh(",n r.hc hM had problcm.<i, 
idle', on her c:mt'l initfotiw, h.:i.,.~ h('(:1n willihq to ~ to IOO ,,nd 
deal wilh t.hoso probleM .rather th.:tt'I lcr.tirtJ than CJO and letting 
tl'lt;!TI ~ l!l ~rse preclcrn, and I focl th.is is a very val\Jllble 
thin::t in an anployoo. 

I)',, you !\,cl th;1t her Jx, ll'il wl t.Jl yo~1r or11,11d :~,,t Ion .:1~. ~ur. om.lc·,yrx" 
· has hclpcrl her to ~ w.lth posaib.lo sltuntions or .fnu:;trations 
in tbo free v.or.ld, in EOCicty'? ;/ 

I 

Yes, I do, Sir, I don't sec. , ,indlstin<-;ruishable. ,and she 
has daronstrcltcd to me that she h,!1.S ooeed with than very well. 

l have ro _quast.i.ons, 

l just h.:we one, !'-t.". Chai.rtnn.n, I wMt to rcttlly g~ this straiqht, 
!n your opinion,· do you feel that lbr.1-. Rnlmse i~ a ve.ry positive 
aspect of the trarisiticral croccss du.ring ircarccration? 

very definitely, Sir. l 'm not only associ ated wit.h c.u-il on <'l 
w:,rk l)."lsis, but I've al so been with th~ rp·c,.Jp in Hendar~,an that 
h.i:; lx:...'n out: t.o th, i r'l!;t i hit ion l1crc prob. 1h.ly .-,Jn1t: tm t hron 
in the 111st b,o yc,u-s, ,m:J so I've l.)c,cn ,"l}.1.la t<?, c .. vil. isn't: the 
only incarc,.mJtoo ~ that I have been ,u·..socintcd with, .ind 
1 very definitely foel th<'.\t it's a vnlllilhl~ p,.'lr.t of any t~ 
of rcliabili tatioMl process, 

I'm glad to hear that, anl I also, ••• 

Thrui.~ }'~, Sir, 

You have the hospi~l, tho institution, for the C?ld~·ly in 
Herrlerson, is that •• 

That's corract. lt' s c1ct1.1,1l.ly o~ institution. The nursin.1 
hctre is ••. 

Ard that's \ltiero Caril -..urks? 

That's o:,rrcct. 

1\n;:l owr a pc.r.icxl of ~ and c1 half yc..-u:s? 

That's correct , I be u~::va she st.art~ in .. January of 197 4 , and 
1 have not~ her th.at lo!YJ. I started in ,July of ''74 •. 

Il'I all probability, \.IO..ll.d 1t. l:c dght. to as$UTl? then, fl11ul, that 
during this rcrio:1 of till'C, on a whola, she: h,.'ls boen z:ts$0Ciatinq 
wi ti'! the s,'Yl'M.': ctr,:'11.J!} tr, a r;re.1t <k~'frcc rllt.l~r thtm .l variety 
of pccplc. different cvciryday, :Is th,1t correct? 

Yes, in tho ~ni\\!Zl that. , ,obviously, tl)or.c's n t.urrx,vor in 
staff and a t.~tr!'PV'Cr in rc~S.dont:s, In th-1t rcsr,,oct, HhO is 
h.:lvi l'JJ to deal. w.i t.h d.l.ffonmt )Y.':Ol")lr.. Tl\H: in tt di. ff'crrmt 
w;,iy, the poo!Jlo sl1c h,'rl to deal with t'-'O c1ril n ha H yP,lf.'S acio 
wl'Pn she ~t.,"'trt.t-cl .,re ,, <'1.i Hcrmt: <froup nf p,xlplr. thM MC' hM 
to lle.il wi tJ, to 1.,y. 

MPS • Dr'\HLOO IST s Thanh you, 

r!R~ ~OLTZ: Thank you, ~ir, 



Pm1C? 14 

Q, 

Q, 

MR, 10-JLEi": 

MR. GREEN! !OLTZ: 

Mn, cmn-:-nror;rz: Mr, V{tck, m; the f1iroctr.ir of C'r.lrrcctlon1, th0 no.,rd woulcl Ukc to haw you sL.-1ta your q:>in.ion on C.:iril f\)('JCJt.('15 poss ib.lo role.\~. 

~m. VJTl·:K: 

Q. 

MR, VIT~~ 

,Q. 

MR. GRErnliOt.'l'Z 1 

~m. NEAL: 

Mr.a. trt1wforrl, you aro mipnrlntc1'lkmt here .it tha ~.n's eontor , 
ru'Xl you h~ kn:::,,,Jf\ <~m."j t. evor since vou'vo 1.'.IC<'.n omloyed at 
tho f,1cllit:y, M1,1t. c,:111 you b~U tl'K' f'lo."'lnl th-tt ~ hnvo rot 
alrC'<.'l(!)' rooeivod ('l~ inf()lm.,tion? What is ycA.U" fecli)')(J'? I~ · 
she ro.'l<ly? · 

Well, fir.st. c,( ,111, t thi.nk rn.~r.yi:hi.r'l\'1 th,,"\t; ncexln to be r-..'licl 
hes been s.:iid alr<~,lely on Car.i.L 1s bc!hnlf, but .:'IS the superint.cndant 
of this 1i.1rticuL1i ini;titution, T would r-..,y that MC very 
oofinit~ly i~ r'().~dy for parol o, a~l it's the qooornl C01"1C(!flSt1s 
of all staff rralix;!rs, «rd they &a very i;up1x:irti vo of Caril 
Fuc]ata ooin,.J p,"\roloo. I thilik there corms <1 time and plooe 
wren • , , i::; tot.:'llly saturatod , I feP.l that this is the tilT'c 
that she eourd be pa.roloo arrl bo vezy suceeasf'ul , If sl'-e w:,uld 
be dcta.ircd rt~ tJ~ 1i.1.rolo ru'1Y loo;,cr, r f'C"'Ql it wruld bo rmi,;t 
dctri.rrcnt.:11 to thi.f; younq ',,0!1\.1n, m'Kl tlri r.,r ,u; I'm COl"ICl."'lTICCJ, 
Sir, I feel thnt Carll h.:ts curred thii; riqht. Th.:i.t 's all I hilW. 

You oon It: forosee any problans ~tsoc..,vcr in tin ~vent that sho 
is released? 

l'-bt anyrrore difficult than \141.!lt she has alre.!ldy encountered on 
\.'k)rk ~lea5e •• iniisti.rqui~h.,ble •• 

My questions? 
\ 

None here, Mr. Chairman., Thank you. 

!s Mr. Vit~ in the rcon?. 

. DIRr:X.'mR mn.nrr I•nJt,[}\fU1 

Mr. Chui.rm."1!1 ,'ll"U rroti">Crn of th-., fh'll"tl, ,111 rc,u kn'),,,/, 1 'Ve been i.n 
Nebraska two years, .:irr:1 t don 't persorull v ;,-, tn-t Ms. 'FuJate, but 
.:rn ~rson.1] ty ,"Ml.rn of ht1r :-ictivitios ,lrtl tllt' t.t'\Lc;t t.hi:it:'i:; }X'l"'n 
given to her, nnd I c,:in either m'lke n r,;tm1~1 r~l.:itir:m !'l0Cm.1.e;o 
of my l.:,,ck <,f r.:mHL1rity wi.th her. llnt.~.'V<•r, I ~11ld in<1ic.1to 
th.it those r:x:v.Jplc tJ1,1t di.d testify, 1 bclkv,.', i~ .i strr,r,,-,1 
reason for the return of Mi;. t\,c)ate to society nrrl th,3t in every 
Wication if she was paroled, fran what I c~ !';00 ru'il urderstarrl, 
~ must be c1 good , COt"I tr ibutirxJ marber of' !'!OCiet y. 

In:listinguiGlnblc. • . / / 11/ 
M:t'. Q:'C!P.nhol tz, as ya.i kn(;,,.,, ~ ~.rtJ oo Md nr/ exooi.-t.iae 
<:Ner the last rnali'/ j't:!arS has bee:i with the ma.le o!fcndcra~ •• 

T\1'rf question.<; by any rerbcrs? ln others -..ord.,;, ycu fool t Mr, 
Vitek, • , . , Mj'OOO else hav~ .my l'}UeStions? 

None here. 

I ~ke the rrotion that the Board of. rarole rn, cro into executiw 
session, 

I secorrl th.1t, 

A~ie. 

13mKE roR r.xrrurr.m n~t!S!i <~ ~FI>> 
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MH, I :W·~·:Nl h ll :I'?. z 

I\. 

Q. 

MH, Nl·J\I,: 

Mn. !·~ ,, i.it l"', ~' .l'li\11 ,'U, <'!>IN"11t· i VI• i~,rm inn 1111 \•1·ur c.1110, nncl by 
rn..1}(~1'ilr vote you ,U.'() to be.~ !'dl"01o.l ·tn th1• 1'0111111.liltt~I JITCYJJ"<l!ll, 
!n ropras to the spxial oordi tion that ~100· m:mti~ t1nd 
rlt.~.11,l-'c:ocl ,1h:1 i ~ a m.1ttcr of rooord, yn11 ,1ri).:f".'C! th~ BOard H 

. w muld, • , II i:1 ,1 HJw.x~i . .il ~"'l'lClition t.l1,1l ym wiU rot hiWt' 
m,y rw,,n:\ C'(~n!'t'l'l"rlt~'fl ("lr nnythi IYI or t.h,,t l\'\l:\ll"l~ withnut 
wri I t.•11 JN'l1'1tinnio11, ,r thl:1 tln.11,1 ;ml I hr\ n,p~rvlnor nf tli~ 
roodvJt~.t .:1c_1cney, \'c1u <~t tJv1t 1crmlg!:iC't, 1.n writinr,J first. 
This is for rour own protection. Y01.1 'vo asked for it. You do 
have ~rtain rights. We don't want l'Ol tr, be ~loited, You 
have ~t-.tract.e:l, naturally, attE>J1tion in this case as yoo ~tl la'lo,,/ , 
We wish ~u the best of luck, Do yoo · have anythit'J]? 

f juRt ,..uuld liko tn s..-:y thntix ynu, very much. 

li.rr:,1 tTatberi;; of the Board have .viy carrrents, 

J\lst good luck, caril. 

r:E::ISION1 Pi\l'OI.ED 

/' 
//: 
;/ 

\Pm: 4-1 (Mro. n,•,m.Q.1Isr DISSrnr:ID) 

I, Trudy Scott, transcrlbcr for the Nebraska no.:ira of 
Parole, do hot"ci,y certify that the forcgoir.:; is, to tho 
best of rrry ability, a true and accurately typed tran..-;cript 
of tho he.ari.l"l(J afforded Caril 1\nn FUgate, No. 1427, on 
June 8, 1976. 
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An during Friday night, a howling norther had fun­ 
neled whirling snow flurries down the Missouri River 
Valley. When he· awoke on the morning of Saturday, 
January 25, Bob Von Busche saw the snow piled high on 
the sill of his bedroom window. He swung his long legs 
out of bed and went to the window to look out. Below 
him stretched. the white, drifted courtyard of the apart­ 

·ment house at 425 North Tenth Street in the capital city 
of Lincoln, Neb. 
"That's a pretty sight," Von Busche said to himself, then, 

practical minded, he decided to go down town and buy a 
roll of felt weather stripping with which to seal the drafty 
casement. 
Barbara Von Busche, Bob's pretty 17-year-old wife, 

had been in the kitchen getting breakfast. Hearing her 
husband moving around, she came to the connecting door 
and looked in. , 
"Don't you stand around with no warm clothes on," 

she chided him. "You'll be getting that five-day flu just 
like mom and the rest of them." 
Bob shuffled in his bare feet to the chair over which he 

had draped his clothes the night before. "Mom got the 
flu?" he asked. 

Police examine cardboard carton that contained beaten 
corpse of three-year-old Betty Jenn, first of ten .victims. 

The fears for the missing· high school beauty Carol King and her companion, Robert Jensen, mounted sharply with 
discovery of the fugitives' car and another corpse. 'I'hen searchers found their bodies, that of girl nearly nude. 
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BY SEYMOUR J. ETTMAN 



Five-day swath marked 

by ten corpses 

ends in wild 115-mph. 

police chase 

when fugitive runs 

out of bullets 

The three-day flight of 14-year-old Caril Fugate and red headed 
Charles Starkweather was· traced by seven slaying victims, while 
armed National Guardsmen patrolled the streets of terror-stricken 
Lincoln, Neb., and escorted children home from their classes. 

"They all of them got it," Barbara said. "Mom, my stepfather, little 
Betty Jean. The doctor says it's catching and Caril won't let no one 
in to see them." 

Von Busche puzzled this over as he started to dress. 
"You been over there?" he asked. 
"No," Barbara said. "Mrs. Hendricks was over there Thursday 

· afternoon. Caril turned her away from the door. Said it was doc- 
tor's orders." . 
- Bob said nothing more until he and Barbara were almost finished 
with breakfast. 

"How come your sister Caril didn't get it?" he asked. 
Barbara looked at him blankly. "Get what?" she asked, 
"That five-day flu," Von Busche said. "If Caril's in with them all 

.alone, how come she didn't get it?" 
The girl shrugged. "I don't know," she admitted. 



This Lincoln mansion was the scene of the triple murder of C. 
Lauer Ward, right; his wife, left, and a domestic. He had been 
shot, and the two women bound and stabbed. In one room of the 
ransacked house was found a blazer of slain high school girl. 

"Does Bandy Britches have it?" 
Bandy Britches was the name by which the couple pri­ 

vately referred to Charles Starkweather, a fellow apart­ 
.ment dweller and 14-year-old Caril's steady boyfriend. It 
was a name they would never have called Starkweather to 
his face. The 19-year-old red headed youth was a hot 
tempered bantam who had a reputation among his con­ 
temporaries for being fast with a knife. 
"I don't know if Bandy Britches was even out there," 

Barbara said. 
He's been out there, Bob said to himself. Starkweather 

was Caril's too constant companion. Flu or no flu, Bandy 
Britches would have gone to see his girl. 
"I'll go down the hall and ask him how your folks are," 

Bob said to his wife. 
Von Busche lit a cigaret and went to Starkweather's 

apartment three doors down the hall. There was no answer to 
his repeated knocking. A letter was shoved half under the 
door. Picking it up, Von 'Busche saw that it was probably 
a bill and bore a Lincoln postmark dated Wednesday, Jan­ 
uary 22. 
Von Busche put down the letter and did some quick cal­ 

culating. Allowing a day for city delivery, the envelope had 
been under the door since Thursday. Red Starkweather, evi­ 
dently, had not been in his apartment either Thursday or 
Friday. Where then, was he? At his father's home? No. He 
had left there to live his own life. With Caril? Perhaps. And 

· this might well be cause for alarm since Caril's mother, Mrs. 
Velda Bartlett, now supposedly flu-ridden, had forbidden 

Sheriff Karnopp, wearing overcoat, and a policeman 
examine the corpse of August Meyer, an aged bachelor 
farmer, who was slain and robbed in home near Dennet. 
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Joseph Sprinkle. (shown· with his wife) stopped to help 
motorists he thought were in trouble and then, in fight 
for his life, wrested a rifle out of the hands of the 

. fugitive who · was nearing the end of his murder binge. 

.1,.·, 

the hot-tempered youth ever to set foot in the house again. 
"I don't like it," Bob Von Busche said aloud. "I don't like 

it one little bit. I can't figure out why Caril won't let anybody 
in there." · 
A short while later, Von Busche said goodbye to his wife. 

'~'Couple of things I want to get," he told her. "A roll of 
window stripping, putty, stuff like that. See you in about 
an hour." 
Before he made his purchases, Robert Von Busche dropped 

in at police headquarters and had a brief talk with Detec­ 
·,. tive Lt.' Eugene Heninger. He confided that he found sus­ 
picious the fact that 14-year-old Caril Fugate had refused 
a neighbor admittance to her stepfather's home, 
Sketching something of young Charles Starkweather's 

relationship with the girl, .he mentioned the youth's volatile 
temper. · "He doesn't like the Bartletts and they don't like 

. 'him," Bob said. "Since he hasn't been home, I figure he might 
well be in there with Caril. And Lieutenant, to my way of • 
thinking, that could well be a matter of police business." 
Lieutenant Heninger agreed with him and promised to 

send a patrol car out to the Bartlett home on Belmont Ave­ 
nue at the northwest edge_ of town. Accordingly, a police 
cruiser car arrived at the Bartletts' 'just before noon. The 

· investigating officers found a neatly lettered sign tacked to 
'the front door. 

"No admittance," it read. "Five Day Flu here. Stay away 
.. on Doctor's Orders." :, 

The officers knocked, nonetheless, and the door was quickly 
opened by a small statured girl, obviously in her early teens 

: despite the embellishments of a mature physique. Her face, 
somewhat marred by an outbreak of what patent medicine 

· .ads call "adolescent skin," was very pale. 
"Yes?" she asked nervously. 
"Your folks sick in here?" one of the officers asked. 
"Yes, sir," Caril Fugate said. "My mother, my stepfather, 

and my little half sister." 
"Who's your doctor?" the officer asked shrewdly. 
Caril's eyes dropped for a second. [Continued on page 75] 

Wyoming Deputy Romer, left, and Chief Ainslie of Douglas, 
who captured the desperado after a wild 115 mph. chase, 
inspect articles found in Starkweather's car as his now 
frightened girl companion watches them in dazed manner. 

In their Lincoln home, Mr. and Mrs. Guy Starkweather, 
parents of the youth who wanted to be an outlaw, try to 
comfort each other as word of final events reaches them. 



answer. Nonplussed, he decided to notify 
Bob Von Busche at the latter's place of 
work. · 
Von Busche, thoroughly alarmed at the 

news, got in touch with Rodney Stark­ 
weather, 21, the brother of Caril's red­ 

"Doc Parsons, I think," she said slowly. headed boyfriend. "Sornething's wrong out 
"Should I wake up my mother and ask?" there at the Bartlett place. Your brother 
The cop looked at her searchingly. and my sister-in-law might be in on 

Somewhere behind the girl a puppy something mighty deep. What do you say 
whined mournful ly. "No," the officer said. we go out there and prowl around a bit?" 
"I wouldn't want you to disturb her. Any- The two young men arrived at the house 
thing we can do?" · · · on Belmont Avenue. shortly before 4:30 
"No," the girl said. ,"Thank you very that Monday, January 27. First they 

much. I hope you don't get sick from studied the sign on the door, then they 
coming so close to me." ' peered through all the windows. The 
The officers left and reported back to the puppy scratched wildly nt the glass when 

station house. It was their impression thnt they looked into the kitchen. ' 
everything at the Bartlett home seemed "No one's inside," Von Busche said. 
to be in order. "Let's take a gander at the chicken coop." 
Almost two more days passed before They headed to the rear of the property 

the situation at the Bartlett home aroused to make a tour of the outbuildings. Along 
· the suspicions of anyone else. Early the path was a cardboard box, half 
Monday morning, Mrs. Bartlett's mother, covered with snow. Von Busche glanced 
Mrs. Pansy Street, paid an unexpected call at it then looked again, intently, standing 
at the house on Belmont Avenue. horror-rooted in h,s tracks. 
Adjusting her glasses, the elderly The box contained the frozen, diminu- 

woman anxiously read the printed sign tive corpse of Betty Jean Bartlett! The 
on the front door. Then she began to knock 3-year-old child, clubbed over the head 
on the door. Caril's voice answered from and face until the features were almost 
inside, "Read the sign out there. Go away." unrecognizable, had been stripped of al- 

Mrs. Street's voice was fraught with most all her clothing: 
alarm. "Caril, honey? It's Granny. What's Pausing only briefly to stare at the 
the matter in there?" child's pitiful remains, the two youn~ men 

Caril opened the door a few inches. "Go hurried to the chicken coop. Here, 
away, Granny," she said pleadingly. wrapped in newspaper and torn lime 
"Everybody's sick .. You can't come in." sacks, lay the rigid body of 57-yeai:-old 
"Nonsense," the old woman said. "I'm Marion Bartlett with a blackened bullet 

getting on in years and I been exposed to hole in the middle of his forehead! 
just about every kind of sickness there is.· In an unused outhouse, a short distance 
I'm not afraid of no germs, child. Let me away, Rod Starkweather and Bob Von 

· in." Busche found the third corpse. Velda 
"Go away, Granny," Caril repeated. "I'm Bartlett, 35, also shot neatly through the 

nursing them all fine. There's nothing any- head, was lying just behind the door, her 
'vody else can do." body partially covered by. rags. 

Before 5 o'clock that Monday afternoon, 
the Belmont Avenue home of the Bart- 

. letts' literally swarmed with policemen. 
Police Chief Joseph Carroll, his assistant, 
Eugene Masters, Capt. Orren Graves 
and Detective Lieutenant Heninger, con­ 
ferring at the scene, were unable to fix the 
time of death from preliminary examina­ 
tion of either the bodies or the premises. 
Certainly, the Bartletts had been dead 

by Saturday if not .before. Why, then, had 
14-year-old Caril stayed on with the 
corpses? Why had she attempted to de­ 
ceive various visitors when tney called? 
Rodney Starkweather, his face a tragic 

mask of grief, supplied a logical answer. 
"I'm pretty sure my brother is behind 

all this," he said. "Little Red, as we call 
him, is a dead shot with any kind of gun. 
We've hunted together, and he knows 
more about hrearms than anyone I've ever 
met. I'm sure he shot these people and that 
he was here, holding a gun on Caril all the 
time she talked with whoever came to the 
door." 

Chief Carroll, accepting the surface 
facts as they were given, immediately 
ordered an nll-points police bulletin. "I 
want a description of the pair, the car they 
might be driving and anything else we can 
learn about them," he instructed. 

The bulletin, sent out in the next half 
hour, was repeat-relayed· throughout Ne­ 
braska, to tne southern limits of Colo­ 
rado-and to Wyoming, Iowa and Kansas. 
Starkweather was described as being 

5' 5" tall and weighing 140 pounds with 
flaming red hair cut short on top and long 
on the sides and back. He had green eyes 
and above the right lid there was a cres­ 
cent shaped scar. 
The suspect was both bow-legged and 

pigeon toed. He swaggered when he 
walked. He was believed to be wearing 
blue jeans, a black leather "motorcycle 

Sex and Murder Binge 
[ C ontin11cd from page 7] 

Nothing the elderly woman could say 
prevailed upon the girl. There. were more 
than enough groceries in the larder, Caril 
assured her. Dr. Parsons came in every 
day. It was simply a matter of time before 
.the Bartletts would be well. "Nothing to 
worry about, Granny," Caril insisted. "I'm 
nursing them fine." · 

· It was true 'that Caril Fugate was ex­ 
tremely capable in such matters. Granny 

. . Bartlett herself had recognized this fact 
and was saving her pension money so that 

· Caril might study nursing when she was 
graduated from high school. 

"At least let me see little Betty Jean," 
Mrs. Street begged the girl. "Carry her to 
the window and let Granny see the poor 
little sick angel." ' 

"No!" Caril Fugate said adamantly. "It 
· would only make her worse. Now you go 
home, Granny. Don't come back until 
tomorrow." 
Sick at heart and certain that something 

was radically wrong, Mrs. Pansy Street 
left the Bartlett home and found her way 
to police headquarters. She, too, spoke 
with Detective Lieutenant Heninger. 
Heninger, recalling Bob Von Busche's 

earlier apprehensions, agreed to send Mrs.' 
Street back to the Bartlett house in the 
company of two radio cruisermen. He also 
looked up Dr. Parsons in the Lincoln tele­ 
phone directory. When he could find no 
such person listed, he ordered the cruiser­ 
men to report to him by radio immediately 
'pen arriving at Belmont Avenue. The call 
.as transmitted within minutes. 
"We found the front door locked and 

had to break in through the side window. 
there's nobody here, Lieutenant. Not the 
:irl, not her folks, nobody at all. Just a 
ittle mutt whining in the kitchen. That's 
he whole of it. What should we do?" 
The mystified lieutenant had no ready 
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jacket" studded with silvery trim, a stock­ 
man's shirt, either black engineer's boots 
or black and white cowboy boots. He wore 
glasses, it was noted, and spoke with a 
speech impediment, having trouble in pro- 
nouncing his ws and rs. · 

Caril Fugate was described as being 
5'1" tall and weighing 105 pounds. Though 
only 14, her figure was mature beyond her 
years· and gave her an older appearance. 
The girl had blue eyes and dark brown 
hair, usually done up in a pony tail. She 
sometimes wore glasses. Possibly she was 
wearing a gold ring with a large red stone 
in a .simple setting. She was believed to be 
dressed in jeans and a blouse or sweater, 
with a blue parka coat for an outer gar­ 
ment. Caril was thought to be wearing 
drum majorette's white "baton boots" or 
gray suede loafers. 
The pair probably was travelling in 

Little Red's distinctive, hot rod type '49 
Ford, a four-door job without a front 

· grille or rear side windows. 
Rings of concentric road blocks were 

' thrown up in Eastern Nebraska and West­ 
ern Iowa. From Sioux City to Seneca on 
the Kansas border, and from Des Moines 
to Broken Bow of highway police patrols 
began to converge on Lincoln. · 
'While Sheriff Merle Karnopp and his 

deputies toured the Belmont Avenue sec­ 
tion, seeking witnesses who might have 
observed Little Red fleeing from the area, 
teams of city detectives assembled a dos­ 
sier on the bantam fugitive. 

From the youth's parents, friends and 
former teachers, the officers were able to 
formulate a quick character sketch of a 
swaggering, good-for-nothing, hot-tem­ 
pered rebel who was kicked out of school 
in his ninth year for knife fighting and 
whose shiftlessness had caused him to be 
fired from one job after another. 

"He used to work with Rod on a garbage 
truck," Mrs. Rodney Starkweather told 
the officers. "But he was absolutely worth­ 
less. He'd lounge around in the cab read­ 
ing comic books all the time. The only 
things he really cares about were stock 
car racing and hunting, and he's a crack 
shot with a gun." 
This last attribute was one to which all 

of Little Red's intimates testified. The 
bandy legged bantam, despite the fact 
that he wore glasses, had eyes which swept 
a gunsight with radar-like accuracy. 
Lieutenant Heninger, hearing that 

young Starkweather always shot his game 
in the head, wondered whether Little Red 
might not be implicated in the unsolved 
shotgun murder of Robert G. Colvert, a 
21-year-old Lincoln service station at­ 
tendant, who had been found shot in the 
head on the night of December 1, 1957. 
Starkweather, reportedly, was known to 

have loitered around the station where 
Colvert worked. More, Little Red had 
borrowed a shotgun from his brother on 
the day of the crime and returned it two 
days later. Also, the fugitive had opened a 
savings account in a local bank shortly 
after Colvert was found killed and robbed. 
Speaking with Mrs. May Hawley, oper­ 

ator of the apartment house where Little 
Red had resided, Heninger learned that 
Starkweather, behind in his rent before 
the Colvert slaying, had cleaned- up his· 
_indebtedness the day after the crime. 

By nightfall, shortly after the first bul­ 
letins on the Bartlett killings had hit the 
papers, the Lincoln police picked up an 
important lead. · 
Homer Tate, owner-operator of a gas 

station on Highway 7.7, south of Lincoln, 
called the police to say that he had seen 
the fugitives at 1 p.m. Monday afternoon. 
' At that time, according to Tate, the red 
headed suspect and the Fugate girl had 
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driven the hot rod Ford up to the pump 
island. 
"They bought 45 cents worth of gaso­ 

line," Tate said, "and they had me put a· 
tire boot in one of his spares. Then he 
bought two boxes of .22 caliber long rifle 
cartridges and a box of .410 shotgun 
shells." 
The redhead had also asked to buy two 

boxes of .32 caliber cartridges, but Tate 
did not have these in stock. 
The station owner said that he had seen 

a .410 shotgun under a blanket on the 
front seat of the car when the girl got out 
to buy candy . bars at the dispensing 
machine. 
"Did she seem to be under duress of 

any kind?" Chief Carroll wanted to know. 
"Did it seem to you that the fellow was 
holding the girl against her will?" 
Tate considered this question. ·"No, sir," 

he said. "Nothing like that. They were 
joking with each other and getting along 
fine." 
At the very time Mr. Tate was making 

his statement· to the police, another Lan­ 
caster County resident was becoming in­ 
volved in the bantam badman's getaway. 
A Bennet farmer, Howard Genuchi, 

driving his pickup truck home from town, 
came upon Starkweather's car mired in 
a ditch near the rubble of the recently 
razed District 79 School. 

Genuchi knew the flaming haired 
Starkweather on sight. Waving to Little 
Red, the farmer backed his pickup to the 
brink of the ditch. Then, fixing a chain 
sling around the hot rod's bumper, he 
hauled the Ford out on the road. He col­ 
lected his chain, got into the cab of his 
truck and drove off without even waiting 
to be thanked. It was not until the next 
day that Genuchi learned of the extensive 
manhunt for the runaway killer. 
Two other Bennet residents shortly 

thereafter became even more deeply in­ 
volved with the occupants of the hot rod. 
Shortly before 8 p.m. 17-year-old Robert 
Jens en came to call for his girl friend, 
beautiful and popular 16-year-old Carol 
King, a Bennet High School cheer leader. 

Only two weeks before, Carol's father 
had succumbed of a heart attack shortly 
after hearing of the death of his brother in 
an automobile accident. Then Warren 
King, Carol's 26-year-old brother, now the 
main support of his family, had been laid 
off from work shortly thereafter. 
Her date, that Monday night of January 

27, was Carol's first in several weeks. 
"I'll be in by 10," she told her mother. 

Then, sensing that perhaps the older 
woman would be happier if she stayed at 
home she said, "Look, Mom. Be honest 
with me. I don't mind if we don't go out. 
Really .. I don't." 
Her mother patted her cheek. "You're 

young," she said. "It isn't right for you 
to be cooped up here the way you've been. 
You and Bob take a ride and have_ a good 
time." 
The young couple left in Bob's 1950 

Ford, but Carol did not return home at 
10 o'clock that Monday night. At 11, her 
mother became alarmed and began to call 
her daughter's friends. At midnight, she 
called the police. 
All that night Carol's brother and 

friends toured the Bennet environs, seek­ 
ing some trace of the girl and her date. 
They found nothing. 
In the morning, the search was extended 

to a wider area. Bennet School Supt., 
Michael Valentine sent a party of stu­ 
dents out to look for the missing couple. 
Neither the youngsters nor the police had 
any success. _ 
About mid-morning Tuesday, Pat Boldt, 

a Bennet garageman, stopped Safety Pa­ 
trolman Vernon O'Neal on State Highway 

43. "I saw a black '49 Ford-in a farm lane, 
back yonder," he said. "Looks like that 
one they're looking for." 

O'Neal shook his head. "Jensen's car is 
a '50," he said. "And it's blue." 
The garageman looked at him blankly. 

"I'm talking about the car that's in the 
papers," Boldt said. "The one from Lin­ 
coln. The one with that red headed kid 
and the girl." 
The safety patrolman realized with a 

start that his informant was talking about 
Red Starkweather's hot rod! , 
Approaching carefully, O'N eal scouted 

the lane leading to the well kept farm of 
August Meyer, 70, a long-time Bennet 
resident. Reconnoitering as close to the 
lane as he dared, the trooper recognized 
the salient features of the distinctive au­ 
tomobile. It had no grille. There were no 
back · windows. It was definitely the 
murder suspect's car. 

On radioing the information to the 
police communications control center, 
O'Neal was told to sit tight, that help was 
on the way. Shortly some_ 30 troopers 
equipped with tear gas bombs and riot 
guns closed in on the farm from all direc­ 
tions. Assistant Lincoln Chief of Police 
Eugene Masters and a dozen of his men 
rolled up the lane in a car equipped with 
a public address system. 
The car, obviously deserted, was quick­ 

ly surrounded. It was found to be bogged 
down in a deep pothole. It contained six 
spare tires, a pair of man's fleece-lined 
slippers, empty pop bottles, a pair of blue 
dungarees and a set of road maps for 
Kansas, Missouri and Iowa. The key was 
in the ignition switch. 

Figuring the wanted pair probably 
was hiding m the Meyer home, the officers 
moved in fast. Assistant Chief Masters 
drove the car as close to the farm house 
as he dared, then his voice boomed out 
over the portable public address system. 

"We know you're in there, Starkwea­ 
ther. We'll give you five minutes to come 
out with your hands up." 
The count-down from five minutes to 

zero passed in a dragging agony of tense 
anticipation. When there was no move­ 
ment m the house, three pairs of troopers 
closed in, moving from tree to tree and 
takmg advantage of all cover. 
A trooper hurled a tear gas grenade 

through a second story window. The glass 
shattered with an unreal sound. Eight 
more gas bombs were lobbed through 
various windows without causing any stir 
of movement within the house. 

Chief Joe Carroll, newly arrived at the 
scene took up a forward position with a 
weatherbeaten, anxious eyed farmer who 
identified himself as Louis Meyer, August 
Meyer's brother. · : 

"I read about that young punk in the 
papers," Louis told Chief Carroll. "He used 
to hunt here on my brother's farm. I got 
worried that maybe he'd corrie ·here to 
hide out and drove down to be with Gus 
if I was needed." 
The troopers advanced closer to the 

house. At the rear, Sgt. Gerald Tesch 
rushed the door of a small wash house 
close to the back door of the farmstead. 
He kicked open the door and gave a hoarse 
shout that brought his brother officers on 
the double. 
There, lying on his side on the floor, was 

old Gus Meyer, shot through the head 
with the full charge of a .410 shotgun! 
Shocked by this newest slaying in the 

kill-crazy bantam's string of wanton mur­ 
ders, the entire community was roused. 
Herbert Randall, proprietor of a Be_nnet 
hardware store, did a land office busmess 
in the sale of arms and ammunition. Hast­ 
ily organized patrols of vigilantes offered 



their. services as auxiliary policemen. 
Offers of help began to pour in from peace 

· officers in Otoe, Gage, Saline and York 
- Counties. 

The finding of Gus Meyer's body and 
the discovery that his home had been 
1-iastily ransacked in a search for cash 
rused mounting apprehension in the 

minds of the key investigators. According 
to Louis Meyer, his brother kept little cash 
in the house. The officers now feared that 
the bandy legged killer, thwarted in his 
quest for getaway money, might well re­ 
sort to further bloodshed to get funds. 

·--, Another important consideration was 
the fact that Starkweather had ditched his _ 
hot rod. He had not taken Gus Meyer's 
truck. What car, then, had he taken to 
continue his flight? 
It was this , question _ which caused a 

deepening concern over the probable fate 
of the missing Carol King and her boy 
friend, Robert Jensen. 
The appearance of Howard Genuchi 

.- among the searchers brought to light the 
'- . fact that the Bennet farmer had hauled 

Starkweather's hot rod out of the mud the 
night before. 
"It was over near that torn down 

school," Genuchi told the officers. "I didn't 
know you cops were looking for Stark­ 
weather until a half an hour ago." 
Mention of the school caused one of the 

possemen to recall a fact which, until now, 
had no particular significance. 

· "Seems to me I heard a car take off from 
around there at about 9 o'clock last night," 
Everet Broening said. "Maybe we'd better 
go out there and take a look." 
Broening led a search party to the ruins 

of the razed school. A storm cellar was all 
that remained of the former structure. It 
was covered with boards which appeared 
·.., have recently been placed there. 
Eager hands tore aside the covering and 

a shout went up from the crowd. 

There in the storm cellar were the 
bodies of Robert and Carol. The body of 
the boy was fully clothed. The girl had 
been stripped to virtual nakedness and 
her clothing was strewn around the cellar 
pit. A bullet hole in the head of each vic­ 
tim marked the corpses with the brand of 

. the bandy legged mad-dog-slayer. 
Sheriff Karnopp, rushing to the scene, 

was there when Carol's body was posi- · 
tively identified by one of her closest 

_friends, Deanna Monahan of Route 7. 
Terror began to stalk the snow covered 

countryside. In farm homes, shotguns and 
rifles were taken from closets and racks 
'and kept within easy r_each. Grim faced 
men, all heavily armed, made farm-to- 

- farm patrols of the entire area. 
_ Late Tuesday night in Lincoln, formal 

_ first degree murder charges were filed 
against Charles R. Starkweather, 19, and 
Caril Ann Fugate, 14, by Lancaster County 
Attorney Elmer Scheele.· With the an- 

- . nouncement of these charges came several 
thought provoking statements. 
Mr. Scheele stated that medical exami- 

, nation of the remains of 16-year-old Carol 
King revealed that the beautiful cheer 
leader had been subjected to an unnatural 
sex attack. 
It was announced, also, that the FBI 

would enter the case on Wednesday after 
U. S. Commissioner C. M, Pierson filed 
'<arges of unlawful flight to avoid prose­ 
.ion against both Starkweather and 

vriss Fugate. 
Despite these statements and the cryptic 

mplications behind them, Nebraska 
!afety Patrol Capt. Dan Casey announced 
hat it would not surprise him to learn 
hat Starkweather "had done away with 
.aril Fugate." 
All through the night grim-visaged 

searchers sought for Robert Jensen's blue 
,_ 1950 Ford, distinguished by two whip style 
radio antennae on its rear fenders and 
bearing 1957 Nebraska license' plates 

, 2-8743. 
As the hours wore on, panicky if well 

intentioned citizens simultaneously re­ 
ported seeing this automobile in a wide 
variety of locales. Police officers ran them­ 
selves ragged investigating leads which 
developed in Elm Creek and Blue Rapids, 
Kans., Mt. Vernon, Ia., and Muskogee, 
Okla. It was not until 'morning that the 
search was dramatically redirected to the 
terror stricken community of Lincoln, 
Nebraska, once again. 

On Wednesday, a prominent Lincoln 
industrialist, 47-year-old C. Lauer Ward, 
failed to appear at the weekly meeting of 
the board of trustees of the Bankers Life 
Insurance Company of Nebraska. When a 
number of unsuccessful attempts were 
made to reach Mr. Ward by telephone at 
his residence, 2843 South 24th Street, an 
employe was sent to the home. When this 
messenger returned to the board meeting 
without being able to get any response at 
the white mansion, Mr. Ward's business 
associates became alarmed. 
It was known that Fred Ward, a cousin, 

had spoken with the industrialist on the 
phone the previous evening. Fred Ward 
was prevailed upon to visit his relative's 
home 'in an effort to determine if there 
was anything amiss. 
Fred went to the house and tried the 

several entrances, but was unable to gain 
admittance. Hoping to find some clue in 
the garage, he went around to the rear 
and saw a strange automobile parked in 
the space usually reserved for his cousin's 
black 1956 Packard. · 

The automobile in its place was a blue 
Ford with twin whip antennae on its rear 

. fenders. It bore Nebraska tags 2-8743. 
Without realizing the import of his dis­ 
covery, Fred Ward telephoned the Lincoln 
police. 
The scores of dread-filled officers who 

arrived in response to this information 
forced a rear door of the Ward home and 
burst inside to find their worst fears real- 

. ized. · 
Mr. Ward's body, fully dressed to hat 

and coat, was found just inside the front 
door. There was a bullet hole in the dead 
industrialist's head. Upstairs in two sep- 

. arate bedrooms, the searchers discovered 
two more bodies. One was that of Clara 
Ward, the industrialist's wife. The other 
was identified as Lillian Fencel, the 
Wards' maid. 

Both women had their wrists trussed 
behind them. They were fully clad. Mrs. 
Ward had been stabbed several times in 
the chest, the back and the neck. Miss 
Fence! was found to have been stabbed 
about a dozen times in the chest and abdo­ 
men. 
The house had been ransacked and there 

was evidence that the killers had spent a 
good deal of Tuesday night wandering 
through the rooms. If the bullet hole in 
the head was not by now enough of a 
trade mark, the knife work was as good as 
the signature of switchblade expert Red 
Starkweather. Moreover, a bloodstained 
Bennet High School blazer which had 
belonged to the unfortunate Carol King 
was found in one of the bedrooms. 
Now, terror-ridden Lincoln literally 

became an armed camp. Declaration of 
martial law brought armed National 
Guardsmen to patrol the streets.· Planes 
from the Civil Air Patrol, the Rancher's 
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Association and the Lincoln Air Force 
Base were pressed into the hunt for the 
.mad dog killer on a binge of sex and 
murder. Sought was one of the hottest 
automobiles ever hunted in connection 
with American outlawry. It was C. Laur 
Ward's black 1956 Packard with license 
2-17415. 

As Lincoln barricaded itself in prepa­ 
ration for a sleepless night, schools were 
dismissed early and students were es­ 
corted to their homes under armed guard. 
Citizens were urged to stay off the streets 
unless their business was of vital interest 
to the community. 
Literally hundreds of reports were si­ 

multaneously received from all over 
Nebraska concerning the sighting of a 
Packard sedan similar to the one being 
sought. The State Safety Patrol had the 
main highways south and southeast of 
Lincoln lined with patrol cars. A vast 
dragnet enveloped the environs of the 
city, yet Starkweather and his 14-yea·r- · 
old girl friend managed to wriggle out of 
the area. 

Up in the Wyoming badlands near the 
Continental Divide Starkweather's luck 

· was fast running out along with the sands 
of time. , 
A short distance from Natural Bridge 

just out of the cattle town of Douglas in 
Converse County, Starkweather began to 

· scout around for another car. He realized 
he had milked his extraordinary streak 
of good fortune almost dry, having driven 
524 miles northwest in less than a single 
day with neither challenge nor incident. 
The Packard was sure to be spotted, 
Starkweather felt. The quicker he ditched 
it the better. 
It was now Wednesday afternoon. Red 

began to watch the side of the road for a 
likely "set of wheels." He looked different 

. from his usual self. He now wore, as a 
disguise, · a pair of rimless six-sided 
glasses which gave him a somewhat owl­ 
ish look. His hair was a bizarre black, 
having been well daubed with black shoe 
polish. He was badly in need of a 
shave. 
A car with Oregon plates suddenly 

commanded the fugitive's attention. It was 
'pulled up alongside of the road. The 
driver was napping. 
Starkweather jammed on the Packard's 

brakes and brought the big sedan to a 
lurching stop in front of his quarry. He 

· took a .32 caliber pistol from the glove 
compartment and stepped out on the road. 
Sauntering to the Oregon car, he fired 
once through the window, yelling, "come 
out!". 
The driver, 37-year-old Merle Colli­ 

sion, a shoe salesman for a Montana con­ 
cern, never awaked from his nap. His 
sleep was extended into eternity by the 

· well aimed bullet which struck him just 
. above the left temple. ' 

Red yanked open the door and in an 
open mouthed passion of blood lust 
pumped five more shots into Collision's 
body. When his gun was empty he threw 
it into the Oregon car and pushed the life­ 
less body of the tenth victim of his terror 
binge under the dashboard cowl. 

Caril Fugate came over from the Pack­ 
ard and climbed into the back seat of the 
new automobile. Starkweather went back 
to the Packard and returned with a .22 
caliber rifle, one stolen from the Meyer 
farm. He slid beneath the wheel, ad­ 
justed the seat to his short stature and 
tried to release the emergency brake. 
For. some reason it did not budge, 

Swearing like a madman, Red began to 
struggle with the brake. He pushed and 
pulled and grunted and sweatted, but <the 
brake would not yield to his efforts. 
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Down the road, headed into Douglas, 
barreled a dust powdered automobile. At 
the wheel was 29-year-old Joe Sprinkle, 
a husky land agent employed by a Casper, 
Wyo., oil company. Seeing the two out of 
state cars pulled up alongside of the road, 
Sprinkle presumed that he had come upon 
a pair of stranded motorists. He U-turned 
and pulled up behind the Oregon car. 

"Do anything for you, pardner?" he 
asked Starkweather. 
The bandy-legged badman got out of 

the car carrying the .22 caliber rifle. 
"Sure," he snarled. "You can lift your 

hands up and walk over here." 
Sprinkle took a good look at the gun, 

then studied Starkweather's face. He saw 
no trace of compassion in those kill crazy 
eyes. 
"Help me free the emergency brake on 

this car or I'll kill you," Starkweather 
said. 
1 Sprinkle came to the car and for the 
first time saw the white faced girl in the 
back seat. Then he looked at the corpse 
doubled under the dashboard. 
Every man has a time to die, Sprinkle 

thought. This is my time. I'll free the 
brake and this sawed off runt. will kill 
me. 
Pretending to bend toward" the brake, 

Sprinkle suddenly wheeled arid grabbed 
the rifle barrel. · · · 

· I'm fighting for my life, he said to him­ 
self. It's either this punk or me! 
He began to kick out at Starkweather, 

holding the barrel in a grip of steel. 
Little Red cursed the air blue, slugging, 

kicking, butting to free the gun from 
Sprinkle's grasp. But Sprinkle was a big 
man, and he knew that to let go was to die. 
With one powerful wrench he pulled the 
gun out of the bantam badman's hand. 
Red backed away, then started to run 

toward the Packard. A truck came grind­ 
ing up the road. Sprinkle waved for it to 
stop. Behind the truck came a Natroma 
County patrol cruiser. In it was Deputy 
Sheriff Bill Romer on a routine rent re­ 
ceipt' inspection job. From a distance, 
Romer had seen the two men struggling 
for possession of a rifle. 
Little Red Starkweather gunned the 

Packard onto the highway and took off on 
screaming tires. Caril Fugate rushed out 
of the Oregon automobile into Romer's 
arms. Her hair was set in pin curlers. Her 
voice was a series of sobs. 

"Save me!" she shrilled. "It's Stark­ 
weather! He just killed another man, and 
he's going to kill me!" 

Romer grabbed the girl, jumped into 
his car and radioed ahead for a series of 
roadblocks to be thrown across the high­ 
way. Starkweather smashed through 
the first checkpoint doing better than 100 
miles an hour. Then, wheeling around in a 
grinding turn, the bandy legged redhead 
headed back toward Douglas. He drove for 
ten miles before running past Sheriff Earl 
Heflin of Converse County who was in a 
car being driven by Douglas Police Chief 
Robert Ainsley. 
Ainsley, a mild-mannered bespectacled 

lawman who heads a three-man force, 
wheeled around and roared into pursuit. 
Both cars reached the Douglas City limits 
doing almost 115 miles an hour. Stark­ 
weather, slowed by traffic, could no longer 
make time. . 

"I tried to crash him," Ainsley said 
later. "I got my bumper hooked in his, 
but he pulled away. The sheriff was firing 
with his .30-30 carbine as much as he 
could in that heavy traffic. 
"Every time there was an opening, he'd 

let go at one of the tires." 
Just east of Douglas, the chase picked 

up speed again. Earl Heflin put a shot 
through the back window of the Packard, 

and then pegged three more into the 
trunk. 
Starkweather's car began to weave. It 

lurched to a stop and Starkweather 
jumped out, holding a bleeding right ear. 
He hesitated a second, leaned against his 
car and then surrendered leaving an 
empty .38 caliber revolver and a broad­ 
bladed hunting knife on the car seat. 

"He had a nick in the ear and he thought 
he was bleeding to death," Sheriff Heflin 
said. "That's the kind of a yellow SOB he 
is." 
Starkweather was hustled to Converse 

County Jail. He arrived there just ·after 
Deputy Romer came in with the Fugate 
girl. 

Caril Fugate told a weepy story. "I was 
afraid he would. take me to Washington 
State and kill me," she said. "He forced 
me to come along with him." 
Perhaps this is true. The facts are still 

to be determined. . 
"Take it easy on the kid," Starkweather 

told the officers. "She had nothing to do 
with any of this." 
An expected legal hassle over -iuris­ 

dictional rights to the prisoners was set­ 
tled in record time. Wyoming Gov. Mil­ 
ward Simpson, an admitted foe of capital 
punishment, made it clear that he would 
gladly sign extradition papers for the 
return of Starkweather and the girl to 
Nebraska, where the death penalty is in 
effect. Converse County Attorney Bill 
Dixon, although he filed charges of 
murder against Charles Starkweather in 
the Collison case, agreed not to hold up 
the transfer of the prisoners to Lincoln. 
Lancaster Sheriff Karnopp brought the 

bantam badman to Nebraska. Caril was 
returned in another car. 
"I always wanted to be an outlaw," 

Starkweather is quoted as telling the 
sheriff. "I always wanted to be a big cri­ 
minal-but maybe not this big. Hell, I 
wasn't really mad at anybody. I just 
wanted to be somebody big." 

Caril Fugate, lodged in Lincoln State 
Mental Hospital because there are no fa­ 
cilities elsewhere to accommodate her, at 
this writing is still charged with first 
degree murder. 
''It is not likely that this charge will be 

dropped against the girl," Lancaster 
County Attorney Elmer Scheele told the 
press. "We are proceeding with our action 
against her with all possible dispatch." 

"She's a great actress," Police Chief Joe 
Carroll said. "She had many chances to 
escape from Starkweather. We're not go­ 
ing to see her wiggle her way out of this." • 

Authorities say Starkweather himself 
has signed a statement admitting that the 
14-year-old girl was a "willing partner" 
in the orgy of murder which took ten lives. 
He claims that she had no part in the kill­ 
ing of station attendant Robert Colvert 
on December 1. 
At their arraignment in Lincoln, Neb., 

February 3, both Charles Starkweather 
and Caril Fugate pleaded innocent to 
charges of first degree murder in connec­ 
tion with the slaying of Robert Jensen. 
Two days later, Caril completed her ac­ 
count of the ten killings, but County At­ 
torney Elmer Scheele refused to discuss 
the contents of her statement. 
Few comments about the tragedy are 

as poignant as that of Granny Pansy 
Street whose pension money will be used 
to bury the victims of the shooting spree. 

"She wanted to go to school and be a 
nurse, and Granny was ready to help her 
make it. But now that money will go into 
coffins for Marion, Velda and Betty Jean 
Bartlett. There won't be enough to really 
do it right. That baby'll just have to be 
buried with her mother." 
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